Public Document Pack

All Members of the Council

My Ref: LCS-DLDS-DS-C-022
Your Ref:
Contact Roz Patterson
Tel: 0191 4332088
Date: Wednesday,
16 March 2022
NOTICE OF COUNCIL MEETING

You are summoned to attend a meeting of Gateshead Metropolitan Borough Council to be
held in the Gateshead Leisure Centre, at 2.30 pm on Thursday, 24 March 2022 to
transact the following business:1

To confirm the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 January 2022 and 24
February 2022 (Pages 3 - 14)

2

Official Announcements
(announcements may be made by the Mayor, Leader of the Council or the Chief
Executive)

3

Petitions
(to receive petitions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 10)

4

Questions from Members of the Public
(to consider any questions submitted under Council Procedure Rule 7)

RECOMMENDATIONS FROM CABINET
5

The Clean Air Plan for Gateshead and Newcastle - Joint Committee and
Legal Order (Pages 15 - 62)

6

Consultation on 2023 Parliamentary Boundary Review (Pages 63 - 72)

7

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy and approach to Social
Value (Pages 73 - 108)

8

Localism Act 2011 - Pay Accountability Pay Policy Statement 2022-23
(Pages 109 - 130)

8a

Amendment to Report (Pages 131 - 132)

9

Resident Influence Strategy and Framework (Pages 133 - 160)

10

Treasury Policy Statement and Treasury Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27 (Pages
161 - 196)

MOTIONS AND QUESTIONS
11

Notice of Motion
(to consider any notices of motion submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule
9.1)

12

Questions
(to deal with any questions submitted in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 8.1)

Sheena Ramsey
Chief Executive

Agenda Item 1
GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
COUNCIL MEETING
Thursday, 27 January 2022

PRESENT:

THE MAYOR COUNCILLOR D BURNETT (CHAIR)
Councillors: J Adams, R Beadle, D Bradford, M Brain, L Caffrey,
M Charlton, B Clelland, P Craig, C Davison, W Dick, S Dickie,
Diston, K Dodds, C Donovan, A Douglas, D Duggan, P Foy,
S Gallagher, M Gannon, A Geddes, J Gibson, B Goldsworthy,
M Goldsworthy, T Graham, J Green, L Green, S Green, G Haley,
M Hall, S Hawkins, H Haran, H Kelly, L Kirton, K McCartney,
K McClurey, J McCoid, J McElroy, E McMaster, P McNally,
M McNestry, J Mohammed, R Mullen, C Ord, M Ord, R Oxberry,
I Patterson, Reay, D Robson, S Ronchetti, J Simpson, J Turnbull,
J Turner, J Wallace, R Waugh, H Weatherley and A Wheeler

APOLOGIES: Councillors: Anderson, C Buckley, S Craig, John Eagle,
K Ferdinand, F Geddes, P Maughan, B Oliphant and K Wood
A minute's silence was observed following the death of former Councillor David
Howdon.
CL65

TO CONFIRM THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD 18 NOVEMBER 2021
COUNCIL RESOLVED

CL66

-

That the minutes of the meeting held on 18
November 2021 be approved as a correct record.

OFFICIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS
New Year’s Honours 2022

(A)

The Mayor announced that within the Queen’s New Year’s Honours List 2022 the
following people were recognised who live and work within the Borough:

CL67



Emma Beauchamp, Chair of the North East Young Apprenticeship
Ambassador Network was awarded a British Empire Medal for service to
Apprenticeships and Skills.



Mrs Susan Winfield, Lord-Lieutenant of Tyne and Wear, has been made a
Commander of the Royal Victoria Order.

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH ANNUAL REPORT
Alice Wiseman, Director of Public Health, attended the meeting and presented her
annual report, the focus of which is on how the pandemic exposed and worsened
inequalities across Gateshead.

Page 3

CL68

PETITIONS
There were no petitions submitted.

CL69

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
Mr Stephen Carr submitted the following question:
“I wish to ask why the Council property, number 10 Saint Mary’s Green, Whickham,
NE16 4DN, still remains unoccupied? The former council tenant passed away on 2
November 2020. Since then the property, a three bedroomed maisonette, has had
extensive remedial work carried out to it, yet it still remains unoccupied to this day.”
Councillor M McNestry responded to the question.
Mr Carr submitted a supplementary question which was agreed to be responded to
outside of the meeting.

CL70

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT MEMBERS TO THE AUDIT AND
STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the appointment of three
Independent Members to the Audit and Standards Committee and to extend the
term of office of the Independent Person for standards of conduct issues affecting
Council and Parish Council Members.
COUNCIL RESOLVED -

CL71

(i)

That the re-appointment of Stuart Bell as an
Independent Member of the Audit and
Standards Committee for a further period of four
years and the appointment of Laura Bowler and
Ian Dormer to the other Independent Member
positions for the same period be approved.

(ii)

That the extension of the term of office of the
Independent Person for standards of conduct
issues affecting Council and Parish Council
Members to 24 March 2022 be approved.

GAMBLING STATEMENT OF PRINCIPLES 2022–2025
Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of a Gambling Statement of
Principles for 2022-2025.
COUNCIL RESOLVED - (i)

(ii)

That the amended Gambling Statement of
Principles be endorsed.
That the delegated decision taken by the
Service Director, Climate Change, Compliance,
Planning and Transport, as outlined in the
report, be noted.

Page 4

CL72

LOCAL COUNCIL TAX SUPPORT SCHEME FOR 2022/23
Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of a Local Council Tax
Support Scheme for the year 2022/23.
COUNCIL RESOLVED -

CL73

(i)

That the proposed scheme as set out in
paragraphs 8 and 9 of the report be approved.

(ii)

That the Strategic Director, Resources and
Digital, be given delegated powers to provide
regulation to give effect to the scheme.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT STAFFING STRUCTURE
Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of a revised senior
management staffing structure.
COUNCIL RESOLVED - (i)

CL74

That the amendments to the organisation
structure as detailed in the report be
approved with an implementation date of 1
April 2022.

(ii)

That the Chief Executive be authorised to
approve the final salary grades of Service
Director roles, within the Council’s current pay
policy framework and grading structure,
taking into consideration advice from the
LGA, following application of the LGA job
evaluation scheme.

(iii)

That the Strategic Director, Corporate
Services and Governance, be authorised to
make such changes to the Council’s
Constitution he deems necessary as a
consequence of the changes so approved.

(iv)

That the Chief Executive be authorised to
determine appropriate interim arrangements
as necessary to cover any vacancies which
might arise in respect of either of the new
posts.

HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY AND STRATEGIC REVIEW OF HOMELESSNESS
AND ALLOCATIONS
Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the Homelessness and
Rough Sleeping Strategy.
COUNCIL RESOLVED

-

That the Gateshead Homelessness and Rough
Sleeping Strategy and Homelessness Charter be

Page 5

approved and that the strategy be included as part
of the Councils policy framework.
CL75

REVIEW OF THE COUNCIL'S CONSTITUTION
Consideration was given to a report recommending a number of amendments to the
Constitution.
COUNCIL RESOLVED

CL76

-

That the proposed changes to the Council
Constitution, as set out in the report, be agreed.

CALENDAR OF MEETINGS 2022/23
Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the calendar of meetings for
2022/23.
COUNCIL RESOLVED - (i)

CL77

That the calendar of meetings 2022/23 be
approved.

(ii)

That as far as possible, meetings should not be
held during school holidays.

(iii)

That the Strategic Director, Corporate Services
and Governance, following consultation with
the appropriate Chairs, be authorised to make
any necessary amendments to the calendar of
meetings.

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT RENT & SERVICE CHARGES 2022/23
Consideration was given to a report seeking approval of the proposed rent changes
and the proposals for the 2022/23 HRA service charges.
COUNCIL RESOLVED - (i)

(ii)
CL78

That the 4.1% rent increase from 4 April 2022
be approved.
That the HRA service charges be approved.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2021/22 – THIRD
QUARTER REVIEW
Consideration was given to a report setting out the latest position on the 2021/22
Capital Programme and Prudential Indicators at the end of the third quarter.
COUNCIL RESOLVED -

(i)

That the revision to the capital programme be
approved.

(ii)

That the financing of the revised programme be
approved.

Page 6

(iii)

CL79

That it be noted that Cabinet confirms that the
capital expenditure and capital financing
requirement indicators have been revised in line
with the revised budget and that none of the
approved Prudential Indicators set for 2021/22
have been breached.

NOTICE OF MOTION
There were no motions submitted.

CL80

QUESTIONS
No questions were received.
Mayor……………………………………

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
COUNCIL MEETING
Thursday, 24 February 2022

PRESENT:

THE MAYOR COUNCILLOR D BURNETT (CHAIR)
Councillors: J Adams, Anderson, R Beadle, D Bradford, M Brain,
C Buckley, L Caffrey, M Charlton, B Clelland, P Craig, S Craig,
C Davison, S Dickie, Diston, K Dodds, C Donovan, A Douglas,
D Duggan, John Eagle, S Gallagher, M Gannon, A Geddes,
F Geddes, J Gibson, B Goldsworthy, M Goldsworthy, T Graham,
J Green, L Green, S Green, G Haley, M Hall, S Hawkins, H Kelly,
L Kirton, P Maughan, K McCartney, K McClurey, J McCoid,
J McElroy, E McMaster, M McNestry, R Mullen, B Oliphant, M Ord,
R Oxberry, I Patterson, Reay, D Robson, S Ronchetti, J Simpson,
J Turnbull, J Turner, J Wallace, R Waugh, H Weatherley and
K Wood

APOLOGIES: Councillors: W Dick, K Ferdinand, P Foy, H Haran, P McNally,
J Mohammed, C Ord and A Wheeler
CL81

HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT (HRA) AND HOUSING CAPITAL PROGRAMME
Consideration was given to the Housing Revenue Account budget for 2022/23, the
Housing Capital Programme for 2022/23 and the indicative programme for the
period 2023/24 – 2026/27.
COUNCIL RESOLVED -

CL82

(i)

That the Housing Revenue Account, as set out in
Appendix 2 of the report, be approved.

(ii)

That the Housing Capital Programme for the five years
2022/23 to 2026/27, as set out in Appendix 3 of the
report, be approved.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2022/23 - 2026/27
Consideration was given to the Capital Programme for the next five years to provide
significant investment within the borough to support the Council’s strategic approach
to make Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives.
COUNCIL RESOLVED -

(i)

That the Capital Programme for 2022/23 be
approved.

(ii)

That the provisional programmes for 2023/24 to
2026/27 be approved.

Page 9

(iii)

CL83

That the provisional capital financing for the
programme, as set out in appendix 3 of the report,
and the delegated authority to the Strategic Director,
Resources and Digital, to enter prudential borrowing
which is consistent with the requirements of the
Capital Programme and the Council’s Treasury
Management Strategy be noted.

FEES AND CHARGES - 2022/23
Consideration was given to the level of fees and charges across all Council services
for 2022/23.
COUNCIL RESOLVED -

CL84

(i)

That the fees and charges for 2022/23, as set out in
Appendix 2 of the report, be approved.

(ii)

That the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, be
authorised to make any necessary adjustments to
correct any errors in the schedule of Fees and
Charges.

BUDGET AND COUNCIL TAX LEVEL 2022/23
Consideration was given to the Budget and Council Tax level for 2022/23. As part of
the Council Tax setting process approval was sought for the prudential indicators
and Minimum Revenue Provision Statement.
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 20.4, a recorded vote was taken as
follows:
Councillors for the Recommendation:J Adams, D Bradford, M Brain, C Buckley, D Burnett, L Caffrey, M Charlton, B
Clelland, C Davison, S Dickie, K Dodds, C Donovan, A Douglas, J Eagle, S
Gallagher, M Gannon, A Geddes, F Geddes, J Gibson, B Goldsworthy, M
Goldsworthy, T Graham, J Green, L Green, S Green, G Haley, M Hall, H Kelly, L
Kirton, K McCartney, K McClurey, J McCoid, J McElroy, E McMaster, M McNestry, R
Mullen, B Oliphant, R Oxberry, J Reay, D Robson, S Ronchetti, J Simpson, J
Turnbull, J Turner, R Waugh, H Weatherley, K Wood
Councillors Against the Recommendation:V Anderson, R Beadle, P Craig, S Craig, P Diston, D Duggan, S Hawkins, P
Maughan, M Ord, I Patterson, J Wallace.

COUNCIL RESOLVED:
(1)

That Gateshead’s Band D council tax for 2022/23 is increased by 2.99%
(including a 1% adult social care Government charge) to £1,972.17.

(2)

That the revenue estimates of £254.304 million for 2022/23 be approved.

Page 10

(3)

That the extension of council tax hardship scheme be extended into 2022/23
using existing funds to reduce all working age Local Council Tax Support
recipients bills by £50 in 2022/23.

(4)

That the budgeted use of £29.239 million Earmarked Reserves in 2022/23 be
approved (comprising of £1.750 million budgeted use of strategic, £8.996 million
budgeted use of pandemic, £12.675 million ringfenced covid support to retained
business rates and £5.818 million budget sustainability).

(5)

That the proposed budgets including the indicative schools funding presented in
Appendix 2 be agreed.

(6)

That the outcome of initial budget consultation outlined in Appendix 4 be noted.

(7)

That the conclusions of the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, in respect
of the robustness of budget estimates and adequacy of reserves outlined in
Appendix 5 be noted.

(8)

That the prudential and treasury indicators set out in Appendix 7 of the report be
agreed.

(9)

That the method of calculating the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) for
2022/23 as set out in Appendix 8 of the report be approved.

(10)

That it be noted that at its meeting on 25 January 2022, Cabinet agreed the
following amounts for the year 2022/23 in accordance with regulations made
under Section 31B (3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 as amended
by the Localism Act 2011:(a) 52,660.9 being the amount calculated by the Council, in accordance with
regulation 3 of the Local Authorities (Calculation of Council Tax Base)
(England) Regulations 2012, as its Council Tax base for the year;
(b) 1,214.1 for Lamesley Parish being the amount calculated by the Council,
in accordance with regulation 6 of the Regulations, as the amount of its
Council Tax base for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to
which special items relate.

(11)

That the following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year
2022/23 in accordance with Sections 31A, 31B and 34 to 36 of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, as amended by the Localism Act 2011 (‘the
Act’):
(a) £614,685,003 being the aggregate total of the expenditure amounts,
which the Council estimates for the items, set out in Section 31A (2) of
the Act taking into account the precept issued by Lamesley Parish
Council
(b) (£510,816,169) being the aggregate total of the income amounts, which
the Council estimate for the items, set out in Section 31A (3) of the Act
(c) £103,868,834 being the amount by which the aggregate at (a) above
exceeds the aggregate at (b) above, calculated by the Council, in
accordance with Section 31A (4) of the Act, as its Council Tax

Page 11

requirement for the year including Lamesley Parish Council
(d) £1,972.4090 being the amount at (c) above, all divided by the amount at
(10)(a) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 31B
(1) of the Act, as the basic amount of its Council Tax for the year
including Lamesley Parish Council
(e) £12,467.00 being the aggregate amount of all special items (Lamesley
Parish Council) referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act
(f) £1,972.1723 being the amount at (d) less the result given by dividing the
amount at (e) above by the amount at (10)(e) above, calculated by the
Council, in accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the basic amount
of its Council Tax for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to
which no special item (Lamesley Parish Council) relates
(g) Part of the Council’s area: Lamesley Parish
£1,982.4408 being the amounts given by adding to the amount at (f)
above the amounts of the special item or items relating to dwellings in
those parts of the Council’s area mentioned above divided in each case
by the amount at (10)(b) above, calculated by the Council, in accordance
with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic amounts of its Council Tax for
the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which one or more
special items (Lamesley Parish Council) relate
(h)
Valuation
Band
A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H

Lamesley Parish
£
6.85
7.99
9.13
10.27
12.55
14.83
17.12
20.54

All other parts of the
Council’s area
£
1,314.79
1,533.91
1,753.04
1,972.17
2,410.44
2,848.70
3,286.96
3,944.34

being the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at (f) and (g) above
by the number which, in the proportion set out in Section 5(1) of the Act,
is applicable to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by
the number which in that proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in
valuation band D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section
36(1) of the Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in
respect of categories of dwellings listed in different valuation bands.
(12)

That it be noted that for the year 2022/23, the Police and Crime Commissioner
for Northumbria, and Tyne and Wear Fire and Rescue Authority have stated the
following amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section
40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for each of the categories of
dwellings shown below:-

Page 12

Valuation
Band
A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H
(13)

CL85

Tyne and Wear
Fire and Rescue
Authority
£
58.23
67.94
77.64
87.35
106.76
126.17
145.58
174.70

That, having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at (11)(h)
and (12) above, the Council in accordance with Section 30(2) of the Local
Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the following amounts as the
amounts of Council Tax for the year 2022/23 for each of the categories of
dwellings shown below:-

Valuation
Band
A
B
C
D
E
F
G
H
(14)

Police and Crime
Commissioner for
Northumbria
£
102.56
119.65
136.75
153.84
188.03
222.21
256.40
307.68

Lamesley
Parish
£
1,482.43
1,729.49
1,976.56
2,223.63
2,717.78
3,211.91
3,706.06
4,447.26

All other parts of the
Council’s area
£
1,475.58
1,721.50
1,967.43
2,213.36
2,705.23
3,197.08
3,688.94
4,426.72

That under Section 52ZB of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as
amended by the Localism Act 2011), the Council’s relevant basic amount of
council tax for 2022/23 is not excessive in accordance with the principles
determined under section 52ZC of the Act.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR APPOINTMENTS BEYOND 1 APRIL 2023
Consideration was given to a report seeking approval to opt into the national sectorled arrangement for the appointment of external auditors with effect from 1 April
2023.
COUNCIL RESOLVED -

That the proposal to opt-in to the sector-led option for the
appointment of external auditors for five financial years
commencing 1 April 2023 be approved.

Mayor……………………………………

Page 13

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5
COUNCIL MEETING
24 March 2022
THE CLEAN AIR PLAN FOR GATESHEAD AND NEWCASTLE
– JOINT COMMITTEE AND LEGAL ORDER
Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the establishment of an “Air
Quality Joint Committee” with Newcastle City Council.

2.

Time is critical in delivering compliance with the mandated air quality
standards and therefore it is necessary to take steps in advance of receiving
formal confirmation from Government that the Full Business Case is approved.

3.

The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating
their recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION
4.

It is recommended that Council agree to the establishment of an “Air Quality
Joint Committee” with Newcastle City Council to exercise both executive and
non-executive functions and also its membership as set out in the terms of
reference attached at Appendix 3 of the report.

Page 15

This page is intentionally left blank

REPORT TO CABINET
22 February 2022

TITLE OF REPORT:

The Clean Air Plan for Gateshead and Newcastle - Joint
Committee and Legal Order

REPORT OF:

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
Peter Udall Strategic Director, Economy, Innovation and
Growth

Purpose of the Report
1.

It is expected that central Government’s Joint Air Quality Unit will shortly agree
that the introduction of a Clean Air Zone Class C will deliver compliance with legal
limits for air quality in the shortest possible time. In order to bring the Clean Air
Zone into force, a number of subsequent decisions and actions are required.

2.

Cabinet is asked to make a number of decisions relating to the implementation
and operation of the Clean Air Zone. These include making the legal order for the
Clean Air Zone, maintaining a local register of exempt vehicles, entering into
agreements with the Joint Air Quality Unit and to establish a Joint Committee with
Newcastle City Council to manage the Clean Air Zone.

Background
3.

The Council is subject to the Environment Act 1995 (Feasibility Study for Nitrogen
Dioxide Compliance) Air Quality Direction 2017 and the Environment Act 1995
(Gateshead Council and Newcastle City Council) Air Quality Direction 2020, which
require action to be taken to secure compliance with air quality limits in the
shortest possible time.

4.

In September 2021, following referral by Cabinet, Full Council agreed to submit a
Full Business Case for the introduction of a Clean Air Zone Class C (“CAZ”) to the
Joint Air Quality Unit (“JAQU”).

5.

The introduction of the CAZ would charge buses, taxis, private hire vehicles, and
light and heavy goods vehicles, which do not meet national emissions standards,
a fee for each day they are inside the CAZ. The Full Business Case also
identified a funding package to support people affected, including significant
grants to upgrade and retrofit affected vehicles.

6.

Following submission of the Full Business Case to JAQU, officers have been
engaging with them and it is anticipated that the Government will shortly agree
that the Full Business Case will deliver compliance in the shortest possible time
and provide the remaining funding.

Page 17

Proposal
7.

This report sets out a number of the legal and administrative decisions which are
required to implement the CAZ. Time is critical in delivering compliance with the
mandated air quality standards and therefore it is necessary to take steps relating
to the introduction of the CAZ, in advance of receiving formal confirmation from
the Government that the Full Business Case is approved.

Recommendations
8.

It is recommended that Cabinet, subject to receipt of confirmation from the
Government that the Full Business Case is approved:
(i) Approve the joint making with the Newcastle City Council of the Newcastle
and Gateshead Clean Air Zone Charging Order 2022 (“the Charging Order”)
substantially in the form attached at Appendix 2 and delegate authority to the
Strategic Director Economy, Innovation and Growth, in consultation with the
Leader and the cabinet member for Environment and Transport, to agree any
changes to the Charging Order on behalf of Gateshead Council (and to note
that such changes would also need to be agreed by Newcastle City Council).
(ii) Authorise, in accordance with the Council’s constitution, the sealing and
dating of the Charging Order incorporating any changes to the version
provided at Appendix 2 which are made as in accordance with (i) above.
(iii) Delegate to Newcastle City Council the authority to determine the date that
charging pursuant to the Charging Order shall commence and thereafter
publish notice of such date following agreement with the Strategic Director
Economy, Innovation and Growth of the date.
(iv) Delegate functions to Newcastle City Council to undertake enforcement of the
Charging Order pursuant to The Road User Charging Schemes (Penalty
Charges, Adjudication and Enforcement) (England) Regulations 2013 and all
other enabling powers.
(v) Agree that Newcastle City Council shall maintain and administer the local
register which will identify non-chargeable vehicles for the purposes of Part 2
of Annex 2 and of Annex 4 of the Charging Order criteria for determining
applications for entry onto such local register.
(vi) Delegate to Newcastle City Council the distribution of funding for grants for
the CAZ in order to retrofit or upgrade potentially affected vehicles, in line with
the Full Business Case and funding received.
(vii) Authorise the entry into a joint working agreement with Newcastle City Council
and delegate authority to the Strategic Director Economy, Innovation and
Growth, in consultation with the Leader and cabinet member for Environment
and Transport, to agree the terms and provisions of such agreement.
(viii) Note that Newcastle City Council will enter into a CAZ Services Agreement
with the Government and authorise the entry into all necessary Data Sharing
Agreements with the Government, all such agreements to be on such terms
as shall be agreed by the Strategic Director Economy, Innovation and Growth,

Page 18

in consultation with the Leader and cabinet member for Environment and
Transport.
(ix) Subject also to the agreement of Full Council, agree to the establishment of
an “Air Quality Joint Committee” with Newcastle City Council to exercise both
executive and non-executive functions as set out the terms of reference
attached at Appendix 3 and to note that Full Council shall, with the agreement
of Cabinet, make appointments to such Joint Committee.
(x)

9.

Note that decisions are also being taken by Newcastle City Council where
actions are being required to be taken jointly, in relation to the delegation of
enforcement functions and in relation to the setting up of the Air Quality Joint
Committee.

For the following reasons:
(i)

To put in place the legal and administrative decisions which are required to
implement the CAZ.

(ii)

Time is critical in delivering compliance with the legal air quality standards
and therefore it is necessary to take steps relating to the introduction of the
CAZ, in advance of receiving formal confirmation from the Government that
the Full Business Case is approved.

CONTACT: Anneliese Hutchinson extension: 3881

Page 19

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

The proposals in this report are consistent with the Council priorities and the
overall strategic approach for Gateshead as set out in “Making Gateshead a Place
Where Everyone Thrives” and its policy objectives. In particular, ‘Put people and
families at the heart of everything we do’ and ‘Work together and fight for a better
future for Gateshead’. They also support the Core Strategy and Urban Core Plan,
and the aims and objectives of the North East Transport Plan.

2.

Outdoor air pollution is a major risk to human health. As outlined in prior reports to
Cabinet, based on national estimates, poor air quality is considered to be
responsible for hundreds of deaths each year across Newcastle and Gateshead.
The main cause of roadside air pollution, including nitrogen dioxide, is road
transport, which also has wider impacts on public health and is a significant
contributor to carbon emissions and climate change.

3.

The Council is subject to the requirements of the Environment Act 1995
(Feasibility Study for Nitrogen Dioxide Compliance) Air Quality Direction 2017 and
the Environment Act 1995 (Gateshead Council and Newcastle City Council) Air
Quality Direction 2020, which require action to be taken to secure compliance with
air quality limits in the shortest possible time.
Background

4.

In October 2021, following referral by Cabinet, Full Council agreed to submit a Full
Business Case for the introduction of a Clean Air Zone Class C (“CAZ”) to the
Joint Air Quality Unit (“JAQU”).

5.

The introduction of the CAZ would charge Buses, taxis, private hire vehicles, and
light and heavy goods vehicles which do not meet national emissions standards a
fee for each day they are inside the CAZ. The Full Business Case also identified
a funding package to support people affected, including significant grants to
upgrade and retrofit affected vehicles.

6.

Following submission of the Full Business Case to JAQU, officers have been
engaging with them and it is anticipated that the Government will shortly agree
that the Full Business Case will deliver compliance in the shortest possible time
and provide the remaining funding.

7.

This report sets out a number of the legal and administrative decisions which are
required to implement the CAZ. Time is critical in delivering compliance with the
legal air quality standards and therefore it is necessary to take steps relating to
the introduction of the CAZ, in advance of receiving formal confirmation from the
Government that the Full Business Case is approved.

8.

The Charging Order is the legal instrument that allows the Council to implement a
CAZ and introduce charges for non-compliant vehicles entering or passing
through it. The Charging Order has been drafted by external legal consultants and
in accordance with the requirements of the Transport Act 2000. Approval is being
sought to exercise the powers conferred on the Council by the Transport Act 2000

Page 20

and all other powers enabling it to make the Charging Order. As the roads which
are subject to the Charging Order are located in Newcastle and Gateshead, the
Charging Order has to be made jointly by the two Councils.
9.

Should Cabinet not approve the making of the Charging Order, it is unlikely that
clean air compliance will be achieved in the shortest possible time, with a
resultant risk of action being taken against the Council by central Government.

10.

The draft Charging Order is provided as Appendix 2 to this report and includes:

the boundary of the CAZ;

the scope of vehicles covered;

required emissions standards;

charges for non-compliant vehicles;

exemptions (temporary and permanent); and

penalty charges for non-payment

11.

Newcastle City Council will be undertaking enforcement on behalf of both
Councils and it will be carried out in a similar way to Bus Lane Enforcement, using
existing and new staff. To ensure this can happen this report recommends
approval of delegation of all its functions in respect of the CAZ, to undertake
enforcement to Newcastle City Council.

12.

While some exemptions will be maintained nationally, a local exemption list
(known as the local register) will be administered by Newcastle City Council. This
will have a range of permanent and temporary local exemptions.

13.

The effective operation of the CAZ also requires Newcastle City Council authority
to enter into agreements with JAQU as part of the national Clean Air Zone service
on behalf of both councils. This service maintains the national payment database,
links with DVLA and national exemptions. In order to use this, Newcastle City
Council will be required to enter into a Services Agreement with JAQU. This will
set out the expectations and requirements of both parties in terms of costs,
service levels and technical specifications. One or more Data Sharing
Agreements will also be needed with JAQU to govern the flows of data between
the councils, the DVLA and central payment mechanisms. This is required due to
the use of DVLA information to check payment and registration plate details.

14.

As the CAZ covers areas of both Newcastle and Gateshead, it is proposed to set
up a Joint Committee to make certain decisions in relation to the CAZ and to
determine how any surplus or deficit arising from the Charging Order will be dealt
with. The Joint Committee will exercise a mixture of Executive Functions (those
matters/functions relating to the Charging Order) and Non-Executive Functions
(those matters/functions relating to the management of Air Quality) and therefore
its establishment will also need a decision from Full Council.

15.

The Charging Order is expected to be launched into operation in July 2022. The
funding support for people and businesses are expected to be launched early in
2022.

Page 21

Consultation
16.

All necessary consultation in relation to the making of the Charging Order has
been undertaken and no inquiry is considered necessary.

17.

The charging scheme being introduced by the Charging Order will not come into
force before 14th July 2022. At least 28 days advance notice of its coming into
operation will be given to the public by press notice.

18.

In preparing this report, consultations have taken place with the Leader, Deputy
Leader and portfolio holder for Environment and Transport.
Alternative Options

19.

The legal and administrative decisions set out are required to implement the CAZ.
Time is critical in delivering compliance with the legal air quality standards and
therefore it is necessary to take steps relating to the introduction of the CAZ, in
advance of receiving formal confirmation from the Government that the Full
Business Case is approved.

20.

Failure to achieve compliance with air quality standards as defined in EU
directives, which have also been incorporated into UK law exposes the two
Councils to legal risks.

21.

The primary measure of success will be through the reduction in exposure to air
pollutants of the residents of Newcastle, Gateshead and across the region. While
a principal focus through this work is the attainment of pollution levels below the
legal limit value thresholds as soon as possible, it must be reiterated that for some
pollutants (such as particulate matter) there is no safe level of exposure and other
pollutants such as particulate matter also cause significant public health issues.

22.

The Full Business Case contained a “Monitoring and Evaluation Plan” through
which the authorities will evaluate the CAZ.

23.

The Joint Air Quality Unit has also commissioned a comprehensive programme of
national monitoring and evaluation for Clean Air Zones. Newcastle and
Gateshead will be participating and providing data for this work.

24.

The performance of the CAZ will be kept under review and the authorities are
required to consider alternative options, including extending or upgrading any
CAZ to incorporate private vehicles if compliance with air quality values is not
achieved.
Implications of Recommended Option
Fairness

25.

The CAZ could have a negative impact on users of taxis and private hire vehicles
and bus services, as well as those who make use of light and heavy goods
vehicles. We will attempt to mitigate these impacts through the award of grants
and the temporary exemptions from the Clean Air Zone.
Economy

Page 22

26.

Government guidance requires that economic impacts of the proposed measures
include the cost or benefit of changes in greenhouse gas emissions, the cost of
inconvenience to residents and businesses of changing travel patterns due to
charging, and the economic benefits of improved air quality.

27.

Using standard appraisal methodology, the recommended option has a lower
economic impact compared to CAZ D or a CAZ C with traffic restrictions.

28.

Resources:
a)
Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
confirms that there are no financial implications arising from this report.
b)

Human Resources Implications – There are no human resources
implications.

c)

Property Implications - No property implications have been identified.

29.

Risk Management Implication - Poor air quality is impacting on people’s lives
and health and needs to be addressed as the key risk to this project. We have
seen a number of improvements in recent years but need to continue to do so
through this plan and engaging with people about their travel choices. This is
linked to wider work the council is undertaking on climate change and investment
into our transport networks.

30.

A further fundamental risk is failure to achieve compliance with air quality
standards as defined in EU directives, which have also been incorporated into UK
law. Continued failure to achieve compliance exposes the council to legal risks.

31.

The Charging Order is the legal instrument that practically implements the Full
Business Case for the CAZ. It has been drafted in accordance with statutory
powers pursuant to Part III and Schedule 12 of the Transport Act 2000, The Road
User Charging Schemes (Penalty Charges, Adjudication and Enforcement)
(England) Regulations 2013, and all other enabling powers. Equivalent decisions
will need to be made by Newcastle City Council in order for the Charging Order to
be made.

32.

The joint arrangements proposed through the setting up of the Air Quality Joint
Committee which Newcastle City Council are in accordance with the provisions of
the Council’s Charter and sections 101 of the Local Government Act 1972, section
9EB of the Local Government Act 2000 and the Local Authorities (Arrangement of
the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012.

33.

Equality and Diversity Implications - The Council fulfilled its duties under the
Public Sector Equality Duty by undertaking an integrated impact assessment on
the Charging Clean Air Zone in support of the full business case.

34.

Crime and Disorder Implications – None

Page 23

35.

Health Implications – The proposed CAZ delivers compliance with Nitrogen
Dioxide limits in the same timeframe as the CAZ D and CAZ C with traffic
restrictions (2022) and more quickly than a ‘Do Minimum’ case without a CAZ.

36.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - The recommended
option leads to lower carbon emissions than the preferred option identified in 2020
and consequent relatively positive impacts in terms of the Council’s commitment
to achieving net zero compared to other options.

37.

These impacts occur due to a reduction in the total number of trips made, as well
as upgrading vehicles to newer models, which emit lower levels of carbon.

38.

It is important to note that the Government’s Clean Air Zone Framework, which
does not charge older petrol vehicles, could lead to some users switching to older
petrol vehicles with greater greenhouse gas emissions.

39.

Human Rights Implications – None.

40.

Ward Implications - All wards will be affected.

Background Information
41.

The DEFRA Air Quality Plan July 2017 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/air-quality-plan-for-nitrogen-dioxideno2-in-uk-2017

42.

DEFRA Clean Air Zone Framework https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/air-quality-clean-air-zone-frameworkfor-england

43.

Minutes of Gateshead Council, 23/1/20, Approval of Breathe: The Clean Air Plan
for Gateshead, Newcastle and North Tyneside
http://democracy.gateshead.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=2373

44.

Minutes of Gateshead Cabinet, 20/7/21, Breathe: The Clean Air Plan for
Newcastle and Gateshead, Update Report Agenda for Cabinet on Tuesday, 20th
July, 2021, 10.00 am Gateshead Council

45.

Agenda and minutes of Gateshead Cabinet 14/9/21

Page 24

TRANSPORT ACT 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead Clean Air Zone Charging Order 2022
Made
Coming into force

In accordance with articles 1 and 2

ARRANGEMENT OF INSTRUMENT
THE ORDER
1.
2.

Citation and commencement
The Scheme

SCHEDULE TO THE ORDER
NEWCASTLE AND GATESHEAD CLEAN AIR ZONE
CHARGING SCHEME
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.
7.
8.
9.
10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.

Interpretation
Designation of roads in respect of which charges are imposed
Relevant vehicles
Compliant vehicles
Non-chargeable vehicles
Emissions standards required of compliant vehicles
Imposition of charges
Amount of charge payable by purchase of a licence
Payment of charges
Register of compliant and non-chargeable vehicles
Refunds
Penalty charge for non-payment of charge
Immobilisation of vehicles
Removal, storage and disposal of vehicles
Duration of scheme
Transitional provisions – temporary non-chargeable vehicles
Ten and five year plans for net proceeds

ANNEXES
1.
2.
3.
4.

Deposited plans
Non-chargeable vehicles
Emissions standards for compliant vehicles
Transitional provisions – temporary non-chargeable vehicles

Page 25

5.

Part 1 – the Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne’s and the Borough Council of Gateshead’s
general plan for applying their shares of the proceeds of this Scheme during the opening five year
period
Part 2 – the Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne’s and the Borough Council of Gateshead’s
detailed programme for applying their shares of the proceeds of this Scheme during the opening five
year period

Whereas—
(1)

It appears to the Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne and the Borough Council of Gateshead
desirable, for the purposes of facilitating the achievement of local transport policies of the Council
of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne, the Borough Council of Gateshead, the North East Combined
Authority and the North of Tyne Combined Authority contained in the North East Transport Plan,
that they should make the following Order:

(2)

Appropriate persons have been consulted in accordance with section 170 of the Transport Act 2000:

Now, therefore, the Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne and the Borough Council of Gateshead, in
exercise of the powers conferred on them by Part III and Schedule 12 of the Transport Act 2000, Parts 2 and
6 of The Road User Charging Schemes (Penalty Charges, Adjudication and Enforcement) (England)
Regulations 2013, and of all other powers enabling them in that behalf, hereby make the following Order:—
Citation and commencement
1. This Order is made on the
day of
2022 and comes into force on
the same day and may be cited as the “Newcastle and Gateshead Clean Air Zone Charging Order 2022”.
The Scheme
2.—(1) The Scheme in the Schedule to this Order (“the Scheme”) has effect in accordance with
paragraphs (2) and (3).
The Scheme, other than article 7 of the Scheme, comes into force on the day following the day on
which this Order is made.
Article 7 of the Scheme shall come into force on such date, not being earlier than 14th July 2022, as
may be appointed by the Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne in accordance with paragraph (4).
The Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne and the Borough Council of Gateshead acting jointly
shall cause to be published in one or more newspapers circulating in the Newcastle and Gateshead areas
notice of the appointment of a date under paragraph (3), and the date so appointed by the Council of the City
of Newcastle upon Tyne shall not be earlier than the expiration of 28 days after the publication of the said
notice.
The notice referred to in paragraph (4) shall include the following particulars:
(a)

the date appointed under paragraph (3);

(b)

the general effect of article 7 of the Scheme coming into force on that date; and

(c)

details of where this Order may be inspected and the times when it may be inspected.

THE COMMON SEAL of
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
NEWCASTLE
UPON TYNE

THE COMMON SEAL of

was hereunto affixed in

was hereunto affixed in

the presence of:

the presence of:

THE BOROUGH COUNCIL OF
GATESHEAD

2

Page 26

SCHEDULE TO THE ORDER

Article 2

NEWCASTLE AND GATESHEAD CLEAN AIR ZONE CHARGING
SCHEME
Interpretation
1.—(1) In this Scheme—
(a)

“1994 Act” means the Vehicle Excise and Registration Act 1994;

(b)

“alternative fuel vehicle” means a positive ignition vehicle constructed or retrofitted so as to be
capable of being powered by liquid petroleum gas, compressed natural gas or bio-ethanol;

(c)

“approved retrofit scheme” means the Clean Vehicle Retrofit Accreditation Scheme and such
other accreditation scheme or schemes as may from time to time be specified by the Council in
accordance with the requirements of the Central Clean Air Zone Service;

(d)

“business” includes a trade, profession or employment and includes an activity carried on by a
body of persons, whether corporate or unincorporated;

(e)

“business premises” means premises that the Council is satisfied, by the production of such
evidence as it may reasonably require, are permanently occupied for the purposes of carrying on
a business;

(f)

“category” in relation to a vehicle shall be construed in accordance with the vehicle categories set
out in Part A of Annex II to Council Directive 2007/46/EC;

(g)

“Central Clean Air Zone Service” means the national body through which road user charges
pursuant to clean air zone charging schemes may be paid;

(h)

“charge” means a charge imposed by article 7 except to the extent that this Scheme otherwise
provides or that context otherwise requires;

(i)

“charging day” means the period of twenty four hours from midnight to midnight;

(j)

“Class L” vehicles are those falling within class L(a) and class L(b) as specified in Schedule 1 of
the Vehicle Classes Regulations;

(k)

“Class M1” vehicles are those falling within class M1(a) and class M1(b) as specified in Schedule 1
of the Vehicle Classes Regulations;

(l)

“Class M2” vehicles are those falling within class M2(a) and class M2(b) as specified in Schedule 1
of the Vehicle Classes Regulations;

(m) “Class M3” vehicles are those falling within class M3(a) and class M3(b) as specified in Schedule 1
of the Vehicle Classes Regulations;
(n)

“Class N1” vehicles are those falling within class N1(a) and class N1(b) as specified in Schedule 1
of the Vehicle Classes Regulations;

(o)

“Class N2” vehicles are those falling within class N2(a) and class N2(b) as specified in Schedule 1
of the Vehicle Classes Regulations;

(p)

“Class N3” vehicles are those falling within class N3(a) and class N3(b) as specified in Schedule 1
of the Vehicle Classes Regulations;

(q)

“Clean Air Zone” means the area shown edged dark blue and shaded light blue on the Clean Air
Zone Plan the boundaries of which are defined on the Clean Air Zone Boundary Plans;

(r)

“Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan” means a deposited plan specified in Part 2 of Annex 1 defining
part of the boundary of the Clean Air Zone by showing the boundary in dark blue and areas within
the Clean Air Zone shaded light blue;

(s)

“Clean Air Zone Key Plan” means the plan corresponding with sheet B of Part 1 of Annex 1;

(t)

“Clean Air Zone Plan” means the plan corresponding with sheet A of Part 1 of Annex 1;

(u)

“commencement date” means the date appointed under article 2(3) of this Order;

Page
3 27

(v)

“compliant vehicle” has the meaning given by article 4;

(w)

“compression ignition engine” means an internal combustion engine in which combustion is
initiated by heat produced from compression of the air in the cylinder or combustion space;

(x)

“compression ignition vehicle” means a vehicle powered wholly by a compression ignition
engine;

(y)

“Council” means the Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne;

(z)

“deposited plans” means the portfolio of plans comprising the Clean Air Zone Plan, the Clean Air
Zone Key Plan and the Clean Air Zone Boundary Plans—
(i) deposited at the offices of the Council at Civic Centre, Newcastle upon Tyne, NE1 8QH; and
(ii) consisting of the plans bearing the sheet numbers and dates specified in Annex 1 to the Scheme;

(aa) “designated road” means one of the designated roads specified in article 2(2);
(bb) “electric vehicle” means a vehicle—
(i) which is an exempt vehicle for the purposes of the 1994 Act in accordance with paragraph 20G
(electrically propelled vehicles) of Schedule 2 to that Act; or
(ii) which the Central Clean Air Zone Service is satisfied operates wholly by means of an
electrically powered propulsion system that draws its motive power from either a hydrogen
fuel cell or from a battery that can be fully recharged from an external source of electricity and
has tailpipe CO2 emissions of 0 grams per kilometre;
(cc) “Enforcement Regulations” means the Road User Charging Schemes (Penalty Charges,
Adjudication and Enforcement) (England) Regulations 2013;
(dd) “ESC test” means a test as described in section 2.12 of Annex I to Council Directive 88/77/EEC
and carried out using the procedure described in Appendix 1, Annex III of that Directive;
(ee) “ETC test” means a test as described in section 2.14 of Annex I to Council Directive 88/77/EEC
carried out using the procedure described in Appendices 2 and 3, Annex III of that Directive or a
test carried out by means of a chassis dynamometer using a test cycle that the Central Clean Air
Zone Service is satisfied replicates so far as practicable the standard ETC test cycle;
(ff)

“Euro 4” means the emissions limit values set out in the rows corresponding with Category B in
the first of the tables at section 5.3.1.4 of Annex I to Council Directive 70/220/EEC;

(gg)

“Euro 6” means the emissions limit values set out in Table 2 of Annex I to Commission
Regulation 715/2007 of 20 June 2007;

(hh) “Euro IV” means the emissions limit values set out in Row B1 of Table 1 and Table 2 of section
6.2.1 of Annex I to Council Directive 88/77/EEC;
(ii)

“Euro VI” means the emissions limit values set out in the table in Annex I to Commission
Regulation 595/2009 of 18 June 2009;

(jj)

“hybrid vehicle” means a vehicle that operates partly by means of an electrically powered
propulsion system that draws motive power from a battery and partly by means of an internal
combustion engine;

(kk) “licence” means a licence purchased under article 9;
(ll)

“local private hire vehicle” means a private hire vehicle granted a licence under section 48 of the
Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 by the Council, the Borough Council of
Gateshead or North Tyneside Council;

(mm) “local register” means the register of non-chargeable vehicles to be maintained by the Council
under article 10;
(nn) “local road” means any road in respect of which Council or the Borough Council of Gateshead is
the local traffic authority;
(oo) “local taxi” means a taxi granted a licence under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847 as amended,
by the Council, the Borough Council of Gateshead or North Tyneside Council;
(pp) “maximum mass” in relation to a vehicle means the technically permissible maximum laden mass
as specified by the manufacturer;

4

Page 28

(qq) “national register” means the register of compliant and non-chargeable vehicles to be maintained
by the Central Clean Air Zone Service under article 10;
(rr)

“NEDC” means the drive cycle defined in Annex 4a of Regulation No. 83 of the Economic
Commission for Europe of the United Nations;

(ss) “non-chargeable vehicle” is to be construed in accordance with articles 5 and 16 and Annexes 2
and 4;
(tt)

“NOx” means oxides of nitrogen;

(uu) “penalty charge” and “penalty charge notice” have the meaning given in Regulation 2(1) of the
Enforcement Regulations;
(vv) “positive ignition engine” means an internal combustion engine in which combustion is initiated
by a localised high temperature in the combustion chamber produced by energy supplied from a
source external to the engine;
(ww) “positive ignition vehicle” means a vehicle powered wholly by a positive ignition engine;
(xx) “private hire vehicle” has the meaning given in section 80 of the Local Government
(Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976;
(yy) “reference mass” in relation to a vehicle means the mass of the vehicle with bodywork and, in the
case of a towing vehicle, with coupling device, if fitted by the manufacturer, in running order, or
mass of the chassis or chassis with cab, without bodywork and/or coupling device if the
manufacturer does not fit the bodywork and/or coupling device (including liquids and tools, and
spare wheel if fitted, and with the fuel tank filled to 90% and the other liquid containing systems,
except those for used water, to 100% of the capacity specified by the manufacturer), increased by
a uniform mass of 100 kilograms;
(zz)

“registered keeper” means—
(i) in relation to a vehicle registered in the United Kingdom, the person in whose name the vehicle
is registered under the 1994 Act; or
(ii) in relation to any other vehicle, the person by whom the vehicle is kept;

(aaa) “relevant vehicle” has the meaning given by article 3;
(bbb) “retrofitted” means adapted so as to meet the emissions standards required of a compliant vehicle
in accordance with an approved retrofit scheme;
(ccc) “sole trader” means an individual who is self-employed and registered for self-assessment within
the meaning of section 9 of the Taxes Management Act 1970;
(ddd) “taxi” means a vehicle licensed as a hackney carriage under the Town Police Clauses Act 1847
as amended;
(eee) “type-approved” is to be construed in accordance with article 3 of Council Directive 2007/46/EC;
(fff) “Type I test” means a test carried out in accordance with Annex III of Council Directive 692/2008
applying the NEDC or the appropriate WLTC test cycle;
(ggg) “Vehicle Classes Regulations” means the Road User Charging and Workplace Parking Levy
(Classes of Motor Vehicles) (England) Regulations 2001;
(hhh) “WHSC” means the World Harmonised Steady state Driving Cycle as defined in Regulation No.
49 of the Economic Commission for Europe of the United Nations;
(iii) “WHTC” means the World Transient Steady state Driving cycle as defined in Regulation No. 49
of the Economic Commission for Europe of the United Nations; and
(jjj) “WLTC” means the Worldwide Light-Duty Test Cycles as defined in Annex 1 of Global
Technical Regulation No. 15 of the Economic Commission for Europe of the United Nations.
In this Scheme—
(a)

a reference in any provision to an instrument of the European Community is to that instrument—
(i) as amended at the commencement date, if the instrument concerned is in force at that date; or,
(ii) as amended at the date of its repeal, if that instrument has been repealed before the
commencement date;

Page
5 29

(b)

a reference in any provision to an authorised person is to a person authorised by the Council for
the purposes of that provision and different persons may be authorised for the purposes of
different provisions; and

(c)

where a person has been authorised to act on behalf of the Council in relation to any matter a
reference to the Council is taken to include a reference to that person.

Designation of roads in respect of which charges are imposed
2.—(1) Charges are imposed by this Scheme in respect of the designated roads.
The designated roads are all local roads within the Clean Air Zone.
Relevant vehicles
3.—(1) A relevant vehicle is a vehicle of a Class and type specified in paragraph (2) that is not—
(a)

a compliant vehicle; or

(b)

a non-chargeable vehicle.

The vehicles specified for the purpose of paragraph (1) are—
(a)

taxis and private hire vehicles of Class M1; and

(b)

all vehicles of Class L, Class M2, Class M3, Class N1, Class N2 and Class N3.

Compliant vehicles
4. A vehicle is a compliant vehicle if—
(a)

the vehicle meets the standards required of a compliant vehicle for the purposes of this Scheme;
and

(b)

particulars of the vehicle are for the time being entered in the national register.

Non-chargeable vehicles
5. Annex 2 to this Scheme, which specifies categories of non-chargeable vehicles, has effect.
Emissions standards required of compliant vehicles
6. A vehicle meets the standards required of a compliant vehicle for the purposes of this Scheme if the
Central Clean Air Zone Service is satisfied that the vehicle is—
(a)

an electric vehicle;

(b)

a hybrid vehicle;

(c)

an alternative fuel vehicle;

(d)

a positive ignition vehicle that meets the standards specified for that vehicle in Table 1 of Annex
3 (Euro 4/IV Standards For Positive Ignition Vehicles); or

(e)

a compression ignition vehicle that meets the standards specified for that vehicle in Table 2 of
Annex 3 (Euro 6/VI Standards For Compression Ignition Vehicles).

Imposition of charges
7.—(1) Subject to the following provisions of this Scheme, a charge of an amount specified in article
8(1) is imposed in respect of any relevant vehicle of Class M3, Class N2 or Class N3, for each charging day
on which it is at any time used on one or more designated roads.
Subject to the following provisions of this Scheme, a charge of an amount specified in article 8(2) is
imposed in respect of any relevant vehicle of Class L, Class M1, Class M2 or Class N1 for each charging day
on which it is at any time used on one or more designated roads.

6

Page 30

Amount of charge payable by purchase of a licence
8.—(1) The amount of a charge imposed by article 7(1) is £50 per charging day.
The amount of a charge imposed by article 7(2) is—
(a)

£12.50 per charging day; or

(b)

in the case of a licence for a period of 7 consecutive charging days in respect of a local taxi or
local private hire vehicle, £50.

Payment of charges
9.—(1) A charge imposed by article 7 must be paid by the purchase of a licence in accordance with the
provisions of this article.
A licence must be issued in respect of a particular vehicle.
A licence may be purchased for one of the following periods—
(a)

a single charging day;

(b)

in the case of a licence in respect of a local taxi or local private hire vehicle, a period of 7
consecutive charging days.

A vehicle referred to in paragraph (2) must be identified by its registration mark, and—
(a)

the purchaser of a licence must specify the registration mark of the vehicle in respect of which
that charge is paid;

(b)

a licence will not be valid in respect of any vehicle having a registration mark different from the
mark so specified.

A licence for a single charging day may only be purchased—
(a)

on the charging day concerned;

(b)

on any of the first six charging days immediately following that charging day; or

(c)

on a day falling within a period of six charging days immediately preceding that charging day.

A licence for a period of 7 consecutive charging days may only be purchased—
(a)

on the first charging day of the period concerned;

(b)

on the charging day immediately following that charging day; or

(c)

on a day falling within a period of six charging days immediately preceding that charging day.

Charges imposed by this Scheme must be paid by such means as the Council may, in accordance with
the requirements of the Central Clean Air Zone Service, specify on its website as being acceptable.
Registers of compliant and non-chargeable vehicles
10.—(1) The Council will maintain the local register which will identify non-chargeable vehicles for the
purposes of Part 2 of Annex 2 and Annex 4.
The Central Clean Air Zone Service will maintain the national register which will identify compliant
vehicles and non-chargeable vehicles for the purposes of article 4 and Part 1 of Annex 2.
An application to enter particulars of a vehicle in the local or national register—
(a)

must include all such information as the Council or the Central Clean Air Zone Service
respectively may reasonably require; and

(b)

must be made by such means as the Council or the Central Clean Air Zone Service respectively
may accept.

If the Council or the Central Clean Air Zone Service respectively is satisfied that a vehicle—
(a)

complies with the standards required of a compliant vehicle; or

(b)

falls within a class of non-chargeable vehicle,

it will enter particulars of the vehicle in the relevant register.

Page
7 31

If the Council or the Central Clean Air Zone Service respectively is satisfied that a vehicle, particulars
of which are entered in the relevant register, no longer—
(a)

complies with the standards required of a compliant vehicle; or

(b)

falls within a class of non-chargeable vehicle,

it may remove the particulars of the vehicle from the relevant register.
Where the registered keeper of a vehicle, particulars of which are entered in the local or national
register, is aware that the vehicle has ceased or will cease to—
(a)

comply with the standards required of a compliant vehicle; or

(b)

fall within a class of non-chargeable vehicle,

the registered keeper must notify the Council or the Central Clean Air Zone Service respectively of the fact
and the Council or the Central Clean Air Zone Service respectively may remove the particulars of the vehicle
from the relevant register forthwith, or from the date notified to the Council or the Central Clean Air Zone
Service respectively as the date on which it will cease to be such a vehicle.
Nothing in this article prevents the making of a new application under paragraph (2) for particulars of
a vehicle to be entered in the relevant register after they have been removed from it in accordance with any
provision of this article.
Refunds
11.—(1) The purchaser of a licence in respect of a charge imposed under article 7 may surrender the
licence and, subject to any requirements of the Central Clean Air Zone Service, obtain a refund in
accordance with the following provisions of this article.
An application for a refund must be made before the charging day to which the licence relates and in
such manner as the Council may, in accordance with any requirements of the Central Clean Air Zone Service,
specify on its website.
An application for a refund must be accompanied by such information as the Council may, in
accordance with any requirements of the Central Clean Air Zone Service, specify on its website.
The amount of a refund for a charge imposed under article 7 will be the charge paid for the licence,
less £2.50.
Penalty charge for non-payment of charge
12.—(1) A penalty charge will be payable, in addition to the charge imposed under article 7, for each
charging day on which—
(a)

a relevant vehicle has been used on a designated road in circumstances in which a charge is
imposed by article 7; and

(b)

that charge has not been paid in full in the manner in which and within the time by which it is
required to be paid by article 9.

A penalty charge payable by virtue of paragraph (1) must be paid within the period (“the payment
period”) of 28 days beginning with the date on which a penalty charge notice is served under regulation 7 of
the Enforcement Regulations and in a manner specified in the penalty charge notice.
The amount of a penalty charge payable in accordance with paragraph (1) is £120 but, if the penalty
charge is paid before the end of the fourteenth day of the payment period, the amount will be reduced by one
half to £60.
Where a charge certificate is issued in accordance with regulation 17(1) of the Enforcement
Regulations, the amount of the penalty charge to which it relates will be increased by one half to £180.
Immobilisation of vehicles
13.—(1) Provided that—
(a)

none of the circumstances in paragraph (2) of Regulation 25 of the Enforcement Regulations
apply; and
8

Page 32

(b)

the conditions in paragraph (3) of that Regulation apply,

an authorised person may immobilise a vehicle in accordance with paragraphs (4) and (5) of that
Regulation.
A vehicle to which an immobilisation device has been fixed in accordance with the provisions of this
Scheme —
(a)

may be released only by or under the direction of an authorised person; and

(b)

subject to paragraph (a), will be released—
(i) if all outstanding charges under article 7 are paid;
(ii) if all outstanding penalty charges are paid; and
(iii) if a penalty charge of £70 for the release of the vehicle from the immobilisation device is so
paid.

Removal, storage and disposal of vehicles
14.—(1) Provided Regulation 27(1)(a) or (b) of the Enforcement Regulations is satisfied, an authorised
person may remove a vehicle and deliver it to a custodian for storage.
The custodian may dispose of the vehicle and its contents in the circumstances described in, and subject
to the provisions of, Regulation 28 of the Enforcement Regulations.
Where a vehicle has been removed and delivered into the custody of a custodian in accordance with
paragraph (1) the Council or the custodian may (whether or not any claim is made under Regulation 30 or
31 of the Enforcement Regulations) recover from the person who was the keeper of the vehicle when the
vehicle was removed—
(a)

all outstanding charges under article 7;

(b)

all penalty charges that are outstanding in relation to the vehicle;

(c)

a penalty charge of £200 for its removal;

(d)

a penalty charge of £40 for each complete day or part of a day on which it has been held by the
Council or a custodian; and

(e)

if the vehicle has been disposed of, a penalty charge of £70 for its disposal.

Duration of scheme
15. This Scheme will remain in force indefinitely.
Transitional provisions – temporary non-chargeable vehicles
16. Annex 4 to this Scheme which contains transitional provisions specifying classes of temporary nonchargeable vehicles has effect.
Ten and five year plans for net proceeds
17.—(1) Part 1 of Annex 5 to this Scheme constitutes the general plan, under paragraph 10(1)(a) of
Schedule 12 to the Transport Act 2000, for the application of the Council’s and the Borough Council of
Gateshead’s share of the net proceeds of this Scheme during the opening ten year period.
Part 2 of Annex 5 to this Scheme constitutes the detailed programme, under paragraph 10(1)(b) of
Schedule 12 to the Transport Act 2000, for the application of the Council’s and the Borough Council of
Gateshead’s share of the net proceeds of this Scheme during the opening five year period.

Page
9 33

ANNEX 1 TO THE SCHEME

Article 1(1)

DEPOSITED PLANS
PART 1 – CLEAN AIR ZONE PLAN AND KEY PLAN

(1)

(2)

(3)

Sheet

Plan title

Date

A

Clean Air Zone Plan

04/02/2022

B

Clean Air Zone Key Plan

04/02/2022

PART 2 – CLEAN AIR ZONE BOUNDARY PLANS

(1)

(2)

Title & Sheet No.

Date

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 1

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 2

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 3

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 4

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 5

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 6

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 7

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 8

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 9

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 10

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 11

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 12

04/02/2022

Clean Air Zone Boundary Plan, Sheet 13

04/02/2022

10

Page 34

ANNEX 2 TO THE SCHEME

Article 5

NON-CHARGEABLE VEHICLES
PART 1 – VEHICLES ENTERED IN THE NATIONAL REGISTER
Historic vehicles
1. A vehicle is a non-chargeable vehicle if it is an exempt vehicle for the purposes of the 1994 Act in
accordance with paragraph 1A(1) of Schedule 2 to that Act and particulars of the vehicle are for the time
being entered in the national register.
Military vehicles
2. A vehicle is a non-chargeable vehicle if it belongs to any of Her Majesty’s forces or is in use for the
purposes of any of those forces and particulars of the vehicle are for the time being entered in the national
register.
Vehicles for disabled people
3. A vehicle which is an exempt vehicle for the purposes of the 1994 Act by virtue of it falling within
paragraphs 19 or 20 (vehicles for disabled people) of Schedule 2 to that Act is a non-chargeable vehicle
provided particulars of the vehicle are for the time being entered in the national register.
PART 2 – VEHICLES ENTERED IN THE LOCAL REGISTER
Emergency service vehicles
4.—(1) A qualifying emergency service vehicle is a non-chargeable vehicle provided particulars of the
vehicle are for the time being entered in the local register.
A vehicle is a qualifying emergency service vehicle if the Council is satisfied, by the production of
such evidence as it may reasonably require, that—
(a)

it is an exempt vehicle for the purposes of the 1994 Act by virtue of it falling within any of the
definitions of exempt vehicles in the following paragraphs of Schedule 2 to that Act—
(i) paragraph 3A (police vehicles);
(ii) paragraphs 4 and 5 (fire engines etc.);
(iii) paragraphs 6 and 7 (ambulances and health service vehicles);
(iv) paragraph 10 (mine rescue vehicles);
(v) paragraph 11 (lifeboat vehicles); or

(b)

in respect of a vehicle registered under legislation relating to the registration of vehicles in a
country other than the United Kingdom, the Council is satisfied that, had it been registered under
the 1994 Act, it would have fallen within sub-paragraph (a).

Diverted vehicles
5. Where the Council is satisfied, by the production of such evidence as it may reasonably require, that
a vehicle has been used on one or more designated roads solely as a result of a traffic diversion, that vehicle
will be treated as if it were a non-chargeable vehicle.
Agricultural and similar vehicles
6.—(1) A vehicle is a non-chargeable vehicle if the Council is satisfied, by the production of such
evidence as it may reasonably require, that it is an exempt vehicle for the purposes of the 1994 Act by

Page
11 35

virtue of it falling within any of the definitions of exempt vehicles in the following paragraphs of Schedule
2 to that Act provided particulars of the vehicle are for the time being entered in the local register—
(a)

paragraph 20A (vehicles used between different parts of land);

(b)

paragraphs 20B, 20C and 20D (tractors and certain agricultural vehicles);

(c)

paragraphs 20E (mowing machines);

(d)

paragraph 20F (steam powered vehicles);

(e)

paragraph 20H (snow ploughs); and

(f)

paragraph 20J (gritters).

A vehicle is a non-chargeable vehicle if the Council is satisfied, by the production of such evidence as
it may reasonably require, that it is a special vehicle falling within any of the definitions of exempt vehicles
in the following paragraphs of Schedule 1 to the 1994 Act provided particulars of the vehicle are for the time
being entered in the local register—
(a)

Paragraph 2(ee) (road roller)

(b)

paragraph 4(4) (digging machine);

(c)

paragraph 4(5) (mobile crane);

(d)

paragraphs 4(5A) and 4(5B) (mobile pumping vehicle); and

(e)

paragraphs 4(6) (works trucks).

If the Council is satisfied, in respect of a vehicle registered under legislation relating to the registration
of vehicles in a country other than the United Kingdom, that had the vehicle been registered under the 1994
Act it would have fallen within sub-paragraphs (1) or (2), that vehicle is a non-chargeable vehicle provided
particulars of the vehicle are for the time being entered in the local register.
Showman’s vehicles
7.—(1) A showman’s vehicle is a non-chargeable vehicle provided particulars of the vehicle are for the
time being entered in the local register.
In this paragraph “showman’s vehicle” means any vehicle that the Council is satisfied, by the
production of such evidence as it may reasonably require—
(a)

falls within the definition of, and is registered under the 1994 Act as, a “showman’s vehicle” or
“showman’s goods vehicle” within the meaning of section 62 of the 1994 Act ; or

(b)

falls within the definition of a “showman’s vehicle” or “showman’s goods vehicle” within the
meaning of section 62 of the 1994 Act and is registered in a country other than the United
Kingdom, in accordance with that country's rules governing the registration of such vehicles, in
the name of a person following the business of a travelling showman and used solely by that
person for the purposes of his business and no other purpose.

Vintage buses
8.—(1) A vintage bus is a non-chargeable vehicle provided particulars of the vehicle are for the time
being entered in the local register.
In this paragraph—
(a)

“vintage bus” means a vehicle of Class M3 that at any time during a given financial year was
constructed more than 20 years and less than 40 years before 1 January in that financial year; and

(b)

“financial year” means a period of 12 months beginning with 1 April.

An application to enter particulars of a vintage bus on the local register must—
(a)

include such information relating to the age, construction and use of the vehicle as the Council
may specify on its website, and all such other information as the Council may reasonably require;
and

(b)

be made by such means as the Council may accept.

12

Page 36

Motor caravans
9. A vehicle is a non-chargeable vehicle if the Council is satisfied, by the production of such evidence
as it may reasonably require, that the vehicle is a Class L vehicle and particulars of the vehicle are for the
time being entered in the local register.
Non-UK registered disabled vehicles
10. If the Council is satisfied, by the production of such evidence as it may reasonably require, that a
vehicle registered under legislation relating to the registration of vehicles in a country other than the United
Kingdom would, had the vehicle been registered under the 1994 Act, have fallen within paragraph 3 of this
Annex, that vehicle is a non-chargeable vehicle provided particulars of the vehicle are for the time being
entered in the local register.

Page
13 37

ANNEX 3 TO THE SCHEME

Article 6

EMISSIONS STANDARDS FOR COMPLIANT VEHICLES

1.—(1) A vehicle meets the standards set out in Tables 1 and 2 if—
(a)

the vehicle is certified by the appropriate national approval authority as having been manufactured
to satisfy the EC emissions standard specified for that vehicle in column (e) of the Table;

(b)

the vehicle has been retrofitted so that the limit values for the emission of NOx specified for the
vehicle in column (f) would not be exceeded during the appropriate test or tests specified in
column (g) of the Table; or

(c)

in respect of all other vehicles, the Central Clean Air Zone Service is satisfied that the limit values
for the emission of NOx specified for the vehicle in column (f) would not be exceeded during the
appropriate test or tests specified in column (g) of the Table.

(2) A reference to a vehicle of Class L in any row of Table 1 or 2 is to be construed, for the purpose of
assessing its emissions, as a reference to a vehicle that has been type-approved as the relevant M or N
category specified in that row of the Table concerned.
Table 1 — EURO 4/IV STANDARDS FOR POSITIVE IGNITION VEHICLES
(a)
(b)
Row Vehicle Class
No.

(c)
Maximum mass
of vehicle,
where relevant
(kg)

(1)

L, M1

(2)

L, M1

not exceeding
2,500
exceeding
2,500

(3)

L, M1

exceeding
2,500

(4)

L, M1

(5)

L, M2

(6)

L, M2

(7)

L, M2

(8a)

L, M2

exceeding
2,500
not exceeding
2,500
exceeding
2,500 and not
exceeding
3,500
exceeding
2,500 and not
exceeding
3,500
exceeding
3,500

(8b)

L, M2

(9)

L, M2

exceeding
3,500
exceeding
3,500

(d)
Reference
mass of
vehicle, where
relevant (kg)

(e)
EC
emissions
standard

(f)
Limit values for
NOx

(g)
Appropriate
test

Euro 4

0.08g/km

Type I

not exceeding
1,305

Euro 4

0.08g/km

Type I

exceeding
1,305 and not
exceeding
1,760
exceeding
1,760

Euro 4

0.10g/km

Type I

Euro 4

0.11g/km

Type I

Euro 4

0.08g/km

Type I

exceeding
1,305 and not
exceeding
1,760
exceeding
1,760

Euro 4

0.10g/km

Type I

Euro 4

0.11g/km

Type I

not exceeding
2,840

Euro 4

0.11g/km

Type I

not exceeding
2,840
exceeding
2,840

Euro IV

3.5g/kWh

ETC

Euro IV

3.5g/kWh

ETC

14

Page 38

(10)

not exceeding
1,305
exceeding
1,305 and not
exceeding
1,760
exceeding
1,760
not exceeding
2,840

Euro 4

0.08g/km

Type I

Euro 4

0.10g/km

Type I

Euro 4

0.11g/km

Type I

Euro 4

0.11g/km

Type I

(13b) L, N2

not exceeding
2,840

Euro IV

3.5g/kWh

ETC

(14)

L, N2

exceeding
2,840

Euro IV

3.5g/kWh

ETC

(15)
(16)

L, M3
L, N3

Euro IV
Euro IV

3.5g/kWh
3.5g/kWh

ETC
ETC

(11)

L, N1 sub-class
(i)
L, N1 sub-class
(ii)

(12)

L, N1 sub-class
(iii)
(13a) L, N2

Table 2 — EURO 6/VI STANDARDS FOR COMPRESSION IGNITION VEHICLES
(a)
Row
No.

(b)
Vehicle
Class

(1)

L, M1

(2)

L, M1

(3)

L, M2

(4)

L, M2

(5)

L, M3

(6)

L, N1

(7)

L, N1 subclass (ii)

(8)
(9)

L, N1 subclass (iii)
L, N2

(10)

L, N2

(c)
Maximum
mass
of
vehicle,
where
relevant(kg)

(d)
Reference mass
of vehicle,
where relevant
(kg)

(e)
EC
emissions
standard

(f)
Limit values
for NOx

(g)
Appropriate
tests

not exceeding
2610
exceeding
2610

Euro 6

0.08g/km

Type I

Euro VI

WHSC and
WHTC

not exceeding
2610
exceeding
2610

Euro 6

0.4 g/kWh
(WHSC) and
0.46 g/kWh
(WHTC)
0.125g/km

WHSC and
WHTC

Euro 6

0.4 g/kWh
(WHSC) and
0.46 g/kWh
(WHTC)
0.4 g/kWh
(WHSC) and
0.46 g/kWh
(WHTC)
0.08g/km

Euro 6

0.105g/km

Type I

Euro 6

0.125g/km

Type I

Euro 6

0.125g/km

Type I

Euro VI

0.4 g/kWh
(WHSC) and

WHSC and
WHTC

Euro VI

Euro VI

not exceeding
1,305
exceeding
1,305 and not
exceeding
1,760
exceeding
1,760
not exceeding
2610
exceeding
2610

Page
15 39

Type I

WHSC and
WHTC
Type I

(11)

L, N3

Euro VI

16

0.46 g/kWh
(WHTC)
0.4 g/kWh
(WHSC) and
0.46 g/kWh
(WHTC)

Page 40

WHSC and
WHTC

ANNEX 4 TO THE SCHEME

Article 16

TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS –
TEMPORARY NON-CHARGEABLE VEHICLES
Commercial CAZ vehicles
1.—(1) During the commercial CAZ vehicles transitional period the Council will treat a qualifying
commercial CAZ vehicle as if it were a non-chargeable vehicle provided particulars of the vehicle are for
the time being entered in the local register.
A vehicle is a commercial CAZ vehicle for the purposes of this paragraph and paragraph 2 of this
Annex if the Council is satisfied by the production of evidence as it may reasonably require the vehicle is a
commercial vehicle that—
(a)

is owned by a qualified business;

(b)

was owned by that qualified business on 31st December 2021; and

(c)

is kept at or operating out of qualifying business premises for the use of the qualified business.

A vehicle is a qualifying commercial CAZ vehicle if it is one of one of the qualified business’s two
cleanest non-compliant commercial CAZ vehicles.
For the purposes of sub-paragraph (3) a vehicle will considered cleaner than another vehicle if its date
of first registration is more recent than the other vehicle.
In this Annex—
(a)

“commercial CAZ vehicles transitional period” means the period of two years beginning with the
commencement date;

(b)

“qualified business” means a company or sole trader that the Council is satisfied, by the
production of such evidence as it may reasonably require, occupies qualifying business premises;
and

(c)

“qualifying business premises” means business premises situated within the Clean Air Zone.

Commercial vehicles, private hire vehicles and taxis subject to finance agreements
2.—(1) During the financing transitional period the Council will treat any vehicle—
(a)

that meets the conditions specified in sub-paragraph (2); and

(b)

particulars of which are for the time being entered in the local register,

as if it were a non-chargeable vehicle.
The conditions referred to in sub-paragraph (1)(a) are that the Council is satisfied, by the production
of such evidence as it may reasonably require, that—
(a)

the owner of the vehicle had on or before 31st December 2021 entered into a contractual
arrangement for financing the purchase or leasing of the vehicle concerned; and

(b)

one or more payments pursuant to that contractual arrangement are due on or after the
commencement date; and

(c)

the vehicle is—
(i) a commercial CAZ vehicle; or
(ii) a local taxi or local private hire vehicle.

In this paragraph—
(a)

“financing transitional period” means the period beginning with the commencement date and
ending on the earlier of—
(i) the date on which the payment for the purchase of the vehicle concerned is completed and the
contractual arrangement referred to in sub-paragraph (2) ceases to apply; and
(ii) the date falling two years after the commencement date;

Page
17 41

(b)

“owner” includes a lessee of a vehicle, a person using a vehicle pursuant to a hire purchase
agreement, and such other forms of use or ownership as the Council may specify on its website.

Community transport vehicles
3.—(1) During the community transport vehicles transitional period the Council will treat any vehicle
that is a qualifying community transport vehicle and that does not fall within Annex 2 as if it were a nonchargeable vehicle.
A vehicle is a qualifying community transport vehicle on any charging day if—
(a)

it has been specified by the Council pursuant to an application under sub-paragraph (3);

(b)

it is being used pursuant to a community transport permit; and

(c)

particulars of the vehicle are entered in the local register on the charging day concerned or the
following charging day.

A holder of a community transport permit may apply to the Council to specify a vehicle in relation to
such a permit held for any charging day or days and, subject to sub-paragraph (4), to specify a different
vehicle in place of a specified vehicle.
Unless a vehicle has been specified pursuant to an application under sub-paragraph (3) for a particular
charging day or days, it remains specified for all charging days until a different vehicle has been specified
in place of it.
An application under sub-paragraph (3) shall be made by such means as the Council may accept and
be accompanied by such information as the Council may reasonably require.
In this paragraph—
(a)

“community transport permit” means a permit granted under section 19(3), 19(4), 19(5) or 22(2)
of the Transport Act 1985; and

(b)

“community transport vehicles transitional period” means the period of one year beginning with
the commencement date.

Wheelchair-accessible taxis and private hire vehicles
4.—(1) During the wheelchair-accessible vehicles transitional period the Council will treat any qualifying
wheelchair-accessible taxi or private hire vehicle as if it were a non-chargeable vehicle provided particulars
of the vehicle are for the time being entered in the local register.
A vehicle is a qualifying wheelchair-accessible taxi or private hire vehicle if it appears on a list of
vehicles maintained under section 167(1) of the Equality Act 2010.
In this paragraph “wheelchair-accessible vehicles transitional period” means the period of two years
beginning with the commencement date.
Retrofitting and upgrading of vehicles
5.—(1) During the retrofitting and upgrading transitional period the Council will treat any vehicle—
(a)

that meets the condition specified in sub-paragraph (2); and

(b)

particulars of which are for the time being entered in the local register,

as if it were a non-chargeable vehicle.
The condition referred to in sub-paragraph (1)(a) is that the Council is satisfied, by the production of
such evidence as it may reasonably require, that the owner of the vehicle has placed an order for—
(a)

retrofitting the vehicle concerned that would result in the vehicle becoming a compliant vehicle;
or

(b)

a compliant vehicle to replace that vehicle.

In this paragraph—

18

Page 42

(a)

“retrofitting and upgrading transitional period” means the period beginning with the date on which
the order referred to in sub-paragraph (2) was placed (“the order date”) and ending on the earlier
of—
(i) the date on which, the Council being satisfied that the retrofitting referred to in sub-paragraph
(2) has been completed or the replacement vehicle has been made available for use, particulars
of the retrofitted or replacement vehicle are entered in the national register as a compliant
vehicle, or
(ii) the date falling one year after the order date;

(b)

“owner” includes a lessee of a vehicle, a person using a vehicle pursuant to a hire purchase
agreement, and such other forms of use or ownership as the Council may specify on its website.

Page
19 43

ANNEX 5 TO THE SCHEME

Article 17

PART 1 –
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE’S AND THE BOROUGH COUNCIL
OF GATESHEAD’S GENERAL PLAN FOR APPLYING THEIR SHARES OF THE PROCEEDS OF
THIS SCHEME DURING THE OPENING TEN YEAR PERIOD
It is proposed that the Scheme would commence no earlier than 14th July 2022. This plan covers the ten-year
period from the commencement date.
The objective of the Scheme is to take steps towards meeting required limit values for nitrogen dioxide (NO2)
in the shortest possible time, and by so doing reduce the exposure of people to excessive levels of NO2. This
would be done by applying a substantial daily charge so that operators would make an economic decision
whether or not to take their vehicles into the clean air zone. The charge is set at such a level as to encourage
operators to modify or replace their vehicles or change modes, and so maximise the air quality and health
benefits of the zone.
The revenue generated by the Scheme would in the first place be used to cover the cost of operation of the
Scheme, including the maintenance of cameras, operational staff, etc. It is not anticipated that the proposed
Scheme would generate substantial net revenues. Indeed, the more vehicles that are compliant with the
Scheme’s standards the less revenue will be generated.
However, in the event that net revenues are generated from the proposed Scheme over the opening ten year
period, these proceeds would be applied in such proportions as may be decided by a Joint Committee, formed
of councillors from both the Council of the City of Newcastle upon Tyne and the Borough Council of
Gateshead (the Councils), to directly or indirectly facilitate the achievement of the transport policies set out
in the North East Transport Plan.

20

Page 44

PART 2 –
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NEWCASTLE UPON TYNE’S AND THE BOROUGH COUNCIL
OF GATESHEAD’S DETAILED PROGRAMME FOR APPLYING THEIR SHARES OF THE
PROCEEDS OF THIS SCHEME DURING THE OPENING FIVE YEAR PERIOD
It is proposed that the Scheme would commence no earlier than 14th July 2022. This plan covers the fiveyear period from the commencement date.
As set out in Part 1 of this Annex, it is not anticipated that the proposed Scheme would generate substantial
net revenues. The Councils’ detailed plan for applying any net proceeds during this period would therefore
depend to a large extent on:
•

the level of net proceeds generated;

•

the progress made towards meeting the required limit values for NO2;

•

to what extent the Scheme has impacted on the affected groups identified in the Equalities Impact
Assessment for the Scheme;

•

to what extent the proposed improvements have already been implemented by other means.

Given these uncertainties the Councils intend that the Joint Committee of councillors from both authorities
will review and prioritise the proposed improvements and approve the use of any net proceeds for such
improvements. Improvements could include elements of the following, as identified in the North East
Transport Plan:

•
•
•
•
•

Improvements to traffic management in residential areas designed to minimize exposure to air
pollution
Changes to provision of infrastructure for pedestrians and cyclists
The provision of measures to improve the attractiveness of public transport
Managing the network to provide for the safe and efficient flow of travel by all modes
Helping people to reach key services, such as healthcare, employment and education, easily
and safely.

Page
21 45

200 100
0
200

m

1:11,000 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 46

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ Sheet A_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet A

Page 47

Revision: 3

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ Sheet B_220204.mxd
Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

8

7

3
9

10

6
11

5
12

4
13

2

1
200 100
0
200

m

1:11,000 @ A3

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

Boundary Plan Extent

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
KEY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet B

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 48

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

Area of Cuthbert
Street excluded from
the Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 1

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 49

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 2

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 50

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 3

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 51

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 4

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 52

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 5

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 53

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 6

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 54

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 7

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 55

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 8

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 56

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 9

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 57

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 10

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 58

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 11

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 59

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

Area of Hillgate and
Church Street
excluded from the
Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 12

200
100
0
200

m

1:2,500 @ A3

Revision: 3

Drawn: JC

Checked: JPH Approved: GM Date: 04/02/2022

This drawing has been prepared for the use of AECOM 's client. It may not be used, modified, reproduced or relied upon by third parties, except as agreed by AECOM or as required by law. AECOM accepts no responsibility, and denies any liability whatsoever, to any party that uses or relies on this drawing without AECOM's express written consent. Do not scale this document. All measurements must be obtained from the stated dimensions.

Page 60

Filename: \\na.aecomnet.com\lfs\EMEA\Newcastle-UKNCL2\Legacy\V1TP\PROJECTS\Transport Planning - Air Quality PM Support\GIS\Newcastle CAZ\Newcastle CAZ_220204.mxd

±
Transport Act 2000
Newcastle and Gateshead
Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022

Deposited Plans as defined
in article 1(1) of the
Schedule to the Order

LEGEND

Clean Air Zone

Area of Hillgate and
Church Street
excluded from the
Clean Air Zone

NOTES

Contains Ordnance Survey Data ©
Crown copyright and database rights
2022 Ordnance Survey 0100031673

ISSUE PURPOSE

FINAL 04/02/2022

SHEET TITLE

CLEAN AIR ZONE
BOUNDARY PLAN

SHEET NUMBER

Sheet 13

THE AIR QUALITY JOINT COMMITTEE
General
The Air Quality Joint Committee is a joint committee created by the Council of the City of
Newcastle upon Tyne and the Borough Council of Gateshead under sections 101(5) of the
Local Government Act 1972, the Local Government Act 2000 and Part 4 of the Local
Authorities (Arrangements for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations 2012 and all
other enabling powers.
Membership
The membership of the joint committee shall be four consisting of the Leader and the
Executive Member whose portfolio covers clean air of each of the Councils. The Leader of
each Council shall nominate substitutes for its Council.
Role of the joint committee
To:
(1) oversee effective and transparent management of the Councils’ Clean Air Plan* for the
benefit of residents and road users in accordance with its objectives;
(2) report to the Government on the compliance or otherwise of the Council’s Clean Air
Plan with air quality standards as set out in law and set out any remedial action to be
undertaken if necessary;
(3) note and approve the other monitoring and evaluation elements as set out in the
Monitoring and Evaluation Plan (which forms part of the Councils’ Clean Air Plan);
(4) make decisions in relation to the “Newcastle and Gateshead Clean Air Zone Charging
Order 2022” (“the Charging Scheme”) including the making of decisions in relation to
the Charging Scheme where the Transport Act 2000 requires charging authorities to
act jointly;
(5) provide oversight of the financial income and expenditure of all elements of the Clean
Air Plan, including the Charging Scheme and consequent surplus or insufficient
revenue; and
(6) report on and assign any surplus or insufficient revenue for expenditure resulting from
the Charging Scheme.
* The Clean Air Plan comprises all of the measures for ensuring compliance with air quality
legislation for Tyneside. It includes the introduction of the Clean Air Zone by the making of the
Charging Scheme, alongside supporting measures such as grants, marketing, behaviour
change and any other interventions outlined in the Full Business Case submitted and
approved by the Government.
Operation
•
•
•
•

The quorum shall be two, with one from each Council.
Each member shall have one vote.
A chair for each meeting shall be appointed by the members at the beginning of each
meeting.
The chair shall not have a casting vote.
1

Page 61

•
•
•

Unless required by law, decisions shall be made by a simple majority.
The joint committee shall meet at least four times a year and more regularly if required
to fulfil its role.
Political balance requirements do not apply.

2

Page 62

Agenda Item 6
COUNCIL MEETING
24 March 2022
CONSULTATION ON 2023 PARLIAMENTARY BOUNDARY
REVIEW
Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The purpose of this report is to seek approval for the proposed changes to the
Blaydon constituency and Gateshead constituency.

2.

The Boundary Commission for England (BCE) is tasked to conduct a review of
the parliamentary constituencies in England based on the updated rules in the
Parliamentary Constituencies Act 2020.

3.

The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating
their recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION
4.

It is recommended that Council support the proposed changes to the Blaydon
constituency and Gateshead constituency and authorise officers to respond to
the formal Boundary Commission for England consultation, both at the public
hearing and in a formal written response.

Page 63

This page is intentionally left blank

NOT FOR PUBLICATION

REPORT TO CABINET
22 March 2021

TITLE OF REPORT:
REPORT OF:

Consultation on 2023 Parliamentary Boundary Review

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance

Purpose of the Report
1.

The purpose of this report is to seek Cabinets views on the 2023 Parliamentary
Boundary Review and its implications for Gateshead.

Background
2.

The Boundary Commission for England (BCE) have been tasked to conduct a
review of the parliamentary constituencies in England based on the updated rules
in the Parliamentary Constituencies Act 2020.

3.

Parliamentary constituency boundaries are reviewed periodically. This is principally
so that constituencies are altered occasionally to take account of changes in
population. Changes are also made to reflect local government boundary changes,
so that administrative boundaries coincide as much as possible.

4.

The reviews are undertaken by independent Boundary Commissions. There are
four Commissions, one each for the four nations of the United Kingdom. For
English constituencies the Boundary Commission for England (BCE) is
responsible.

5.

Boundary reviews in 2013 and 2018 aimed at reducing the total number of seats to
600 were either abandoned by the Government before completion or cancelled.

6.

The current rules for reviews were approved by the Parliamentary Constituencies
Act 2020, (2020 Rules) that Act fixed the number of constituencies in the House of
Commons at 650.

7.

The number of seats between the four nations of the UK are allocated
proportionally. This is based on the registered Parliamentary electorate in each
part of the UK. There is no longer a guaranteed minimum for any country.

8.

The BCE have now been tasked to conduct a review of the parliamentary
constituencies in E ngland based on the 2020 Rules. The BCE must complete the
current review and make a formal report to the Speaker of the House of Commons
before the1 July 2023.

9.

It is important to note that these changes have no direct bearing on the
administrative area of the Council or Council functions. However, changes may

Page
65
1 of 8

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
.

impact upon our residents who may find that their parliamentary constituency has
changed.
10.

The Commission is also required to ensure that each proposed constituency has
an electorate as at 2 March 2020 that is no less than 95% and no more than 105%
of the UK electoral quota. This quota has been calculated at 73,393. Accordingly,
each constituency must have an electorate that is no smaller than 69,724 and no
larger than 77,062.

11.

Taking these requirements and other statutory factors into account, the BCE
published its initial proposals for England, including the North East on the 8 June
2021.

12.

Other statutory factors include:
a. Special geographical considerations e.g. mountains lakes rivers
b. Local Government boundaries as they exist or were in prospect on 1
December 2020
c. Boundaries of existing constituencies
d. Any local ties
e. The inconveniences attendant on such changes

North East Region
12.

The Commission’s approach is to sub -divide the allocation of constituencies
between the nine English regions, which have historically been the regions used at
European Elections.

13.

In relation to the North East Region the Commission has allocated 27
constituencies a reduction of 2 from the current 29. The Commission's initial
proposals have aimed to wholly contain each of these constituencies within the
North East region

14.

Their initial proposals leave two of the existing 29 constituencies wholly
unchanged, and 11 with what they describe as only minor non-substantive
changes of one to two wards.

15.

As it has not always been possible to allocate whole numbers of constituencies to
individual counties, they have grouped some county and unitary authority areas
into sub-regions and based on the relatively recently created combined authorities,
which encompass the entire North East region. The number of constituencies
allocated to each sub-region has been determined by the combined electorate of
the included authorities. Therefore, they have found it necessary to propose some
constituencies that cross county or unitary authority boundaries but are not
proposing that any of the proposed constituencies cross any combined authority
boundaries.

16.

This has resulted in them sub dividing the region as follows
Sub-region

Existing allocation

2 of 8

Page 66

Proposed allocation

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
.

Newcastle, North Tyneside
and Northumberland

9

8

11

10

Gateshead

2

2

Tees Valley

7

7

County Durham, South
Tyneside and Sunderland

Gateshead Proposals
17.

In relation to Gateshead the electorate used (144,619) means an entitlement of
1.97 constituencies and has resulted in a proposal of two constituencies that do not
cross the authority’s boundaries.

18.

The Commission found that the current configuration of both Blaydon and
Gateshead constituencies are below the permitted electorate range and they
proposed, therefore, that the new Blaydon constituency includes Dunston and
Teams ward from Gateshead, and that the new Gateshead constituency includes
Pelaw and Heworth, and Wardley and Leam Lane from the existing Jarrow
constituency.

19.

The Commission consider the proposals better adhere to the statutory factors, as
both resulting constituencies will be of the right size and be wholly contained within
the administrati ve boundaries of Gateshead. They also respect the additional
statutory factors such as geographical considerations, they recognise the River
Tyne as an important natural boundary as well as local ties.

20.

This will result in the proposed constituencies potentially being
Blaydon
constituency
(electorate 74,066)

Gateshead constituency
(electorate 70,553)

Birtley
Blaydon
Chopwell and Rowlands Gill
Crawcrook and Greenside
Dunston and Teams
Dunston Hill and Whickham East
Lamesley
Ryton Crookhill and Stella
Whickham North
Whickham South and Sunniside
Winlaton and High Spen

Bridges
Chowdene
Deckham
Felling
High Fell
Lobley Hill and Bensham
Low Fell
Pelaw and Heworth
Saltwell
Wardley and Leam Lane
Windy Nook and Whitehills

Initial consultation period (complete)
21.

An 8-week initial period of consultation by the BCE on its initial proposals began on
8 June 2021 and has been completed. The BCE is required to consider all written

Page
67
3 of 8

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
.

representations made to it during this time and representations have been
published on the BCE reviews website.
22.

Cabinet considered the initial proposals on 20 July 2021 and supported the BCE
proposals for Gateshead, and this was fed into the initial consultation.

Secondary consultation period
23.

From Tuesday 22 February to Monday 4 April 2022, a secondary consultation on
the initial proposals for new constituencies in England has commenced. During this
consultation, the BCE intend to hold 32 public hearings across the country.

24.

Individuals can also be able to submit comments on the BCE reviews website.

25.

It is anticipated that members will continue to support the proposal for two
constituencies whose geographical boundaries fall within the borough.

26.

The Council can also make a further submission to the Commission as part of this
stage of the consultation.
After the end of the secondary consultation period, all of the representations
received from the initial consultation and all written and oral presentations made
during the secondary consultation period will be considered and reports will be
prepared for each region. The reports will summarise and consider each of the
representations, and if the BCE’s initial proposals may be revised in light of the
representations.

27.

28.

Following this, the BCE will publish a report in each region, stating whether
revisions have been made to its initial proposals for that region. All the written
representations submitted during the 6-week secondary consultation period and
transcripts from the public hearings will be published at the same time.

29.

If the initial proposals are revised, there would then be a further, final period of 4
weeks for written representations to be made to the BCE on the revised proposals
for that region.

30.

Once the BCE has taken into account any final representations made in the four
weeks consultation period, they will make their final recommendations for the
whole of England, it will then draft and submit a formal report to the Speaker of the
House of Commons. The report, which will be published, once it has been laid
before Parliament, will contain a description of the review in each region, a textual
description of all of the final recommendations, and a set of maps to illustrate the
existing constituency boundaries and those proposed by the final
recommendations.

31.

The submission of the formal, final report will conclude the review process.

32.

The timetable and process is set out below. The current stage of the process is
highlighted.

4 of 8

Page 68

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
.

Dec 2020 – March 2021

March 2021 – May 2021
June 2021 – 2 August 2021
Early 2022
Late 2022
By 1 July 2023
Late 2023

Boundary Commission for England
working with counterparts in Scotland,
Wales and Northern Ireland to
establish the data to be used for the
review including the number of
constituencies across each part of the
UK.
Preparing initial proposals
Consultation on initial proposals.
An 8-week period of consultation.
Second period of consultation (6 weeks)
and public hearings.
Final consultation (4 weeks) on “revised
proposals”.
Final report and recommendations.
Recommendations made into law with
new proposals being used for next
general election (but no by-elections in
the interim period).

Recommendations
32.

Cabinet is asked to recommend to full Council that proposed changes to the
Blaydon constituency and Gateshead constituency be supported and to authorise
officers to respond to the formal Boundary Commission for England consultation,
both at the public hearing and in a formal written response.

Page
69
5 of 8

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
.

CONTACT: Ged Morton extension: 2110

6 of 8

Page 70

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
.

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

Electoral administration.
Background

2.

The report relates to a periodic review of parliamentary constituency
boundaries. Reviews take place principally so that constituencies take account
of changes in population in accordance with statutory criteria.

3.

The reviews are undertaken by independent Boundary Commissions. For
English constituencies the Boundary Commission for England (BCE) is
responsible.
Consultation

4.

The Leader of the Council and Cabinet members have been consulted on the
proposals and are supportive of the recommendations.
Alternative Options

4.

Cabinet could choose not to respond to the initial BCE proposals and not make a
recommendation to the full Council, but that could mean that amendments are
subsequently made without the Gateshead position having been set out. This
could have a detrimental impact on the final decision on constituency boundaries.
Implications of Recommended Option

6.

Resources:
a)

Financial Implications – There are no direct financial implications from the
proposals.

b)

Human Resources Implications – There are no direct human resource
implications from the proposals.

c)

Property Implications - there are no property implications arising from the
recommendations within this report.

7.

Risk Management Implication – There are no direct risk management
implications from the proposals.

8.

Equality and Diversity Implications – There are no specific Equality and Diversity
Implications.

9.

Crime and Disorder Implications – there are no Crime and Disorder implications.

10.

Health Implications – there are no health implications.

11.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications – there are no Climate
Emergency and Sustainability Implications

Page
71
7 of 8

NOT FOR PUBLICATION
.

12.

Human Rights Implications – there are no human rights implications arising from
this report

13.

Ward Implications – if these proposals are followed through to the final report a
small number of wards will be allocated within different parliamentary
constituencies, but all within the Gateshead administrative area.

14.

Background Information - none

8 of 8

Page 72

Agenda Item 7
COUNCIL MEETING
24 March 2022
CORPORATE COMMISSIONING AND PROCUREMENT
STRATEGY 2021/22 – 2026/27
Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The purpose of this report is to seek approval of a new Corporate
Commissioning and Procurement Strategy 2021/22 – 26/27 and the
implementation of a new approach to achieving Social Value in procurement
activity.

2.

The Strategy will ensure that procurement of goods, works and services aligns
to the Council’s priorities as set out in Thrive, The Health and Wellbeing
Strategy, the Economic Strategy and the Climate Emergency Strategy. This
will maximise the social value achieved from the Councils external
expenditure.

3.

The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating
their recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION
4.

It is recommended that Council;
(i)

approves the Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy as
set out in appendix 2 of the report; and

(ii)

approves the implementation of the Gateshead Social Value Toolkit as
summarised in appendix 3 of the report, and to the evaluation weighting
of 20% being applied to all procurements of £100k in value or more,
unless the Service Director, Corporate Commissioning and
Procurement authorises an exception.

Page 73

This page is intentionally left blank

REPORT TO CABINET
22nd March 2022

TITLE OF REPORT: Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy 2021/22 –
2026/27
REPORT OF:

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance

Purpose of the Report
1. Cabinet is asked to consider and approve a new Corporate Commissioning and
Procurement Strategy 2021/22 – 26/27 and the implementation of a new approach to
achieving Social Value in procurement activity.
Background
2. The Council agreed to implement a 5 year Corporate Commissioning and Procurement
Strategy at its meeting on 2nd February 2017. Since then, the Thrive agenda together
with a range of specific strategies have been developed, and as the current Corporate
Commissioning and Procurement Strategy expires, it is time to refresh it and ensure
that the Council’s spend continues to be aligned to Council priorities.
3. The revised strategy (attached as Appendix 2) is built on 4 key themes which reflect
Thrive, and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, the Economic Development Strategy
and the Climate Emergency Strategy. Reducing external expenditure and maximising
the value of the Gateshead £ through Community Wealth Building are also key features
running through the strategy. The themes include:





Tackling inequality, supporting local communities, and putting
people at the heart of everything we do
Investing in our local economy
Working together for a better and greener future
Delivering value for money and ensuring a sustainable council

4. A comprehensive action plan is being developed to implement the Strategy and ensure
it is embedded in all activity.
5. Alongside the development of the Strategy, a new approach to Social Value has been
developed to facilitate the implementation of the new strategy. Based on a streamlined
and prioritised version of a national social value toolkit developed by a social
enterprise, Social Value Portal, and commonly known as TOMS (which stands for
themes, outcomes and measures), the Gateshead Social Value Toolkit focuses on the
outcomes that are important to Gateshead . A summary of the toolkit is attached as
appendix 3.

Page 75
1 of 10

6. The measures within the Gateshead toolkit are based on Gateshead specific metrics
and have been provided by the Social Value Portal, however we have been advised
that any updates of the metrics will be chargeable and we are working with NEPO to
consider alternative solutions.
7. It is proposed that all procurements exceeding £100k will incorporate the new
Gateshead Social Value Toolkit with a default evaluation weighting of 20% (the
remaining 80% being divided between price and quality), thus helping to implement the
new strategy. The exact evaluation weighting for each theme within the toolkit will be
considered on a tender by tender basis, but any deviations from the 20% weighting on
social value shall require approval from the Service Director, Corporate Commissioning
and Procurement.
8. Work is ongoing to develop a simplified approach to social value, based on similar
principles but less onerous for procurements under £100k in value.
9. The use of existing procurement frameworks including North East Procurement
Organisation (NEPO), SCAPE and Crown Commercial Service frameworks are likely to
prohibit the use of the Gateshead toolkit, as new criteria cannot be incorporated into
existing frameworks, however the contracting organisations letting the frameworks will
have already included an approach to social value.
Recommendations
10. Cabinet is asked to recommend the Council to approve:
(i)
(ii)

the Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy as set out in
appendix 2; and
the implementation of the Gateshead Social Value Toolkit as summarised in
appendix 3 and to the evaluation weighting of 20% being applied to all
procurements of £100k in value or more, unless the Service Director,
Corporate Commissioning and Procurement authorises an exception.

For the following reasons:
(i)

(ii)

To ensure that the procurement of goods, works and services aligns to the
Council’s priorities as set out in Thrive, the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.
the Economic Strategy and the Climate Emergency Strategy;
To maximise the social value achieved from the Councils external
expenditure.

CONTACT: Andrea Tickner

extension: 5995

Page 76
2 of 10

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

A new Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy has been developed to
ensure that the Council’s spend is aligned to Thrive and the Council’s priorities as
set out in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, The Economic Development Strategy,
the Emergency Climate Strategy. It also focuses on maximising the Gateshead £
and securing value for money.
Background

2.

On 2 February 2017, the Council agreed to implement a 5 year Corporate
Commissioning and Procurement Strategy. Since then, the Thrive agenda together
with a range of other specific strategies have been developed, and it is time to
refresh the Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy, to ensure that the
Council’s spend continues to be aligned to Council priorities and maximising value
for money.

3.

The revised strategy (attached as Appendix 2) is built on 4 key themes which reflect
Thrive, and align with the other key Council strategies including the Health and
Wellbeing Strategy, the Economic Development Strategy and the Climate
Emergency Strategy. Reducing external expenditure and maximising the value of
the Gateshead £ through Community Wealth Building are also key features running
through the strategy. The themes include:





4.

Tackling inequality, supporting local communities, and putting
people at the heart of everything we do;
Investing in our local economy;
Working together for a better and greener future;
Delivering value for money and ensuring a sustainable council

A comprehensive action plan is being developed to implement the Strategy, deliver
the outcomes set out within it, and ensure it is embedded in all activity.
Proposal for a new approach to Social Value

5.

The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 came into force on 31 st January 2013.
The Act was inspired by a recommendation in Social Enterprise UK’s 2010 election
manifesto and tabled by Chris White MP as a Private Member’s Bill. In 2013 the
Council implemented a flexible approach to social value based on the Council Plan
that existed at that time and Vision 2030 themes.

6.

At the pre-procurement stage, the Act requires contracting authorities to consider
not only how to improve the economic, social, and environmental well-being of the
area served by them through the procurement, but also how to undertake the
process of procurement with a view to securing that improvement and measuring it
during the life of the contract.

Page 77
3 of 10

7.

Alongside the development of the Corporate Commissioning and Procurement
Strategy 2021/22 – 26/27, the Procurement Team, have worked with NEPO and
other local authorities in the North East on the further development of social value
criteria that can be measured across various social value outcomes. A social
enterprise, the Social Value Portal, has developed a national toolkit to translate
social value measures into a monetary value, and therefore enable comparisons to
be made across a wide range of social value criteria. This toolkit has been
extensively adopted in various ways by authorities across the Country and this
forms the basis of the proposed Gateshead approach to social value.

8.

Whilst the measures have been devised nationally, the Social Value Portal agreed
to provide local, Gateshead specific metrics to use in our social value evaluations.
The ongoing maintenance of the metrics is under consideration as the Social Value
Portal have advised that updating the metrics will be chargeable, and the fee
associated with updating the metrics is not insignificant, therefore, working with
NEPO we are considering alternative options regarding the longer term
maintenance of local metrics, or the development of a regional social value toolkit
that will be embedded within the new procurement system that NEPO are also
developing.

9.

In the interim, a team of subject experts from across the Council came together to
form a Social Value Delivery Group and they considered the 150+ measures from
the national toolkit, streamlined and prioritised them against Gateshead priorities
and the themes in the Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy to
create the Gateshead Social Value Toolkit (summary attached as Appendix 3).

10.

The actual measures will vary for each procurement and although the 150+
measures have been streamlined and prioritised, there may be occasion when
additional measures are required, to reflect new priorities or feedback from
suppliers during market engagement.

11.

It is proposed that all procurements exceeding £100k will incorporate the new
Gateshead Social Value Toolkit with a default evaluation weighting of 20% (the
remaining 80% being divided between price and quality), thus helping to implement
the new strategy. The exact evaluation weighting for each individual measure or
theme within the toolkit will be considered on a tender by tender basis to ensure
that the measures are relevant and proportionate to each contract, but any
deviations from the overall 20% weighting on social value, or any alternative
measures shall require approval from the Service Director, Corporate
Commissioning and Procurement.

12.

Work is ongoing to develop a simplified approach to social value, based on similar
principles but less onerous for procurements under £100k in value.

13.

The use of existing procurement frameworks including NEPO, SCAPE and Crown
Commercial Service frameworks are likely to prohibit the use of the Gateshead
toolkit, as new criteria cannot be incorporated into existing frameworks. The
contracting organisations letting the frameworks will have already included an
approach to social value within their frameworks but this will not be based on
Gateshead metrics.

Page 78
4 of 10

Consultation
14.

Consultation has taken place with the Corporate Resources Overview and Scrutiny
Committee at their meetings on 29 th November 2021 and 24th January 2022.
External consultation has also taken place with a number of organisations including
NEPO, SCAPE, Construction Alliance North East, Connected Voice, Federation of
Small Businesses, Gateshead College, Centre for Economic Strategies (CLES), all
of which was positive and their comments have been considered and incorporated
into the Strategy where appropriate.
Alternative Options

15.

There is no alternative option but to update and renew the Corporate
Commissioning and Procurement Strategy. A number of alternatives have been
considered to developing the Gateshead Social Value Toolkit including:
(i)
Implementing the National TOMS Social Value Toolkit in its entirety,
however this does not focus on Gateshead Priorities or incorporate
Gateshead metrics;
(ii)
Retaining the original, flexible approach to social value, however this
will not implement the new Strategy.
Implications of Recommended Option

16.

Resources:
a)

Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
confirms the new strategy will ensure that value for money is delivered
through all procurement activity. Additional Social Value will be achieved
with the implementation of the Gateshead Social Value Toolkit.

b)

Human Resources Implications – There are no direct human resource
implications arising from this report and the new strategy and social value
toolkit will help to increase employment and deliver better quality jobs and
opportunities for local people.

c)

Property Implications – There are no property implications arising from this
report.

17.

Risk Management Implication There are no risk management implications arising from this report.

18.

Equality and Diversity Implications The new Strategy and Social Value Toolkit will ensure that procurement activity
makes a positive contribution to the equality and diversity issues faced by
Gateshead people.

19.

Crime and Disorder Implications –
There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

20.

Health Implications The new Strategy and Social Value Toolkit will ensure that procurement activity
makes a positive contribution to the health issues faced by Gateshead people.

Page 79
5 of 10

21.

Climate change and Sustainability Implications The new strategy and Social Value Toolkit will ensure that procurement activity
makes a positive contribution to climate change and sustainability.

22.

Human Rights Implications The new strategy and Social Value Toolkit will ensure that procurement activity
makes a positive contribution to the human rights issues.

23.

Ward Implications There are no specific ward implications arising from this report.
Background Information

24.

The Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy 21/22-26/27 and the
Social Value Toolkit.

Page 80
6 of 10

Insert the Strategy as appendix 2

Page 81
7 of 10

Appendix 3
Summary of the Gateshead Social Value Toolkit
Themes from the Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy
1. TACKLING INEQUALITY, SUPPORTING LOCAL
COMMUNITIES, AND PUTTING PEOPLE AT THE
HEART OF EVERYTHING WE DO

2. INVESTING IN OUR LOCAL ECONOMY

3.WORKING TOGETHER FOR A BETTER AND
GREENER FUTURE

4. DELIVERING VALUE FOR MONEY AND
ENSURING A SUSTAINABLE COUNCIL

TACKLING INEQUALITY, SUPPORTING LOCAL COMMUNITIES, AND PUTTING PEOPLE AT THE HEART OF EVERYTHING
WE DO
Betw een 1 and 3 measures shall be selected from 1.0 to 1.12 plus any of the optional measures 1.13 -1.17
1.0
No. of armed forces veterans employees (FTE) hired on the contract as a result of a recruitment programme w ho are long
term unemployed (unemployed for a year or longer) and are facing specific barriers to transitioning to civilian employment
that do not qualify them as disabled (e.g. long term service)
1.1
No. of mothers returning to w ork (FTE) hired on the contract as a result of a recruitment programme w ho are long-term
unemployed (unemployed for a year or longer) - (w hen the mother is the primary carer)
1.2
No. of employees (FTE) hired on the contract who are Not in Employment, Education, or Training (NEETs) as a result of a
recruitment programme
1.3
No. of 16-25 y.o. care leavers (FTE) hired on the contract as a result of a recruitment programme
1.4
No. of disabled employees (FTE) hired on the contract as a result of a recruitment programme
1.5
No. of w eeks of training opportunities on the contract (BTEC, City & Guilds, NVQ, HNC) that have either been completed
during the year, or that w ill be supported by the organisation until completion in the follow ing years - Level 2,3, or 4+ delivered for groups specified in 'LISTNT9a' (e.g. NEETs, under-represented gender and ethnic groups, disabled,
homeless, rehabilitating young offenders)
1.6
No. of w eeks of apprenticeships on the contract that have either been completed during the year, or that w ill be supported
by the organisation to completion in the follow ing years - Level 2,3, or 4+ - delivered for groups specified in 'LIST NT10a'
(e.g. NEETs, under-represented gender and ethnic groups, disabled, homeless, rehabilitating young offenders)
1.7
Equality, diversity and inclusion training provided both for staff and supply chain staff
1.8
Initiatives to be taken to support older, disabled and vulnerable people to build stronger community netw orks (e.g.
befriending schemes, digital inclusion clubs)
1.9
No. of employees on the contract that have been provided access for at least 12 months to multidimensional w ellbeing
programmes that include flexible w orking time arrangements; healthy nutrition options; physical health programmes; a
health risk appraisal questionnaire; access to health and w ellbeing resources (e.g. a tailored health improvement w eb
portal; w ellness literature; and seminars and w orkshops focused on identified w ellness issues)
1.10
No. of employees provided w ith w orkplace screening (e.g. questionnaire) and support (e.g. six session of cognitive
behavioural therapy) for anxiety and depression
1.11
Mental Health campaigns for staff on the contract to create community of acc eptance, remove stigma around mental
health
1.12
Initiatives taken or supported to engage people in health interventions (e.g. stop smoking, obesity, alcoholism, drugs, etc.)
or w ellbeing initiatives in the community, including physical activities for adults and children
1.13
Initiatives aimed at reducing crime (e.g. support for local youth groups, lighting for public spaces, private security, etc.)
1.14
Percentage of employees (FTE) BAME hired on the contract
1.15
Specific initiatives or recruitment programmes for w omen run for the contract (Y/N)
1.16
Specific initiatives or recruitment programmes for BAME run for the contract (Y/N)
1.17
Percentage of w omen (FTE) hired on the contract

INVESTING IN OUR LOCAL ECONOMY
Betw een 1 and 3 measures shall be selected from 2.0 to 2.7 plus any of the optional measures 2.08 to 2.26
2.0
No. of local direct employees (FTE) hired or retained (for re-tendered contracts) on contract for one year or the w hole
duration of the contract, w hichever is shorter
2.1
No. of residents (FTE) from the listed sub-localities employed directly or through the supply chain as a result of your
procurement requirements on the contract for one year or the w hole duration of the contract, whichever is shorter (see
sub-localities listed in 'LISTNT1b')
2.2
No. of local people (FTE) on contract for one year or the w hole duration of the contract, whichever is shorter, employed
through the supply chain as a result of your procurement requirements
2.3
Meaningful local w ork placements that pay Minimum or National Living w age according to eligibility - 6 w eeks or more
(internships)
2.4
Number and type of initiatives to be put in place to reduce the gender pay gap for staff employed in relation to the
contract (describe and document initiatives)
2.5
No. of hours of support into w ork provided to local unemployed people through career mentoring, including mock

Page 82
8 of 10

2.6
2.7
2.8
2.9
2.10
2.11
2.12
2.13
2.14
2.15
2.16
2.17
2.18
2.19
2.20
2.21
2.22
2.23
2.24
2.25
2.26

interview s, CV advice, and careers guidance -(over 24 y.o.)
Total amount (£) spent through contract w ith LOCAL micro, small and medium enterprises (MSMEs)
Total amount (£) spent w ith VCSEs w ithin your supply chain
Percentage of local employees (FTE) on contract
Percentage of staff on contract that is paid at least the relevant Real Living w age as specified by Living Wage foundation
Percentage of invoices on the contract paid w ithin 30 days
No. of staff hours spent on local school and college visits e.g. delivering careers talks, curriculum support, literacy
support, safety talks (including preparation time)
No. of w eeks of training opportunities on the contract (BTEC, City & Guilds, NVQ, HNC) that have either been completed
during the year, or that w ill be supported by the organisation until completion in the follow ing years - Level 2,3, or 4+
No. of w eeks of apprenticeships on the contract that have either been completed during the year, or that w ill be
supported by the organisation until completion in the follow ing years - Level 2,3, or 4+
Support a ‘just transition’ for w orkers by supporting those in ‘traditional’ high carbon industries to retrain
No. w eeks on the contract of apprenticeships relating to the low carbon economy - opportunities either to be completed
during the year, or that w ill be supported by the organisation to completion in the follow ing years - Level 2,3, or 4+
No. of hours dedicated to support young people into w ork (e.g. CV advice, mock interview s, careers guidance) - (under
24 y.o.)
No. of w eeks spent on meaningful w ork placements or pre-employment course; 1-6 w eeks student placements (unpaid)
Employment taster days for those interested in w orking in the real estate and construction industry
Provision of expert business advice to help VCSEs and MSMEs achieve net zero carbon by 2030
Occupier satisfaction score (NPS)
No. of local direct employees (FTE) w hich are TUPE transfers retained on contract for one year or the w hole duration of
the contract, whichever is shorter (re-tendered contracts only - to be used at Measurement)
Total amount (£) spent in LOCAL supply chain through the contract
Total amount (£) spent w ith local Micro and Small enterprises within your supply chain through the contract
Meet the buyer' events held to highlight local supply chain opportunities
Donations or in-kind contributions to local community projects (£ & materials)
No. of hours volunteering time provided to support local community projects

WORKING TOGETHER FOR A BETTER AND GREENER FUTURE
Betw een 1 and 3 measures shall be selected from 3.0 to 3.7 plus any of the optional measures 3.08 to 3.29
3.1
Savings in CO2 emissions on contract achieved through de-carbonisation (specify how these are to be achieved)
3.2
Contribution made on the contract to ow n carbon offset fund (when it has been demonstrated said carbon cannot
emission cannot be reduced w ithin the contract's timeframe)
3.3
Carbon savings from energy efficiency measures on site (e.g. increased use of renewables)
3.4
Embodied Carbon reductions in CO2e emissions against baseline
3.5
Car miles saved on the project as a result of a green transport programme or equivalent (e.g. cycle to w ork programmes,
public transport or car pooling programmes, etc.)
3.6
Car miles driven using low or no emission staff vehicles included on project as a result of a green transport programme
3.7
Offsets or mitigation initiatives on biodiversity delivered w henever restoration is not available, and w hen implemented
beyond legislative or regulatory requirements: Natural Capital Approach carbon sequestration and air quality benefits
3.8
Percentage of assets where sustainability risk has been reduced
3.9
Offset embodied carbon emissions from construction material
3.10
Carbon offset fund payments against new developments (payments into external carbon offset funds e.g. through S106)
3.11
Corporate travel schemes available to employees on the contract (subsidised public transport, subsidised cycling
schemes and storage, sustainable corporate transport such as electric bus from public station to corporate facilities)
3.12
Percentage of fleet or construction vehicles on the contract that is at Least Euro 6 or LEV
3.13
Fleet emissions monitoring programme on the contract, including data collection (miles, type of vehicle, engine type,
emission standard)
3.14
Carbon Certification (Carbon Trust Standard, Planet Mark or equivalent independently verified) - achieved or to achieve
for current year
3.15
Carbon reductions through energy efficiency measures or renewables - building operations - (e.g. REEB benchmark or 3
year baseline)
3.16
Supply Chain Carbon Certification (Carbon Trust Standard for Supply Chain or equivalent independently verified) achieved or to achieve for current year
3.17
Percentage of contracts with the supply chain requiring contractors to operate low or zero emission vehicles
3.18
No. of opportunities created for local MSMEs to respond to tenders for de-carbonisation work on the contract
3.19
Policy and programme to achieve net zero carbon by 2030 including monitoring plan w ith specific milestones (issued or
to be issued by the end of 2020)
3.20
Percentage of procurement contracts that includes sustainable procurement commitments or other relevant requirements
and certifications (e.g. to use local produce, reduce food w aste, and keep resources in circulation longer.)
3.21
Requirements or support (for Micro or Small enterprises) for suppliers to demonstrate climate change and carbon
reduction training for all staff - e.g. SDGs Academy courses (NTs) or (e.g. RE) Supply Chain Sustainability School
bronze or higher or equivalent
3.22
Percentage of assets that have undergone a climate risk assessment
3.23
Plastic recycling rate on the contract ( to e.g. reduce microplastics)
3.24
Single-use plastic packaging eliminated through reusable packaging solutions or schemes (e.g. Loop or equivalent) on
the contract
3.25
Value of local partnerships to implement circular economy solutions
3.26
Hard to recycle waste diverted from landfill or incineration through specific recycling partnerships ( e.g. Terracycle or
equivalent)
3.27
Waste management verification policies: audit hierarchy, downstream audits for w aste stream
3.28
WATER: Percentage of buildings meeting good practice benchmark (e.g. REEB)
3.29
M3 w ater saved against relevant benchmark (e.g. REEB)
3.30
WASTE: Percentage of buildings meeting good practice benchmark (e.g. REEB)

Page 83
9 of 10

3.31
3.32

Tonnes w aste diverted against relevant benchmark (e.g. REEB)
Percentage of of biocomposites and equivalent materials

DELIVERING VALUE FOR MONEY AND ENSURING A SUSTAINABLE COUNCIL
4.1 must be included and 4.2 is optional
4.1
Tenderers to confirm they agree to a 1% saving to be achieved during each year of this contract, including any contract
extensions. (Track achievement of saving)
4.2
Percentage of contracts with the supply chain on w hich Social Value commitments, measurement and monitoring are
required

Page 84
10 of 10

Corporate Commissioning
& Procurement Strategy
2021/22 - 2026/27

www.gateshead.gov.uk

Page 85

Page 86
2

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

Contents
4

Foreword

5

Introduction

7

Our Vision

7

Our Values

7

Our Behaviours

8

Our Approach

11	Tackling inequality, supporting local communities,
and putting People at the heart of everything we do
13

Investing in our local economy

15

Working together for a better and greener future

18	Delivering value for money and ensuring
a sustainable council

Page 87
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

3

Foreword
This new Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy sets out
Gateshead’s approach to pro-actively using our collective resources within the
borough in the most effective way to deliver the best outcomes for Gateshead
people to help them to thrive.
Our approach to strategic commissioning helps us to understand what needs
to be done to tackle inequalities and improve the life of the communities that
we serve. A radical rethink is needed about the way that we work as a Council
and what we should expect from our suppliers, service providers, contractors,
and sub-contractors (referred to as our “supply chain”).
Gateshead is a vibrant place and residents have a strong sense of community
and local pride. We recognise the need to be inclusive, and work more
closely with Gateshead People, our partners, and our supply chain to achieve
maximum value for money and make the “Gateshead Pound” go further.
We will continue to encourage others to play a bigger role in the delivery
of improved, person-centred outcomes and explore innovative ways of
supporting them to do so.
We want to work in partnership to pursue wider social and economic benefits
for local people in a constructive and collaborative way in order to realise our
ambition of a thriving Gateshead whilst not restricting free trade.
Our Strategy ensures that we take into account key principles: to strengthen
our local economy, reduce our environmental impact, and tackle inequality
and disadvantage. It is more important now than ever before to focus on
buying locally when we can and encourage others to support Gateshead’s
economy, in order to build and retain wealth in our communities which will
help to reduce demand for some of our services.
Our Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy will help us to work
more innovatively to continue to improve Gateshead the place, and provide
the best opportunities for those who live, work, and visit here.

Councillor M Gannon
Leader of the Council

Page 88
4

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

Introduction
Gateshead Council has a gross expenditure budget of £668M (2021/22) and in the region of
£275M per annum is spent on external provision of works, goods and services (supplier and
third party payments) as illustrated in the diagrams below.
2021/22 Gross Expenditure bt Subjective(£668m)
35% - Direct Employees £236.12m
25% - Third Party Payments £165.11m
17% - Supplier Payments £113.21m
11% - Payments to individuals £73.65m
5% - Capital Financing - Council £35.31m
5% - Capital Financing - Housing £34.06m
2% - Levies £11.01m

We understand our responsibility to use this money in a way that achieves the best possible
outcomes for Gateshead people, the local economy, and generates maximum value for the
‘Gateshead Pound’. The Gateshead Pound is a term we use meaning that we will endeavour
to maximise the benefit of each £ we spend in Gateshead through spending locally, using
local supply chains, supporting local employment and upskilling local people to create a
more regenerative local economy where more money recirculates within Gateshead.
We continue to face significant financial and demand pressures arising from reductions in
public spending along with increasing expectations, an ageing population, and inequalities
across the borough. The situation has been exacerbated with the recent outbreak of Covid-19
which has hugely impacted the people of Gateshead and the Council’s ability to deliver service
by increasing financial and demand pressures further. The Council has played a vital role in
leading emergency responses to the pandemic and we are now in new and uncertain times.
Planning for recovery will enable us to take the lead in rebuilding and reforming our local
economy and supply chain to make it stronger, more resilient, innovative and sustainable.

“Our commissioning and procurement activity has a
key role to play in that recovery and the transformation
necessary to support people to thrive, continually
seeking improved outcomes by exploring ways of doing
things differently, finding new, lower cost and often better
solutions and determining what services and support will
be provided by whom”.

Page 89
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

5

“Commissioning in Gateshead is defined as a cycle
of activity that begins by considering what evidence
is telling us about our community, and then leads
us to determine the needs of our local population
and analyse what must be done to achieve the best
possible outcomes within our available resources”.
Our commissioning activity will continue to be undertaken at all levels from a strategic level
that determines how we allocate our budget, to a service level that determines how a service
should be delivered and by whom, or at an individual level to understand what care package
may be required to support a Gateshead resident.
Our procurement activity covers the whole process from the initial identification of a need
for goods, works or services; decisions about routes to market and market engagement;
through selecting suppliers or partners; receiving the goods, works or services; managing
contracts; achieving the benefits expected, to finally disposing of any assets, transitioning
to new contracts, or ending contractual arrangements that are no longer viable or required.

“Procurement in Gateshead is defined as the process
of acquiring goods, services and works, to achieve
the optimum combination of costs, benefits and risk
management, to meet the Council’s objectives“.
Our Commissioning and Procurement Strategy sets out the strategic
framework to help us deliver excellence in terms of value for money and better outcomes in
all our procurement and commissioning activity. It supports the delivery of the Councils key
priorities and strategies such as tackling inequality; supporting the local economy by creating
new businesses, new jobs and new skills; reducing waste; reducing carbon and tackling
climate change; and maximising the value of the Gateshead £; all within the constraints of
ever reducing budgets.
In accordance with the public procurement rules and the new National Procurement Policy
Statement, our approach is relevant, proportionate and aims to secure “best value”, i.e. the
optimum combination of whole life costs and social benefits to meet our requirements.
We have a good track record of working in partnership with others such as various health
sector organisations, other councils, NEPO, SCAPE, and we believe that by working together
on social value and wider corporate responsibilities we can develop and implement a
Gateshead specific Community Wealth Building Programme and achieve more for the
people of Gateshead, but we need to re-define our relationship with some of the markets
within which we operate, and to support the community and voluntary sector to become
more resilient.
We expect high standards of integrity and professionalism in all business dealings and practices
from everyone we deal with. We have developed our Corporate Social Responsibility Pledge
and a Gateshead Social Value Toolkit to clearly set out our requirements and ask that our
supply chain incorporates them in all business activities and cascades them throughout their
supply chains, enabling us all to work towards a fair, inclusive, sustainable, and progressive
economy.

Page 90
6

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

Our Vision
We will continue to provide first class, outcome focused services based on compliant
commissioning and procurement activity that delivers value for money, maximises the
value of the Gateshead £, tackles inequality, helps to reduce our carbon footprint and
supports Gateshead people to thrive.

Our Values
How we work is as important as what we set out to do. For us to be effective it’s not just
about what we do, but how we do it. Our values define how we work as a Council and
help to inform important decisions and choices. Our values are evident in everything we
do and will be demonstrated by us all.

Integrity
We will alwa
ys work with
integrity - de
monstrating
fairness and
respect eve
ry
day and in e
very way.

Inclusive
usive - one
We will be incl
g together
council workin
people
and engaging
sults
to get better re
uality of
and ensure eq
opportunity.

l
a
n
o
i
t
a
r
i
p
s
In

, being
creatively
Thinking
ng and
d motivati
n
a
ic
m
a
n
to do
dy
everyone
g
n
ri
e
w
o
al
emp
t make a re f
a
th
s
g
in
the th
ople o
for the pe
e
c
n
re
e
iff
d
d.
Gateshea

Our Behaviours
Our behaviours will be evident in how we approach our work, how we treat
others and how we expect to be treated, as well as how we work together.
• We will always be positive, helpful, and supportive in our approach
• We will be professional and lead by example
• We will work as a team and take personal responsibility for our actions
• We will learn from our mistakes and celebrate our successes
• We will embrace and promote equality
• We will be flexible and adaptable to change

Page 91
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

7

Our Approach
Thrive
Our strategic approach, “Making Gateshead a place where everyone thrives”(Thrive),
has been developed through the following pledges:
• Put people and families at the heart of everything we do
• Tackle inequality so people have a fair chance
• Support our communities to support themselves and each other
• I nvest in our economy to provide sustainable opportunities for employment,
innovation, and growth across the borough
• Work together and fight for a better future for Gateshead.
Our commissioning and procurement activity plays a key role in the delivery of Thrive

Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Our “Thrive” delivery plan is contained within our Health and Wellbeing Strategy
This Strategy is focussed on the following key aims:
• Giving every child the best start in life, with a focus on conception to age two;
•E
 nabling all children, young people and adults to maximise their capabilities and
have control over their lives;
• Creating the conditions for fair employment and good work for all;
•E
 nsuring a healthy standard of living for all, in accordance with international law on
economic and social rights;
• Creating and developing sustainable places and communities;
• Strengthening the role and impact of ill health prevention.
Our commissioning and procurement activity plays a key role in the delivery of the
Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Climate Emergency Strategy
In May 2019 Gateshead Council declared a Climate Emergency, with a commitment
for the Council’s activities to be carbon neutral by 2030. The Council’s commissioning
and procurement activity can play a significant role in reducing the Council’s carbon
footprint. This Strategy sets out a range of measures that will help achieve this objective,
in keeping with the Council’s Climate Emergency Action Plan, published in February
2021 and emerging Climate Emergency Strategy.
Our commissioning and procurement activity plays a key role in the delivery of the
Climate Emergency Strategy.

Page 92
8

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

Economic Strategy
In September 2021, the Council began to develop an Economic Strategy that focuses on 5
policy objectives to drive the Thrive agenda:
• Building the economy of the future
• Supporting businesses
• Helping People
• Shaping future places
• Improving connectivity
Our approach to social value and commissioning and procurement activity will help to
implement the Economic Strategy.

Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy
Our Corporate Commissioning and Procurement Strategy will help us to meet the objectives
in all of the key strategies highlighted above by using our resources within the borough in
the most effective way. It is structured around the following:
• T ackling inequality, supporting local communities, and putting people at the heart of
everything we do
• I nvesting in our local economy
•W
 orking together for a better and greener future
•D
 elivering value for money and ensuring a sustainable Council

Strategic Commissioning
Our Strategic Commissioning activity begins by considering what data and evidence
is telling us about our community, and then leads us to determine the needs of our local
population. Further consultation and data analysis enables us to understand what must be
done to achieve the best possible outcomes within available resources, considering our
statutory obligations and what role we, and our partners should play in the delivery of those
outcomes.

Facilitating
role
Enabling
role

Inf luencing
role

Delivery
role

Funding
role

We are increasingly using a strategic commissioning approach in the design of services
and to channel the resources of our communities to best effect to gain maximum value for
everyone.

Page 93
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

9

Our Commissioning and Procurement Strategy will communicate to all stakeholders our
vision for the way forward in commissioning and procuring goods, works and services
and detailing everyone’s responsibilities in achieving Thrive. We recognise that by
implementing our Strategy we will become a more strategic and modern organisation
which is networked and agile; empowers communities, employees and its partners;
and is focused on reducing cost and place shaping.

An emerging approach to commissioning in complexity
Working with Collaborate for Social Change and Newcastle Business School we have
begun to explore new ways of commissioning services for individuals. We recognise
that the current ways of working do not enable service providers to respond effectively
to the challenges faced by people today. We are in complex times and complexity of
need is increasing. Our assumptions about what people want, need, and aspire to are
changing as we learn more from our Public Sector Reform work to understand individual
people who lead complex lives.
By recognising our communities as complex systems and complex places influenced by
many but controlled by none, we know that working in isolation or silos, and in a way
that considers and attempts to help specific issues faced by people, one by one, is not
likely to be successful in the longer term. The three shifts in thinking and practice that
underpin the emerging new ways of working include:

Motivatio

n

Our new
as
will be th sumption
at people
intrinsica
a
lly motiva re
ted to
do a goo
d job. Th
ey
require ‘i
ncentivis do not
in
g’ to do
the right
thing
need help . Instead, they
and supp
continuo
usly impro ort to
ve
judgeme
nt and pra their
ctice.

Learning and
adaptation

System Healt

h

We will also assume that
to
learning is the mechanism
ce
an
rm
rfo
achieve excellent pe
nt.
and continuous improveme
Learning comes from many
ent
sources – from measurem
the
on
and analysis, to reflection
nts
sensemaking and judgeme
ons
ati
situ
in
y
we make every da
w
vie
ll
of uncertainty. We wi
p
learning as a feedback loo
and
which will drive adaptation
nt.
me
ve
continuous impro

Outcome
s are cre
people’s
interactio ated by
n with wh
systems,
ole
interventi not by particular
ons, or o
rgan
As part o
f our co-o isations.
rdin
role, we
need to in ating
network
vest in
infrastruc
tu
re
organisa
to enable
tions
effective to communicate
ly; b
trusting re uild positive,
lationship
develop
s; and
the skills
of people
work in th
who
es
healthy s ystem to create
ystems w
hic
produce
better ou h will
tcomes.

While undertaking this work we will not lose sight of the Standards of Good
Commissioning as set out in “Commissioning for Better Outcomes” by Institute of Local
Government Studies and University of Birmingham.

Page 94
10

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

Tackling inequality, supporting local
communities, and putting people
at the heart of everything we do
Our Gateshead Joint Strategic Needs Assessment helps us to understand the key issues
facing people in Gateshead, however our work around “Commissioning for Complexity”
and “Public Sector Transformation” tells us that people are rarely facing single issues
and that there are often numerous influences that lead to inequalities. Helping people to
thrive depends upon us really understanding them in the round and the range of issues
that influence them and impact on their lives. We therefore will involve local people in the
planning of services so that their priorities are incorporated in service provision.
Our Commissioning for Complexity work will enable us to take a step back and consider
more flexible approaches to supporting people which may no longer be measured in terms
of time and/or task but monitor success in terms of improved wellbeing, independence
and social connections. Through better commissioning of services, we want to empower
people to make the most of their lives and reach their full potential.
We want children and young people to have the best start in life. We know that many
families already enable this and therefore we will target our support to children and young
people who need it the most.

We will also deploy our every contact matters approach to identify potential support at
an early stage to prevent issues from escalating and we will ensure that our partners and
supply chains adopt this approach in their everyday work.
We know that health inequalities and poverty (including in work poverty) are the biggest
challenges that the people of Gateshead face and therefore we will target some elements
of service provision to those most in need, and we will engage our supply chain to help
us to readdress some of the inequality between different areas within our borough, or
sectors of our population through our Social Value Toolkit. We will encourage our partners
and supply chain to provide greater opportunity to parts of our communities to prosper
by, for example, targeting recruitment and training initiatives to those who are most
disadvantaged.
Other forms of inequalities can also impact on people’s ability to thrive including
digital exclusion. Whilst pursuing our digital by default policy, we will ensure that our
communications, engagement, and service provisions are conducted through a wide
range of channels, so that we do not inadvertently leave behind those who are unable to
access or communicate via digital means.
Inequalities exist beyond the boundaries of Gateshead and we will strive to reduce
inequalities in everything we do, for example in addition to supporting local people and
our local communities, we will support fair trade where possible so that people in third
world countries also have a fair chance.

Page 95
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

11

The action we will take includes:
• I mplementing a strategic commissioning approach that ensures that services are person
centred, flexible, accessible, and focused on delivering more effective and progressive needs
and outcomes to enable everyone to maximise their potential, strive for independence and
have control over their lives;
•C
 onsidering people’s needs in the round, involving them in the planning and co-production of
services that impact on their lives, and delivering them where and how people want to receive them;
• F urther developing our Commissioning in Complexity work to implement more flexible
approaches to supporting people that measures success in terms of improved wellbeing,
independence and social connections, rather than tasks or time;
• I ntegrating our health and care services whilst ensuring they are place based and bespoke to
the needs of individuals;
•D
 eploying our every contact counts approach to all activity, and ensuring that our partners and
supply chains adopt the same approach;
• F ocussing on early intervention and striving to reduce future demand for services and taking a
whole life cost approach to measuring outcomes.
•A
 pplying appropriate challenge to all decision making using open, fair, non-discriminatory, and
transparent processes that are proportionate, build confidence and create a level playing field for all;
•U
 sing our commissioning and procurement levers to tackle poverty, (with particular focus on in
work poverty), ill health, social inequality, isolation, and digital exclusion; and promoting good
health and wellbeing in everything we do;
•B
 asing our resource allocation on the priorities of our communities, targeting those individuals
and communities most disadvantaged, or at risk;
• T aking appropriate, proportionate action to support fair trade and tackle the risks associated
with Human Trafficking and Serious and Organised Crime groups infiltrating supply chains;

We will deliver this through:
• Our Health and Wellbeing Strategy
• Our Housing Strategy
• Our “Commissioning for Complexity” work
• Maximising the value of the Gateshead £
• O
 ur Social Value Toolkit
• Our Corporate Social Responsibility Pledge
• Our category management approach and category strategies

How will we measure success?
• Our supply chain will be more diverse
• The value of the Gateshead £ will be maximised
• C
 ontracts will be more effective as a result of improved
customer input, supplier input and continuous learning.

Page 96
12

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

Investing in our local economy
To enable Gateshead people to thrive we need to invest in our local economy and one
of the ways that we can do this is by maximising the benefits derived from every £ spent
in Gateshead, not only by us but by our partners too.
Working with Centre for Local Economic Strategies (CLES), we are becoming a
committed practitioner of community wealth building principles. Driven by a desire
for our communities to greatly benefit from our spending power; and to develop more
inclusivity, we aim to reorganise the Gateshead economy so that wealth is not extracted;
but broadly retained and generative, with local roots, so that income is recirculated;
communities are put first and the people of Gateshead are provided with opportunity,
dignity, and well-being.
The recent Covid-19 crisis has highlighted the fragilities and failings of our national
and local economies and has demonstrated that the procurement and economic
development practices of the past should not provide a road map for the future. We need
to skilfully plan the process for economic recovery and reform at a local level, working
with CLES to try to combat the coming economic turmoil which is likely to intensify the
long-term economic challenges that have been identified by the Council in recent years.
Our place leadership and procurement and commissioning activity will help to stimulate
private, public, and social investment in Gateshead. We have developed a flexible
Social Value Toolkit to ensure that maximum and focussed social value considerations
are built into all our commissioning and procurement activity to maximise the value of our
commercial arrangements. The more money we spend locally, and with organisations
that are locally regenerative, the greatest impact this will have on our local economy.
We will prioritise the use of Gateshead based organisations with a focus on providing
opportunities to local people to develop life skills and help to prepare them for work to
support Gateshead people to thrive where possible and legal to do so.
Our commissioning and procurement activity aligned with community wealth building
practices will help us to deliver our emerging Economic Strategy and advance the ‘Thrive’
agenda aspirations to develop Gateshead as a place where more people are
flourishing, prosperous, successful, and faring well. Some work has already
started, and we are refining our approach to various spend categories,
however, we need to focus more on bringing about
structural and societal change for our communities and
local economies by taking responsibility for generating
economic, environmental, and social growth.
Our communities, partners and supply chains are playing
an increasingly key role in helping us to achieve
outcomes. We will work with them, in addition to
our own workforce, to ensure that skills continue
to be developed so we can successfully make
the changes needed to create a better future for
the people of Gateshead. We are also committed
to identifying and sharing best practice, by engaging
a range of local organisations with whom we can work
to extend community wealth building aspirations across
the borough.

Page 97
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

13

The action we will take includes:
• I mplementing category strategies for all our key spend areas which will have a focus on
maximising the value of the Gateshead £;
•C
 ontinuing our work with CLES and our partners to further develop and promote Community
Wealth Building in Gateshead;
•S
 upporting the local economy by making procurement spend more accessible to local small
businesses and community and voluntary sector, and ensuring that local organisations can compete;
•D
 eveloping and implementing our Gateshead Social Value Toolkit across all high value
procurements and developing a proportionate approach for all lower value procurements;
• I dentifying gaps in our local supply chains and supporting the creation of diverse, sustainable,
and good quality local supplier/provider markets;
•S
 upporting people to thrive by ensuring that local wages are fair, good recruitment and
employment practices are adopted, and by providing life skills, experience and opportunities
for readiness for work for young people and adults throughout their lives;
•R
 eviewing our Corporate Social Responsibility Pledge to streamline and prioritise the areas
that will have the greatest impact;
• I mproving engagement with local suppliers, social enterprises and supported businesses to
help grow local provider capability and capacity and to promote innovation;
• I mproving the quality of data used to support our commissioning and procurement
activity by developing more category and local market knowledge and expertise;
•H
 elping to build more sustainable, sufficiently skilled, and regenerative
businesses that create wealth which remains within Gateshead
and is not extracted;

We will deliver this through:
• Our Economic Strategy
• Maximising the value of the Gateshead £
• Our Community Wealth Building work
• Our Social Value Toolkit
• Our category management approach and
category strategies
• Our Corporate Social Responsibility Pledge

How will we measure success?
• C
 ommunity Wealth Building principles are embedded across
everything we, and our partners do
• A
 greater proportion of our spend is with organisations based in
Gateshead, or the North East region
• A
 n increased number of Gateshead people are employed in the
delivery of services across the Borough

Page 98
14

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

Working together for a better and
greener future
We know that where we live and the home we live in, together with the physical environment,
the communities, and social networks to which we belong can all significantly impact on our
achievements and wellbeing. Developing Gateshead as a greener, sustainable, thriving
borough lies at the heart of what we are trying to achieve, and our commissioning and
procurement activity can play key role in helping us to succeed.
The Council has declared a climate emergency and we are doing everything we can through
our commissioning and procurement activity to improve air quality, minimise waste and
reduce the borough’s carbon footprint. In February 2021 we published a Climate Emergency
Action Plan that will deliver on the council’s commitment to make its own activities carbon
neutral by 2030. We have made significant progress in recent years in reducing the carbon
emissions associated with our own activities. We have invested in new technologies to help
us reduce reliance on fossil fuels for providing heat and power to our buildings, and improved
the efficiency of street lighting, and this has resulted in a reduction in carbon emissions by
55% since 2010.
However, the Council’s own activities account for only around 2.5% of Gateshead’s total
emissions. Clearly, achieving a significant reduction in total emissions from Gateshead requires
action within our communities, our business sector and from our partners. Our Climate
Emergency Strategy sets out how communities, businesses and other agencies can reduce
their carbon footprint, and the steps that the Council can take in facilitating this.
Our procurement and commissioning activity will support the delivery of
the Climate Emergency Strategy and Action Plan through the inclusion
of carbon reduction criteria within our specifications and the
implementation of our Social Value Toolkit.
Resilient, inclusive, greener communities are more sustainable
and more likely to support people to thrive than those
dependant on the council and/or its partners. We fully
understand the benefits of working with our communities,
supply chain and partners in all our commissioning and
procurement activity. Working collaboratively enables:
• Accessing resource that otherwise would not be available to us;
• Streamlining of processes and sharing capacity which may lead to
investment in carbon reduction solutions;
• Spend aggregation to maximise economies of scale, where appropriate;
• Sharing and effectively using data across a wider range of organisations;
• Access to wider experience and greater expertise;
• Greater influence on providers and supply markets to tackle
climate emergency;

Page 99
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

15

Our inclusive approach to Community Wealth Building will bring about structural and
societal change which is required to provide a better future for our communities and
local economies. We also have a good track record in commissioning and procuring
jointly with others as evidenced by the many lead roles we have undertaken and joint
arrangements we participate in, as the examples below evidence:
Integrated Commissioning with Health
Working closely with Newcastle/Gateshead CCG (CCG), we have made huge progress
with an integrated commissioning model for health and social care to meet the needs of
our communities. The Gateshead Health & Care System (Gateshead Cares) developed
an Alliance Agreement in April 2021 that has provided an opportunity for the Gateshead
system to set its stall out, making the most of the relationships that have been developed at
Place over a long period and looking to maximise benefits for the Gateshead population
in the future.
The Agreement supports the Gateshead Thrive agenda and it will facilitate further
progress towards integrated commissioning and delivery of health and care services
across Gateshead through its core objectives which are to:
(i) reduce levels of inequality through tackling the circumstances that lead to inequality;
(ii) shift the balance of services from acute hospital care and crisis interventions to
community support with a focus on prevention, early help and self-help, matched by
appropriate resource levels;
(iii) support the development of integrated care and treatment for people with
complicated long-term health conditions, social problems or disabilities;
(iv) c reate a joint planning and financial framework for managing the difficult decisions
required to ensure effective, efficient and economically secure services, getting the
most from the Gateshead £.
Strategic thinking through an integrated service will increase the
knowledge base and enhance the development of services
to meet the challenges being faced by commissioning
services in the ever-changing market. The CCG has
increasingly moved towards Place based working
arrangements in anticipation of future changes to
the health landscape and this has included the
development of a Gateshead Team so that it
can work more closely and more effectively
with the Council and other partners within the
Borough.
North East Procurement Organisation
We continue to support and fully engage with
the North East Procurement Organisation.
As a founder member of the consortium we
benefit from NEPO’s capacity, co-ordination
role, governance structure and operational
model designed to harness the expertise
and experience of procurement officers from
across the region and this is set out in a Regional
Collaborative Procurement Strategy. We also work
together to develop joint strategies and policies.

Page 100
16

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

SCAPE
As a founder member of SCAPE, we play a key role in developing the SCAPE construction
frameworks which are recognised nationally as an effective route to market. We will work
with SCAPE to ensure that organisations based in Gateshead are tender ready and able to
compete for future opportunities when the frameworks are re-advertised.
Commissioning and procurement of services for children and adults
We participate in arrangements for the joint commissioning and procurement of services
for children and adults. Some of the work is around developing joint strategies for service
provision and other work has led to joint procurement of services such as children’s residential
services, advocacy services and arrangements for independent fostering organisations.
Whilst accepting that working in collaboration brings about many benefits, we must however
learn to better balance the benefits of working collaboratively with the benefits of engaging
Gateshead based organisations and the retention of wealth within our borough and reducing
travel and distribution (road miles) where possible.

The action we will take includes:
•D
 emonstrating a whole system approach to promote sustainability values and behaviours,
and ensuring the best use of all resources through joint working between the Council,
other public services, the private and voluntary sectors;
•S
 upporting growth in the “green economy” and facilitating a transition to more
environmentally sustainable (often also more financially efficient) working practices.
•M
 aximising our social value leverage to deliver a sustainable future for all by considering
climate emergency and environmental impacts throughout our commissioning and
procurement activity
•U
 pskilling our employees and our supply chains on improving environmental impacts such
as knowledge of sustainable materials and processes, waste minimisation, sustainability
accreditations etc;
•C
 onsidering the benefits of regional or national collaboration against the potential impact
on the Gateshead economy for all commissioning and procurement activity.
•D
 eveloping a culture of innovation and improvement, using business intelligence to
ensure that services procured are designed and delivered to meet sustainability criteria,
changing outcomes and future needs.

We will deliver this through:
•  Our Climate Emergency Strategy and Action Plan
•  Maximising the value of the Gateshead £
•  Our category management approach and category strategies
•  Our Social Value Toolkit
•  Our Corporate Social Responsibility Pledge

How will we measure success?
• B
 enefits have been realised from the implementation of the Gateshead Health and
Care System Alliance Agreement
• Climate change and environmental sustainability impacts have been minimised
• The Council is on track to achieve it’s CO2 zero emissions target by 2030

Page 101
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

17

Delivering value for money and
ensuring a sustainable Council
The Council has faced many years of austerity and has delivered over £170m of budget
cuts whilst trying to minimise the impact on the people of Gateshead. There is a
considerable estimated funding gap in the years to come and therefore it is important
that we try to minimise spend and achieve value for money in all of our commissioning
and procurement activity.
Achieving value for money means spending wisely, strategically planning the use of
resources using category management techniques, challenging unnecessary spend,
reducing demand, and managing contracts when they are in place. The Council has
plans to achieve value for money in the following ways:
Category Management
Category management can help to drive effective commissioning and procurement
activity and help us to plan the best way of delivering outcomes. Starting with a
comprehensive analysis of the Council’s spend and local market capacity and capability,
it will enable a strategic approach that focuses on the entire spend within a specific
category, and if applied effectively it will reduce demand, simplify the way we buy,
improve market engagement and aggregate spend across all groups and services.
The results can be significantly greater than traditional transactional and silo-based
purchasing by;
• improving overall value from all external spend through better planning and coordination resulting in budget reductions;
• identifying, managing and reducing risks;
•m
 aximising social value by considering it in a wider context;
• identifying the best routes to market;
•e
 nabling us to balance potential savings to be made through effective collaboration,
with potential negative impacts on the local economy should local suppliers fail to
win collaborative contracts;
•g
 aining access to more innovation from procurement processes through better
supplier engagement.
Demand management
We will better understand, manage, reduce demand, and develop flexible services that
better target scarce resources and shift away from a typical ‘universal’ service approach.
Procurement and commissioning teams should strive to find alternative and lower
cost ways of meeting customer needs through challenging the status quo. Demand
management practices often involve changing the respective roles and relationships
between provider and customer, such as by promoting independence, facilitating peer
to peer support and by empowering customers to decide how their needs can best be
met within the overall reducing budgetary constraints.

Page 102
18

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

Contract and supplier management
A significant amount of time and resource is spent on managing external provision for
the delivery of goods, works or services to our communities. Although areas of best
practice exist within the Council, we need to ensure that we maximise all our commercial
arrangements, and realise what we set out to achieve in terms of value for money. A more
consistent approach to supplier and contract management built on appropriate relationship
management of supply chains will be developed to:
•e
 nsure that suppliers meet their contractual obligations;
• a chieve savings, and continuous improvement throughout the life of our contracts;
•e
 vidence contract performance and effectiveness in gaining maximum value from
contracts;
• identify and manage our own risks in addition to better understanding supplier’s risks;
•m
 easure ongoing savings, social value, value for money, and outcomes;
•e
 nsure that contracts remain responsive, relevant, and effective;
•e
 nsure that what was envisaged from the outset (outcomes) is actually achieved.
We will also try to ensure that our contractors act fairly with their own supply chains in terms
of passing on fair terms and conditions, paying promptly, promoting good employment
practices, and ensuring their sustainability.
Risk Management
We will identify and manage risks through a number of approaches that are integral to our
commissioning and procurement activity, and continue through contract management.
Greater attention will be paid to higher value and higher risk areas to ensure proportionality
of our approach.
Good Governance
Operating within a good governance framework is essential for any commissioning and
procurement function, and we therefore will ensure that officers involved in these activities
have full awareness of the Public Contract Regulations 2015 and subsequent amendments,
National Procurement Policy Statement, Council Constitution, Contract Procedure Rules,
Financial Procedure Rules and various other Council policies and strategies that apply to
this activity.

Page 103
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

19

Modernisation
Continuous change is becoming the norm and our commissioning and procurement
activity must adapt to change and ensure that solutions are flexible, progressive,
innovative and effective.
Working alongside NEPO, we were at the forefront of implementing eTendering
many years ago, and at that time were able to demonstrate increased efficiency and
productivity using e-procurement solutions, leading to a reduction in the capacity of our
procurement team. A wider range of suppliers have been encouraged to do business
with us through our procurement portal and some barriers to doing business have been
removed without compromising process.
Procurement processes have changed significantly since the development of the
existing eTendering solution; however, the electronic procurement solution providers
have not kept up with the changes and modernised their systems sufficiently. The
procurement systems available on the market are clunky, overly bureaucratic, operate
on old technology and are often cited as a barrier to SME engagement.
Since 2017, we have worked collaboratively with, and contributed to, the development
of NEPO’s “OPEN” project. The ultimate driver of this project is to establish an
innovative solution that optimises the end to end procurement function through
automation, standardisation and improved technology. Built around the needs of
the procurement functions within the NEPO member authorities and focussed on
streamlining procurement processes and making it easier for businesses to
trade with us, the new, intuitive system will be designed and built
on the latest technology platforms and will include a suite of
tools and processes to ensure that procurement activity
is undertaken effectively and efficiently. It will enable
a greater level of data collection, manipulation,
and analysis to achieve outcomes more cost
effectively. It is anticipated that the new system
will be available for implementation during
2022.
Commercialisation
Recognising the importance of
increasing
commercial
activity
to drive financial self-sufficiency,
there is an increasing role for
commissioning and procurement
in commercialisation and income
generation. Renegotiation of existing
contract could be a source of further
savings or income, and each new
contract will consider opportunities
for efficiency savings throughout the
duration of the contract, and a more
commercial approach which may also
include exploiting assets, selling services
and further reducing costs through cost/
benefit analysis.

Page 104
20

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

Developing capacity and skills
We will build better procurement competencies across the Council by ensuring staff are
equipped with the knowledge training and relevant practical skills to drive maximum benefit
from commissioning and procurement activity, take on a more influential role with suppliers
and incorporate a more commercial approach by embracing the flexibilities afforded by the
Public Contract Regulations.
To deliver this strategy, the upskilling of officers across the council will ensure that they
understand the role they play in delivering Thrive through their commissioning and
procurement activity. Capacity and skills of officers will continue to be improved through:
•p
 roviding opportunities for modern apprentices and obtaining appropriate professional
qualifications;
• s upporting continuing skills development and experience for our employees to ensure
knowledge is up to date and aligned to developments in the sector;
•e
 ngaging with other local authorities, public sector organisations and other relevant
organisations to support knowledge transfer;
•p
 roviding mentoring, coaching and work shadow opportunities;
•d
 eveloping and delivering in-house workshops, training, and guidance to support better
commissioning, commercial awareness and legislative knowledge;
• t he ongoing training of technical officers and those involved in procurement evaluations
prior to embarking on specific procurement processes.
Training and support will also be provided to local SME’s and other potential suppliers
on general business improvement, how to tender, and also in the use of the Council’s
e-tendering system (both current system and the new OPEN system) in conjunction with
our Economic Development colleagues and NEPO’s Business Club.

Page 105
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

21

The action we will take includes:
• Developing and implementing a Category Management approach to the Council’s spend;
• Developing and implementing Category Strategies for key areas of spend;
• Working with and engaging suppliers in the delivery of cost reductions throughout the life of
contracts;
• Improving demand management and introducing more targeted arrangements rather than
universal services;
• Developing and implementing a more consistent approach to contract management to ensure
that what we set out to achieve is realised;
• Identifying and managing risk proportionately and effectively throughout the procurement
cycle;
• Maximising the benefits that can be achieved through the implementation of “Open“, the
new electronic procurement solution, by reviewing our commissioning and procurement
processes;
• Identifying opportunities for greater commercialisation in our commissioning and procurement
activity;
• 
Committing to the ongoing development of upskilling our employees engaged in
commissioning and procurement activity;
• Ensuring that our local suppliers have the necessary skills to tender and
deliver services to the People of Gateshead.

We will deliver this through:
• Our approach to budget setting and
management
• Our category management approach and
category strategies
• The setting of savings targets for specific
contract areas
• Our risk management processes
• Our Social Value Toolkit
• The implementation of “Open”

How will we measure success?
• B
 y implementing the ‘OPEN’ digital
procurement system, the council has:
- Streamlined procurement processes
- Improved contract management and risk management
- I mproved the quality of supplier, market and spend data
• A
 dditional value for money has resulted from the re-negotiation of existing contracts and the
implementation of efficiency targets in procurement activity
• P
 rocurement officers and suppliers are skilled to deliver better quality services

Page 106
22

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

3949-SS-NOV21

Strategy Implementation Action Plan
The Council will develop and maintain a Strategy Implementation Action Plan.
Progress against the plan will be monitored by the Councils Corporate Strategic
Commissioning and Procurement Group and further details are available from:
Procurement@gateshead.gov.uk

Corporate Commissioning & Procurement
Gateshead Council, Civic Centre, Regaent Street, Gateshead NE8 1HH
Tel: (0191) 433 3000

www.gateshead.gov.uk

Page 107

Notes

Page 108
Corporate Commissioning & Procurement Strategy

23

Agenda Item 8
COUNCIL MEETING
24 March 2022
LOCALISM ACT 2011 – PAY ACCOUNTABILITY PAY POLICY
STATEMENT 2022/23
Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The purpose of this report is to seek approval to a revised pay policy
statement, at set out in Appendix 2 to the report.

2.

Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to produce an
annual pay policy statement.

3.

The proposed pay policy covers all elements of the legislation that are
intended to demonstrate the consistency in the Council’s approach to pay
across the workforce and to highlight any differences.

4.

The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating
their recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION
5.

It is recommended that Council approves the draft Pay Policy Statement
2022/23.

Page 109

This page is intentionally left blank

REPORT TO CABINET
22 March 2021
TITLE OF REPORT:

Localism Act 2011 – Pay Accountability
Pay Policy Statement 2022-23

REPORT OF:

Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services &
Governance

Purpose of the Report
1.

To agree a revised pay policy statement, for approval by the Council, as set out in
Appendix 2 to this report.

Background
2.

Section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011 requires local authorities to produce an
annual pay policy statement. The policy must be approved by full Council before 31
March each year, but it may be amended by Council during the course of the year.

3.

Whilst there is no set format to which the policy statement must conform, Chapter 8
of the Localism Act is prescriptive in determining the elements that must be
included. It also provides for statutory guidance to be issued by the Secretary of
State, to which authorities must have regard when preparing their policies.

4.

The policy must be published on the Council’s website and be applied particularly
when the Council sets the terms and conditions for Chief Officers.

5.

The Council’s Pay Policy reflects the statutory requirements and in its development
the guidance issued by the Department for Housing, Communities and Local
Government under Section 40 of the Act has been duly considered. It has been
reviewed and updated since first agreed by Council on 22 March 2012, with the last
amendments approved on 23 March 2021.

6.

Low pay continues to be a matter of focus and debate both nationally and
regionally. The statutory National Living Wage (NLW) for employees aged 23 and
over is £9.50 per hour with effect from 1 April 2022. The UK Living Wage, as
promoted by the Living Wage Foundation, rose to £9.90 per hour outside London
with effect from November 2021.

7.

The Pay Policy also sets out the Council’s approach to applying market
supplements to address recruitment and retention issues to ensure they are
appropriate to the circumstances and their necessity is evidenced.

8.

The 2021 NJC pay award has been agreed and the revised salary scale is shown at
Annexe 1 of the Pay Policy Statement 2022/23.

Page 111
1 of 4

Proposal
9.

The Pay Policy as proposed in Appendix 2 covers all elements of the legislation set
out under main headings that are intended to demonstrate the consistency in the
Council’s approach to pay across the workforce and to highlight any differences.
Those main headings are:






General principles regarding employee pay
Lowest paid employees and chief officers (and including the relationship
between median pay and highest pay)
Governance arrangements and development of pay structures
Payment for additional duties and work outside the Council
Termination payments

10.

Although the Council has previously established rates of pay for apprentices up to
and including Level 3, the Pay Policy now includes proposed starting salaries for
apprentices at Level 4 and above. This will support the implementation of the
Council’s Apprenticeship Strategy which aims to increase the number of
apprenticeships at all levels of the workforce.

11.

In order to provide greater flexibility in addressing recruitment and retention issues,
it is also proposed that the Strategic Director, Corporate Services and Governance
be granted the discretion to award, in very exceptional circumstances, a recruitment
and retention allowance in excess of 15% (for example, 20% RRA).

Recommendation
12.

It is recommended that the attached draft policy is agreed by Cabinet and referred
to the Council for approval at its meeting on 24 March 2022.
For the following reason:
To comply with the requirements of the Localism Act 2011.

_______________________________________________________________________
Contact: Janice Barclay

Ext 2101

Page 112
2 of 4

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

The annual publication of a pay policy statement is a requirement of Chapter 8 of
the Localism Act 2011, which aims to bring greater transparency to pay in the public
sector.
Background

2.

The Council’s approach to pay has been determined by reference to collective
bargaining structures, national and local agreements, and job evaluation in the
context of its recruitment markets. The Pay Policy Statement 2022-23 incorporates
the key principles which underpin these arrangements.
Consultation

3.

The Council’s recognised non-teaching trade unions have been consulted on the
Pay Policy. Consultation is ongoing with the trade unions on further options to
address low pay.
Management and the trade unions are also working together to review the current
position relating to job evaluation and pay and grading.

4.

The Leader of the Council has been consulted on the Pay Policy Statement and is
supportive of the recommendations.
Alternative Options

5.

The publication of a pay policy statement is a legal obligation under the Localism
Act 2011.
Implications of Recommended Option

6.

Resources:
a)

Financial Implications – the Strategic Director, Resources & Digital
confirms that any financial implications arising from the pay policy statement
have been considered as part of revenue budget setting 2022/23 and cost
implications will be further reviewed as part of the of the Medium-Term
Financial Strategy

b)

Human Resources Implications – the Council’s Pay Policy and practice is
designed to recruit, reward, motivate and retain as necessary employees
with the skills and attributes required to deliver Council services. It is part of
the Council’s overall human resources policy framework, through which it
aims to be an exemplary employer.

c)

Property Implications – there are no property implications arising from the
recommendations within this report.

Page 113
3 of 4

7.

Risk Management Implications - The changes in the Council’s Pay Policy
statement as recommended in the report are relatively minor and are not considered
to introduce any new risk.

8.

Equality and Diversity Implications – Fair pay and reward are fundamental to the
Council’s approach to employment. The Council’s use of equalities-tested job
evaluation schemes, Trade Union representation in collective bargaining, and
application of consistent pay principles throughout the organisational structure
ensure that equality and diversity issues are properly taken into account.

9.

Crime and Disorder Implications – There are no crime and disorder implications.

10. Health Implications - There are no health implications.
11. Sustainability Implications - There are no sustainability implications.
12. Human Rights Implications - There are no human rights implications.
13. Ward Implications - There are no ward implications.
14. Background Information - Gateshead Council’s pay policies from 2013 to 2021/22.

Page 114
4 of 4

Pay Policy
Statement
2022 - 23

Page 115

Links to Other Policies:
Redundancy Policy and Procedure
Retirement Policy

Effective date:
1 April 2022

Status:
This policy and procedure does not form part of any employee's contract of
employment and the Council may amend it at any time.

HR and Workforce Development Policy and Guidance in Gateshead
Council
Gateshead Council’s HR and Workforce Development policies take into account current
legislation, rules, regulations and best practice guidance from a range of professional and
public bodies, including the following:

UK Legislation

ACAS

CIPD Best Practice

Page 116

Gateshead Council
Pay Policy Statement 2022/23
Introduction
1.

This document sets out Gateshead Council’s pay policy in relation to the
remuneration of its staff in accordance with section 38(1) of the Localism Act 2011.
The policy reflects the Council’s consideration of the Guidance issued by the former
Department for Communities and Local Government under Section 40 of the Act
and is subject to review and changes approved by the Council. The policy will be
published on the Council’s website as soon as reasonably practicable after approval
or amendment.

2.

The key principles of the Council’s pay policy are set out below and are effective
from 1 April 2022. The policy includes commentary upon:





The general principles that underpin the Council’s approach to its pay policy;
Definitions of the ‘lowest paid employees’ and ‘chief officers’ for the purposes of
pay comparison;
The relationship between the remuneration of chief officers, average pay, and
the remuneration of the lowest paid employees; and
The re-employment of former employees who left the Council with enhanced
retirement and redundancy benefits.

3.

The policy also includes discretion for the Strategic Director, Corporate Services &
Governance, in the interpretation and application of nationally agreed terms and
conditions of employment to Gateshead Council employees.

4.

The arrangements set out within this document do not extend to those members of
staff who are employed within schools, which are matters for the schools’ discretion.

5.

The salaries quoted in the pay policy reflect the current NJC Green Book Pay
Award which was implemented with effect from 1 April 2021. The Council’s current
pay scale is shown at Annexe 1.
General principles regarding employee pay

6.

This pay policy provides a basis on which Gateshead Council can compete in
labour markets at all levels and for all roles, enabling the Council to attract, retain,
and fairly reward people with the knowledge, experience, skills and attributes that
are essential to the effective delivery of services to residents, businesses, and other
stakeholders in Gateshead.

7.

Gateshead Council is mindful of its obligations as an equal opportunities employer,
and wants to ensure that people are treated fairly and with respect in all its activities
and processes. The Council aims to be an organisation that recruits and retains a
diverse and skilful workforce from the local community and beyond, and its
approach to the pay and conditions of its workforce is intended to support this
objective.

Page 117

8.

In supporting the aim of ensuring equality and transparency in its pay practices, the
Council recognises the role of trade unions and employee representatives in
consultation and negotiation within a process of free collective bargaining. It
supports the national machinery for negotiation of terms and conditions of
employment and applies the agreements reached in the various Joint Councils.

9.

The Strategic Director, Corporate Services & Governance, following consultation
with the Leader of the Council, the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, and (if
deemed appropriate by him/her) having taken advice from the LGA and/or
Employers’ Organisation, has the discretion to interpret and apply national
agreements if the subject matter is not specifically covered by the pay policy.

10.

Gateshead Council’s main (NJC) pay and grading structure has been developed by
creating grades around the national ‘spinal column’ of salary points. The grades
allocated to particular posts in Gateshead Council are determined by job evaluation
(JE) of the posts, with jobs of the same JE size being allocated to the same grade.

11.

The Council’s graded pay structures include scope for service-based incremental
advancement in every case except for the Chief Executive, who is paid a spot
salary of £175,226 and employees at Grades A (SCP 2), B (SCP 3) and C (SCP 4),
who are paid a spot salary of £18,516, £18,887 and £19,264 respectively. For all
other employees, increments are paid on 1st April each year until they reach the top
of their grade, subject to the following qualifications:





Increments may be accelerated within an employee’s grade at the discretion of
the authority (exercisable by the Strategic Director, Corporate Services &
Governance at the request of the employee’s Service or Strategic Director) on
the grounds of special merit or ability, subject to the maximum of the grade not
being exceeded.
An increment may be withheld by a Service Director following an adverse report
on an employee. Any withheld increment may be paid subsequently if the
employee’s services become satisfactory.
Employees with less than six months’ service in the grade by 1 April are granted
their first increment six months after their appointment, promotion or re-grading:
except where their salary on the 1 April would be less than one SCP in excess
of the salary they would have received on that day had they remained on their
previous grade, when they will be entitled to their increment on 1 April.

12.

New appointments are subject to the Council’s recruitment and selection policies
and will generally be made at the bottom spinal column point of all pay bands
unless there are special circumstances that objectively justify payment at a higher
level within the grade, as determined by the Strategic Director, Corporate Services
& Governance.

13.

The Council operates a recruitment and retention allowances policy which is shown
at annexe 2. This allows an additional supplement to be applied on top of basic
salary in order to attract applicants of the right calibre, and to retain employees with
necessary skills and experience. A recruitment and retention allowance or market
supplement can only be approved by the Strategic Director, Corporate Services &
Governance. All such allowances are subject to review.

Page 118

14.

In the event of any employee securing a higher-graded post via internal
promotion/recruitment and there being an overlap of spinal column points between
their current post and bottom point of the newly secured position, the Council will
generally pay salary on a higher spinal column point.

15.

Arrangements exist to protect for a limited period the basic pay of employees who
are appointed for various reasons to posts with a lower substantive salary. These
arrangements are set out in the Council’s policies covering redundancy, restructuring, redeployment, ill health and disability, and bullying and harassment.

16.

There may from time to time be situations where employees are transferred into the
Council from other organisations which have different pay and conditions. The
employees’ terms and conditions on transfer may be subject to protection under
TUPE or TUPE-like arrangements, and as such may be outside the Council’s main
pay structure until such time as it is possible for them to be integrated.

17.

Various pay enhancement arrangements are in place to reflect non-standard
working patterns at a local operational level or in recompense for taking on
additional duties and responsibilities.

18.

The Council does not operate performance bonus payment schemes at any level of
the organisation.
National Minimum Wage, National Living Wage, UK Accredited Living Wage:

19.

The National Minimum Wage for employees aged 21 to 22 is £9.18 per hour; the
statutory National Living Wage (NLW) for employees aged 23 and over is £9.50 per
hour from 1 April 2022.

20.

The Council’s lowest grade (£9.60 per hour) is £0.30 less than the current UK
Accredited Living Wage rate outside of London of £9.90 per hour.
Lowest-paid employees:

21.

‘Lowest paid employees’ is defined as those full-time employees in jobs paid at
Grade A at spinal column point 2. It excludes apprentices, whose pay remains
subject to other regulations or conditions, and has specific treatment under this
policy.

22.

Spinal column point 2, at £9.60 per hour from 1 April 2021, is £0.10 per hour more
than the National Living Wage and £0.30 per hour less than the UK Accredited
Living Wage (outside London).




Annual salary at spinal column point 2 is currently £18,516.
The mode (i.e. most frequently used) salary for full-time employees falls within
Grade D, the maximum of which is £20,043. The mode salary will be
recalculated post pay award.
The median salary for full-time employees, excluding overtime and any other
additional payments, is £25,927.

Page 119

Chief Officers:
23.

‘Chief Officer’ is defined in the Localism Act 2011 as:


the head of the authority’s paid service designated under section 4(1) of the
Local Government and Housing Act 1989;



the monitoring officer designated under section 5(1) that Act;



any statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(6) of that Act;



any non-statutory chief officer mentioned in section 2(7) of that Act; and



any deputy chief officer mentioned in section 2(8) of that Act.

Under the above provisions, ‘statutory chief officer’ includes:


the person having responsibility, for all statutory purposes (inc. section 151 of
the Local Government Act 1972), for the administration of the authority’s
financial affairs;



the Director of Children’s Services appointed under section 18 of the Children
Act 2004;



the Director of Adult Social Services appointed under section 6(A1) of the Local
Authority Social Services Act 1970 (as amended by the Children Act 2004); and



the Director of Public Health appointed under section 73A(1) of the National
Health Service Act 2006.

‘non-statutory chief officer’ includes:

24.



a person for whom the head of the authority’s paid service is directly
responsible;



a person who in relation to most of their duties is required to report direct or is
directly accountable to the head of paid service and any person who similarly is
required to report direct or is directly accountable to the authority or its
committees.

The Council applies the terms and conditions of the Joint Negotiating Committee
(JNC) for Chief Officers to all officers included in paragraph 23, above, and has
therefore determined that the following roles identified in the Council’s Constitution
to be ‘chief officers’ for the purposes of this policy:


the Chief Executive



Strategic Directors



the Director of Public Health and Wellbeing



Service Directors

25.

The Chief Executive is paid on a fixed salary point of £175,226 p.a.

26.

The current ratio of lowest paid employee to highest paid employee is currently
therefore slightly less than 1:10.

27.

Strategic Directors are all paid on the same pay band, which is:

Page 120

28.

Step1

Step 2

Step 3

Step 4

Step 5

£104,129

£109,484

£112,861

£118,671

£124,600

All other chief officer posts are paid on one of three pay bands which are:
Step 1

Step 2

Step 3

Step 4

Step 5

Service Director
£84,384
Band 1

£88,723

£93,287

£98,085

£103,129

Service Director
£69,369
Band 2

£72,935

£76,688

£80,635

£84,780

Service Director
£61,029
Band 3

£64,172

£67,475

£70,942

£74,591

29.

Salaries in the pay bands at paragraphs 27 and 28 are subject to any general
increase agreed at the JNC for Chief Officers, and in the case of the Chief
Executive, the JNC for Chief Executives.

30.

General increases for other employees are mainly determined by the National Joint
Council, although different national bargaining arrangements are in place for a small
number of occupational groups such as craft trades, youth & community workers
and educational psychologists.

31.

It is a recommendation of the DCLG1 that Full Council should be offered the
opportunity to vote before a salary of £100,000 or more is offered in respect of a
new appointment. In Gateshead, all new appointments to chief officer posts are
made in accordance with the pay bands identified within this statement, which
includes those in excess of £100,000. Any proposed variation to the application of
this policy in this regard will be reported to Full Council. Reporting of any
recruitment and retention allowances is outlined in Annexe 2. Of those Chief Officer
posts whose salary exceeds £100,000 the following arrangements apply under the
Council’s Constitution: the appointment of the Chief Executive is approved by Full
Council, while Strategic Directors are appointed by the Council’s Special
Appointments Committee.
Apprenticeships (up to and including Level 3)

32.

Rate for first year of Apprenticeship:


£5.29 per hour (£10,209 p.a. pay award pending), irrespective of age

From second year of Apprenticeship:
Non-Craft Apprentices:
1

Openness and accountability in local pay: Guidance under section 40 of the Localism Act (February 2012)

Page 121



Aged 17

£5.29 per hour (£10,209 p.a. pay award pending)



Aged 18-20

£6.83 per hour (£13,177 p.a.)



Aged 21-22

£9.18 per hour (£17,711 p.a.)



Aged 23 and over

£9.50 per hour (£18,328 p.a.)

Craft Apprentices are paid the rate linked to the respective craft rate as set
out in Joint Negotiating Committee for Local Authority Craft & Associated
Employees, Red Book.
Higher and Degree Apprenticeships (Level 4 and above)
33.

Rate for first year of apprenticeship:


£9.79 per hour (£18,887) p.a., irrespective of age

From second year of apprenticeship, salary progression will be determined by the
Council’s established pay and grading method.
34.

Schools will be advised that the apprenticeship rates at paragraphs 32 and 33 are
the Council’s position and they will be asked to apply these rates to school
apprentices.
Governance Arrangements and Development of Pay Structures

35.

The current pay structure applicable to NJC employees was determined following a
comprehensive job evaluation exercise following the provisions and processes of
the national JE scheme. Separate pay structures are in place for employees
covered by the following agreements:





JNC for Local Authority Craft and Associated employees
JNC for Youth and Community Workers
The Soulbury Committee
School Teachers Pay and Conditions Document (applies to centrally
employed teachers)

36.

The Contracts Committee comprises a cross-party group of elected members who
oversee pay and conditions issues for all posts which attract Chief Officer pay and
conditions. The Chair of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee
has ex officio status on the Contracts Committee.

37.

In considering pay structures and pay levels for Chief Officers, the Contracts
Committee will seek external advice from an independent person or organisation
with expertise in senior remuneration and benefits. It will take into account matters
including:


An assessment of the size and market value of a job by reference to an
established job evaluation system that allows objective comparison to data
bases of similar jobs

Page 122








The affordability of the recommended outcome from the job evaluation and
market reference exercise in the short, medium and long term
The prevailing markets in which the Council operates, and the risk being unable
to recruit or retain senior officers with the ability to manage the Council’s affairs
to its best advantage
The relationship with the remuneration of the wider Council workforce and
national negotiating frameworks
The Council’s senior structure and planned or foreseeable future changes to
these
The expectations of the community and stakeholders
The total remuneration package

38.

Since 1 October 2012, all Strategic Directors and Service Directors have been
employed on JNC Chief Officer terms and conditions.

39.

The top three levels of the Council’s organisation structure and their associated pay
bands are published on the Council’s website in accordance with the requirements
of the Local Government Transparency Code 2014. This information will be
published annually, in addition to the requirement to publish the annual pay policy
by 31 March.
Payment for Additional Duties and Work outside the Council

40.

Chief Officers are not eligible for overtime and/or premium rates of pay for unsocial
hours that apply to other groups of staff.

41.

Contracts Committee will consider requests from the Chief Executive to undertake
secondary employment or outside duties, whether remunerated or otherwise, to
ensure there is no conflict of interest. In accordance with the Council’s Code of
Conduct for Employees, requests from Strategic Directors are determined by the
Chief Executive. For all other employees, requests to take up remunerated
appointments are determined by the Strategic Director, Corporate Services &
Governance; unpaid appointments are determined by the relevant Strategic
Director.

42.

Employees may be eligible to receive payments for additional duties and
responsibilities beyond their normal role with the Council subject to the approval of
the Strategic Director, Corporate Services & Governance. These payments may
include honoraria, additional duties or responsibilities payments, acting duty pay or
the use of accelerated increments. Payments may also be authorised for electoral
Returning Officers or specific responsibilities where the Council is the Lead
Authority and for which services are re-charged by the Council. The Contracts
Committee may approve the level and payment of such allowances to Chief Officers
where they are not prescribed elsewhere.

Termination Payments
43.

The Council operates a discretionary selective redundancy scheme which provides
enhanced redundancy payments and a retirement policy that operates in
accordance with the provisions of the Employment Rights Act 1996 and the Local
Government Pension Scheme. The redundancy scheme implemented in January

Page 123

2012 was reviewed in November 2012, and a further revised (reduced)
Redundancy Payments Scheme was implemented with effect from 1 September
2013; in accordance with good HR practice, the scheme was reviewed in 2018/19
although no substantive changes were made to it.
44.

Applications for voluntary redundancy from areas of the Council not ‘at risk’ of
redundancy will only be approved where to do so would clearly support business
planning and service delivery in the long-term, and wider strategic objectives as set
out in the Council’s Thrive Agenda. In order to reach a decision on whether or not to
support an application, consideration will be given to the viability of a bumped
redundancy where appropriate.

45.

Whilst there is nothing to prevent employees who have received voluntary
redundancy and/or early retirement pension payments from working for another
organisation or for themselves, the Council’s general practice is to not re-employ
them. The clear intention is that individuals should not benefit from further
employment with the Council when they have already been compensated for loss of
their job and may be in receipt of enhanced redundancy payments or pensions in
accordance with this pay policy statement and other associated policies. A similar
principle applies to re-employment of employees who have previously taken early
retirement with enhancements.

46.

There should therefore be a minimum of 12 months’ break before consideration is
given to their return to employment within the Council in the circumstances outlined
above. There may, however, be occasions when labour, skills or knowledge are
required, and particularly in the case of employees who were made redundant,
individuals will not be barred from applying for roles such as casual workers
(NOMOs) if there is no direct link with their former job and is outside of the service
they were previously employed in.
Publication and Access to Information

47.

The Council’s annual pay policy and any in-year revisions will be published in full on
the Council’s website. The Local Government Transparency Code 2014 also
requires publication of certain organisational issues, and these overlap the pay
policy in a number of respects; these will also be accessible on the Council’s
website.

Page 124

Annexe 1
Pay Spine from 1 April 2021
Grade

SCP

Salary
£

1s t 12
Apprenti ce Mths

App1
App2
Apprenti ce Age 21-22 App3
Apprenti ce Age 23+
App4
Apprenti ce Age 18-20

A
B
C
D
D
E
E
E
E

F
F
F
F

G
G
G
G

H
H
H
H

J
J
J
J

L
L
L
L

N
N
N
N

I
I
I
I

K
K
K
K

M
M
M
M

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43
44
45
46

10,209
13,177
17,711
18,328
18,333
18,516
18,887
19,264
19,650
20,043
20,444
20,852
21,269
21,695
22,129
22,571
23,023
23,484
23,953
24,432
24,920
25,419
25,927
26,446
26,975
27,514
28,226
29,174
30,095
30,984
31,895
32,798
33,486
34,373
35,336
36,371
37,568
38,553
39,571
40,578
41,591
42,614
43,570
44,624
45,648
46,662
47,665
48,709
49,756
50,800

Hourly
Rate
£

5.29
6.83
9.18
9.50
9.50
9.60
9.79
9.99
10.19
10.39
10.60
10.81
11.02
11.25
11.47
11.70
11.93
12.17
12.42
12.66
12.92
13.18
13.44
13.71
13.98
14.26
14.63
15.12
15.60
16.06
16.53
17.00
17.36
17.82
18.32
18.85
19.47
19.98
20.51
21.03
21.56
22.09
22.58
23.13
23.66
24.19
24.71
25.25
25.79
26.33

Page 125

Annexe 2
Recruitment and Retention Allowance Policy
Statement of Purpose
1. The Aim
In order to deliver high quality services consistently, Gateshead Council has to attract
and retain high quality people. In some circumstances, such as market forces in the
job market, may occasionally require the Council to consider exceptional payments in
addition to the “rate for the job” which our internal pay structures would normally
indicate. This policy outlines how the Council will assess whether a recruitment and
retention allowance needs to be paid to attract and retain the right person for the job.
2. Definition of recruitment and retention allowance/market supplement
A recruitment and retention allowance is a separately identifiable sum paid in addition
to the salary for a post in recognition that current levels of pay within the wider
employment market are greater than the salary determined by internal pay structures
which has resulted in recruitment and/or retention difficulties.
3. Who is covered by this policy
The policy applies to all employees of the Council, (excluding employees directly
employed by schools), who hold posts which have been identified by management
and Human Resources as having recruitment and retention difficulties, for example
due to skills shortages and/or in comparison with current levels of pay within the
wider employment market.
4. Additional Information
4.1 Other Council policies and procedures, which are relevant to this policy:


Equal Opportunities Policy

Page 126

5. Objective justification for payment of a recruitment and retention allowance
Where a manager considers there is a case for payment of a recruitment and
retention allowance in order to either recruit or retain employees, it will be
necessary to submit a portfolio of supporting evidence to their Strategic Director.
A portfolio of evidence should include the following:
5.1 In cases for recruitment
 For all posts below Service Director level, details of previous efforts made to
fill the post. This may include advertising in different publications, changing
the wording of the advert, redesigning the job etc. At least two previous
attempts must have been made to recruit to the post.
 Number and quality of applicants.
 Cost of recruitment where applicable.
 Details of any offers of employment made and reasons why they were
rejected.
In the case of Strategic Director and Service Director posts, the decision to
award a recruitment and retention allowance will be determined by reference
to prevailing market rates, alongside the above evidence where available.
5.2 In cases for retention


Consideration of other issues that may not relate to pay, for example
redesigning the job, job rotation and career development. This may be
appropriate in cases where an employee is considering leaving the Council,
for a more “challenging or interesting” role, or a role which would provide
better promotional opportunities. Payment of a recruitment and retention
allowance in these circumstances would not necessarily encourage the
employee to remain with the Council. As an alternative, the service may look
at ways of making their job more interesting, such as giving them specific
responsibility for a project, which would develop skills in different areas. The
service may also look at opportunities for secondment or a transfer to
another section or job role.
 Analysis of exit interview data.

5.3 In all cases
 A copy of the job profile and structure chart
 Copies of at least five comparable job adverts from a variety of publications
over the last six months including copies of job profiles/job descriptions and
person specifications.
It should be noted that production of several higher paying job adverts which may
not be representative of the whole market will not warrant the approval of a
supplement.
The portfolio of supporting evidence should be submitted to the relevant Strategic
Director who will assess the evidence to ensure there is objective justification to pay
a recruitment and retention allowance. Should the Strategic Director not support the

Page 127

payment of a recruitment and retention allowance, that decision is final. Where
there is justification to pay, the Strategic Director will indicate the monetary value of
the recruitment and retention allowance requested and forward the portfolio and
their comments to Human Resources.
6. Procedure for approval of a request to pay a recruitment and retention
allowance
Human Resources will quality check the information presented and seek any further
clarification from the service concerned. It is the responsibility of the service to
ensure that sufficient evidence is provided in each case to warrant the consideration
of a payment.
Human Resources will review the request and:
a) undertake further research using comparative salary benchmark data where
available; and
b) consider whether this causes significant recruitment and retention difficulties
which are detrimental to operational activities; and ensure that payment of a
recruitment and retention allowance is objectively justifiable and proportionate,
and will not contravene equal pay legislation and the Council’s Equal
Opportunities Policy; and,
c) check that the relevant service Finance Business Partner has confirmed that
there is sufficient funding available to pay the recruitment and retention
allowance.
Where Human Resources support the request, the portfolio of evidence will be
referred to the Strategic Director, Corporate Services & Governance who will make
a final decision as to whether an allowance can be authorised. Any decision to
award a recruitment and retention allowance must be clearly evidenced to ensure
that the policy is applied fairly, consistently and is free from any bias.
In the case of Strategic Director and Service Director posts, any proposal to award
a new retention allowance to retain an employee will be referred to Contracts
Committee for a decision. The Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance will make a decision as to whether an allowance is offered as part of a
recruitment process.
7. Value of recruitment and retention allowance
If the request to pay a recruitment and retention allowance is approved, Human
Resources will determine the actual monetary value of the allowance using salary
benchmark information and also the portfolio of evidence submitted by the service.
The recruitment and retention allowance will normally be paid at the equivalent of
either the mean market salary or up to 15% of basic pay, whichever is lower. In
very exceptional circumstances, the Strategic Director Corporate Services and
Governance may approve a higher percentage.

Page 128

8. Review of recruitment and retention allowance
To ensure that the payment of an allowance continues to be justified and
proportionate, it is necessary to review the position regularly against the criteria that
was applied to the initial assessment. It is essential that the rationale and supporting
evidence for payment of a recruitment and retention allowance remains current and a
review is documented.
For this reason, the Strategic Director, Corporate Services & Governance will only
approve payment of a recruitment and retention allowance for an initial period of up to
two years subject to review. In exceptional circumstances this may be extended to
up to five years in recruitment cases. Human Resources will assess the need to
continue the payment using comparative benchmarking data. The decision to
continue the payment rests with the Strategic Director, Corporate Services &
Governance.
9. Conditions applicable to recruitment and retention allowance







The payment will be expressly identified as a separate pay element and will
be subject to the usual deductions for tax, national insurance and pension
contributions.
Employees working part time will receive any payment on a pro rata basis
depending on their contracted hours.
If a post holder in receipt of a recruitment and retention allowance moves to
an alternative post within the Council, which does not attract a recruitment
and retention allowance, the allowance shall cease from the date on which
the post holder leaves the post which attracts the recruitment and retention
allowance.
A recruitment and retention allowance paid as a percentage of salary will be
adjusted in line with annual pay increases.
A recruitment and retention allowance will cease with immediate effect if (a)
a recipient is subject to formal capability procedures i.e. formal capability
action has been taken and the employee is subject to a capability
improvement note or final capability improvement note and (b) where the
employee is absent due to long term sickness (absent for 4 weeks or more),
except where the employee’s absence is directly related to a disability. The
recruitment and retention allowance will be reinstated once the employee
returns from long term sickness or is no longer subject to formal action under
the capability procedure.

10. Record keeping
HR Advice will maintain a central record of any recruitment and retention
allowances awarded and all supporting evidence.

Page 129

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8a
COUNCIL MEETING
24 March 2022
GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

AMENDMENT TO ITEM 8
Localism Act 2011 – Pay Accountability Pay Policy Statement 2022-23
Councillor R Beadle move the following amendment:
Add (6) agrees that the Leader writes to the JNC for Chief Officers and the JNC for
Chief Executives to propose a pay freeze for 2022/23.

Proposed by:

Councillor R Beadle

Supported by:

Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor
Councillor

Wallace
Maughan
Diston
Hawkins
M Ord
Mohammed
P Craig
S Craig
Patterson

Page 131

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
COUNCIL MEETING
24 March 2022
RESIDENT INFLUENCE STRATEGY AND FRAMEWORK
Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The purpose of this report is to seek approval of a new Resident Influence
Strategy and Framework.

2.

The strategy will underpin and support the Council in responding to the
challenges and requirements of the Social Housing White Paper.

3.

The strategy and framework will ensure the Council delivers on resident
expectations following the Housing Review and meets statutory and regulatory
requirements.

4.

The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating
their recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION
5.

It is recommended that Council approves the Resident Influence Strategy and
Framework as set out in Appendices 2 and 3 of the report.

Page 133

This page is intentionally left blank

REPORT TO CABINET
22 March 2022

TITLE OF REPORT:

Resident Influence Strategy and Framework

REPORT OF:

Colin Huntington – Strategic Director Housing,
Environment and Healthy Communities.

Purpose of the Report
1.

To seek formal approval of a new Resident Influence Strategy and Framework.

Background
2.

Following the decision to bring together housing services within the Council we
commissioned TPAS, a not-for-profit national tenant organisation to work with
tenants, leaseholders, and employees to design a Resident Influence Strategy for
Gateshead.

3.

In drafting this strategy, it acknowledges tenants and leaseholders desire
expressed during the Housing review that they can influence decisions, shape
policies, and recommend service improvements. Furthermore, that the Council
communicates with residents, is transparent and that they listen to them.

4.

The strategy will underpin and support the Council in responding to the challenges
and requirements of the Social Housing White Paper. It will also help to ensure that
we meet the current and future requirements of the Tenant Involvement and
Empowerment Standard (one of the 4 Consumer Standards of the social housing
regulatory framework). The anticipated Building Safety Act will also place an
enhanced requirement on landlords to engage with residents.

5.

The strategy and framework have been drafted based on the findings and
recommendations from the work with TPAS.

Proposal
6.

The Resident Influence Strategy is set out in Appendix 2 of this report.

7.

It includes seven clear objectives:
 We will provide a wide range of accessible opportunities for residents to
engage, feedback and influence.
 We will use all forms of customer insight and feedback to improve the
services that matter most to customers.
 When promoting influencing opportunities, we will explain clearly what it is,
what it will entail and how the outcomes will benefit them.

Page 135
1 of 7

 We will use existing data analysis to identify and understand key themes.
This will help target listening activities, and by doing so get a clear
understanding of the customer experience.
 We will monitor and review the impact on residents and the organisation.
 To ensure that residents get a clear understanding of how we have used
their feedback to make changes and the impact it has had we will adopt a
closed loop feedback approach.
 We will ensure that our tenants and leaseholders are supported to participate
and engage in both regional and national opportunities to have their voice
heard.
8.

To oversee delivery of the strategy a new Resident Influence Panel (RI Panel) has
been established. The RI Panel comprises a mix of tenants, leaseholders and
employees. It aims to meet on a monthly basis and a tenant representative from
the Strategic Housing Board is also invited to maintain a link between both. This
approach aims to help to embed a collaborative approach with residents and
employees working together to co-design service delivery.

9.

The RI Panel has two main aims:



To make sure that residents' experiences are influencing service design and
delivery
To make sure we act on what customers tell us through formal engagement, but
to also make sure that we proactively listen and gather feedback from the wider
resident base

10.

One of the first tasks the RI Panel has completed is to draft a Resident Influence
Framework that sets out how we will deliver on the first objective to provide a range
of accessible opportunities for residents to engage, feedback and influence.

11.

The key features include:





12.

Establishment of three formal groups; Resident Influence Panel, Multi Storey
Building Safety Group and Equality Diversity and Inclusion Group.
Resident Insight and feedback to inform engagement and scrutiny
Adopt a single issue, task, and finish approach
Greater use of digital engagement methods to reach the wider resident base
alongside more traditional methods.

A copy of the Framework is included in Appendix 3 of this report.

Recommendations
13.

Cabinet is asked to recommend to Council that the Resident Influence Strategy
and Framework as set out in Appendices 2 and 3 be approved.

Page 136
2 of 7

For the following reasons:
(i)
(ii)

To ensure that the Council delivers on resident expectations following the
Housing Review.
To ensure we are meeting all current and future statutory and regulatory
requirements.

CONTACT: Martin Poulter

extension: 5380

Page 137
3 of 7

APPENDIX 1
Policy Context
1.

The Resident Involvement Strategy and Framework has been developed within the
context of a national regulatory framework. The Regulator of Social Housing
regulates registered social housing providers including local authorities and housing
associations. It is a stand-alone non departmental public body of government. Their
role through regulation is to promote a viable, efficient, and well-governed social
housing sector able to deliver homes that meet a range of needs.

2.

The Regulator of Social Housing sets four Consumer standards that applies to all
registered social landlords including local authorities. Consumer standards are set
so that tenants, landlords and stakeholders know the outcomes that are expected.
They play an important role in supporting tenants to hold landlords to account
effectively.

3.

The Tenant Involvement and Empowerment standard is one of the four Consumer
standards. It sets out clearly the requirement that registered providers shall ensure
that tenants are given a wide range of opportunities to influence and be involved in:

4.



the formulation of their landlord’s housing-related policies and strategic
priorities



the making of decisions about how housing-related services are delivered,
including the setting of service standards



the scrutiny of their landlord’s performance and the making of
recommendations to their landlord about how performance might be
improved



the management of their homes, where applicable



the management of repair and maintenance services, such as
commissioning and undertaking a range of repair tasks, as agreed with
landlords, and the sharing in savings made, and



agreeing local offers for service delivery.

The 2020 Social Housing White Paper outlined the Government’s plans for social
housing residents, including shared owners and leaseholders. It sets out the
Government’s expectations, and the detailed provisions that they expect to
implement. This includes a number of measures that seek to strengthen the
landlord and tenant relationship including:
 To be safe in the home – this includes supporting the development of
statutory and good practice guidance on engaging residents in all tenures on
safety issues

Page 138
4 of 7

 To know how a landlord is performing, including on repairs, complaints, and
safety, and how it spends its money, so that residents can hold their landlord
to account.
 To be treated with respect, backed by a strong consumer regulator, and
improved consumer standards for tenants.
 To have the resident voice heard by the landlord, for example through
regular meetings, scrutiny panels or being on its Board. The Government
will provide help, to ensure landlords listen to their tenants.
5.

The Resident Influence Strategy and Framework has been designed to ensure that
Gateshead Council meets existing and future regulatory requirements.
Background

6.

At The Gateshead Housing Company, in addition to surveys and seeking
transactional feedback, resident influence had been sought through a framework of
formal resident groups including the Customer Scrutiny Panel, Service
Improvement Groups and the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion Group. The estate
walkabout programme provided the opportunity to engage with tenants and
leaseholders in their communities.

7.

However, it was acknowledged that there were some issues with a reliance on
formal structures including:
•
•
•

8.

A minority of residents are involved, and those that are involved are not
representative, frequently sitting on numerous groups, which can lead to
consultation fatigue and a narrow base of experiences
A minority view may therefore be more influential than it should be, in the
absence of anything else and the voices of residents placing higher demand
on services are often unheard
Formal mechanisms set up to enable resident influence can sometimes be a
barrier to involvement.

To meet the existing and future regulatory requirements and to deliver on
expectations of tenants and leaseholders following the Housing Review it was
decided that a re-design of resident engagement was required. By engaging TPAS
we were able to access expert advice and guidance to help shape a new strategy
and framework.
Consultation

9.

The Resident Influence Strategy and Framework have been developed
collaboratively, in partnership between tenants, leaseholders and employees. The
initial project with TPAS involved a number of joint workshops including with
Directors and the Cabinet Member for Housing.

10.

The Resident Influence Strategy and Framework was co-designed with the
Resident Influence Panel. This included a joint workshop on 12 October 2021 with
tenant members of the Strategic Housing Board.

11.

The strategy has also been shared in draft form on the Council’s website for
comment and promoted via social media and the Housing E-Newsletter.

Page 139
5 of 7

12.

The draft Resident Influence Strategy and Framework has been shared with and
commented on by the Strategic Housing Board. Updates on progress in delivering
on the new strategy will be taken to the Strategic Housing Board and Resident
Influence Panel.
Alternative Options

13.

The alternative to approving a new Resident Influence Strategy and Framework
would be to continue with the existing tenant engagement arrangements that
transferred from the housing company. However, that would not address the issues
raised by TPAS and it would not future proof our approach for the anticipated
enhanced regulation.

Implications of Recommended Option
14.

Resources:
a)

Financial Implications – The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital
confirms there are no additional financial implications arising from the
strategy and framework. An existing budget supports delivery of resident
engagement activities.

b)

Human Resources Implications – Delivery of this strategy will be overseen
by the Tenant Involvement team although all Housing services will have a
role in its delivery. Employee briefing sessions will be held with different
services and regular updates will be included in the employee newsletter.

c)

Property Implications - there are no specific property implications.

15.

Risk Management Implication - The Resident Influence Strategy has been
developed to mitigate the risks associated with failure to comply with the Tenant
Involvement and Empowerment Standard and the requirements of the Social
Housing White Paper.

16.

Equality and Diversity Implications - An Integrated Impact Assessment (IIA) has
been completed for the proposed Resident Influence Strategy to identify potential
implications and impacts related to protected characteristics identified in the
Equality Act 2010. The IIA is attached as Appendix 4

17.

Crime and Disorder Implications – there are no specific crime and disorder
implications arising from the strategy and framework.

18.

Health Implications – activities relating to the delivery of the strategy can have
health benefits.



Engaging with peers and being active can lead to an improvement in mental
health.
Confidence of attendees can grow when attending meetings/events by
increasing their skills and knowledge.

Page 140
6 of 7



Increased skills and knowledge of attendees by learning more
about housing and external services, ICT skills are transferrable
outside of the meetings and can help people engage and interact
more with friends, family and hobbies resulting in improved
mental health.

19.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications - the strategy and review will
contribute to the achievement of having sustainable communities and
neighbourhoods within Gateshead

20.

Human Rights Implications - There are no direct human rights implications arising
from this report.

21.

Ward Implications – Whilst the Resident Influence Strategy focuses on our
relationship with Council tenants and leaseholders it also recognises that housing
estates and communities across Gateshead are now multi-tenure, and the Council
needs to have effective engagement channels in place.
Background Information



Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Standard
Social Housing White Paper (The Charter for Social Housing Residents )

Page 141
7 of 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Gateshead Council - Resident Influence Strategy









Introduction
Gateshead in context
National context
Future Housing Vision
Aims & objectives
How will we deliver
Measuring the impact
Review

1. Introduction
In November 2020 after widely consulting with tenants and stakeholders and
receiving strong support, the Council made the decision to bring all Housing services
together within the Council from 1st April 2021. One of the key messages that came
from the customer consultation was how important it is that tenants and
leaseholders can influence decisions, shape policies and recommend service
improvements. The Council recognises and supports this, and a resident influence
strategy has been developed to deliver on that commitment.
In terms of national context, the strategy will also underpin and support the Council
in responding to the challenges and requirements of the Social Housing White Paper.
It will help to ensure that we meet the requirements of the Tenant Involvement and
Empowerment Standard (one of the 4 Consumer Standards of the social housing
regulatory framework).
Proposals within the Building Safety Bill will put in place a new and enhanced
regulatory regime for building safety. It includes a requirement to ensure residents
have a stronger voice and role and that we develop and resource a resident
engagement strategy.
2. Gateshead in context
The borough of Gateshead is the largest of the five Tyne and Wear authorities and
comprises of a mix of both urban hubs and rural areas with smaller settlements.
Poverty and health inequalities are placing an increasing demand on the services we
provide, so we need more than ever to focus our work and the money we have to
spend on what matters most. We want to help our communities not just survive, but
to thrive.

Page 143

The Council’s Thrive agenda recognises Housing as a key determinant in the health
and wellbeing of our communities and individual residents. In Gateshead 50% of
housing is owner occupied, and 20% is managed by Gateshead Council. 23% of
housing is rented from a private landlord or letting agency and 7% from a registered
social landlord (Gateshead Council, May 2019).
Through the impact of right to buy and new housing developments, the tenure mix
of what were once Council owned single tenure estates is changing. These estates
are now often a mix of tenures including homeowners, leaseholders, private rented
households as well as Council tenants. Issues that are important to Council tenants
can also impact on other residents such as the maintenance of open spaces and antisocial behaviour.
Whilst the Council has a unique relationship with its tenants, a legal one that is
subject to regulation it also recognises the importance of engaging with the wider
community. It is therefore important that we provide opportunities for all residents
to provide feedback and have influence on the delivery of services that may affect
the whole community.
3. Future Housing Vision
Investing in homes and communities
Gateshead Council is committed to investing in Council homes and communities
around them including the management and maintenance of open spaces. The
Council aims to invest £104 million in Council homes over the next four years. To
deliver on this commitment we will work with customers, employees and
stakeholders to develop and steer our investment programme.
Improving services that matter most
It is clear from what tenants and leaseholders have told us that they want the
Council to improve the services that matter most to them and this will be our focus
going forward. To achieve this, we need to ensure we have a wide range of feedback
and influencing opportunities available for residents and this strategy sets out how
we will achieve this.
4. Developing our approach to resident influence
Whilst acknowledging the positive work with tenants and leaseholders undertaken
by the Housing Company the Council recognised that it was important to carry out a
significant reengineering of engagement to optimise resident feedback and ensure it

Page 144

has a voice within the Council. The expectations of the Social Housing White paper,
the existing and future regulatory requirements also mean that we have to future
proof our approach.
To deliver on this the Council commissioned TPAS, a not for profit national
organisation that is recognised as experts in this area to work with the Council and
its tenants to develop a new resident influence strategy. The findings and
recommendations from this project have informed this strategy and the actions that
will result from it.
5. Four principles of capturing the customer experience
The four principles that inform this strategy include; the role of Leadership;
Everyone; Listening and Process.
Leadership


Informal individual opportunities – e.g. having a chat with a resident and
acting on what was heard, receiving a complaint or compliment and acting on
what is being said and acting in response to local or community level insight.



Operational and procedural – e.g. routinely analysing outcomes of resident
influence to understand impact & building this approach into process ,
proactively analysing transactional & qualitative insights & data and noticing
what is happening in the non-vocalised resident experience – making
changes & reporting and Actively seeking out the experiences of constituted
groups .
Strategic leadership opportunities – e.g. routinely reporting on resident
influence outcomes, with particular attention to how services were affected
and being transparent about resident influence on decisions in reports to the
Executive Management Team and Strategic Housing Board



Everyone




Individual – being on the lookout for opportunities to learn more about the
resident experience & seek time to network, undergo training and to
challenge and discussing influencing opportunities and approaches when in
conversation with residents
Operational and procedural - Proactively seeking out experiences of a broad
range of residents, including non-involved residents through targeted work,
Providing the right resources, training & support as a matter of routine (staff
& residents), including in recruitment, induction and appraisals.
Understanding whether different groups of resident’s experience services

Page 145

differently & to learn from their experience, challenging where resident
influence is not in-built.


Strategic - strategic decision-makers understanding the importance of
resident influence and the impact it should have; strategic decision-makers
challenging when broad spectrum of resident experience is not evident in
recommendations for change, strategically involved residents seeking out
wider resident experiences & do not simply contribute their own
experiences & make decisions based on these examples.

Listening


Individual - having a chat with a resident and listening, communicating /
giving feedback in plain English and in a range of languages (where
necessary), listening to local or community level insight (e.g. resident groups,
social media), receiving a complaint or compliment and hearing what is being
said.



Operational and procedural - commissioning, designing & analysing resident
feedback & consultation exercises, Analysing transactional & qualitative
insights & data (non-vocalised resident experience), Hearing the experiences
of a constituted group, participating in estate inspections or other localbased activities, developing a neighbourhood agreement.
Strategic - Listening to the recommendations made from the formal
influencing vehicles e.g. Scrutiny Panel, ensure initiatives presented to Board
show how the resident voice has been heard



Process





Individual - challenging ineffective processes, being inquisitive & curious
about the impact of processes
Operational and procedural - developing processes to ensure resident
influence is a key part of service design and delivery, building sufficient
activities & time into processes to enable resident experience of services
(including non-vocalised) to genuinely influence service design and delivery
Strategic - challenging examples of where insufficient attention has been
given to resident influencing opportunities, leading by example when
commissioning work to understand resident experiences by expecting
compliance with process, building in to reporting process the expectation
that resident influence is a key consideration

Page 146

6. Aims and Objectives
a. We will work with customers to develop a resident influence framework that
will provide a wide range of accessible opportunities for residents to engage,
feedback and influence.
We recognise the importance of offering a range of activities in which as
many residents as possible can take part that can influence and, therefore,
improve services. Those influencing activities are summarised in the graphic
below.
The diminishing size of the segments in this
graphic reflects that fewer residents will be
involved in activities such as leading and
collaborating, however all activities are
valuable.

To ensure that the overall value gained from each activity is similar we will
give appropriate regards to the greater volume of residents influencing
through, for example “be aware” and “opt in”.


Lead – provide strategic opportunities for tenants through the Council’s
governance structure.




Collaborate – Influence through insight and scrutiny activities
Co- create – member of a formal involvement group or a regular
contributor
Chip in – complete surveys, contribute to social media, register a
complaint, attend local meetings.
Opt-in – add name to a database to be consulted and surveyed in the
future
Be Aware – read newsletters, website and social media.





b. We acknowledge that all form of feedback and insight have value. We will
use all forms of customer insight and feedback to improve the services that
matter most to customers.

Page 147

c. We will be clear when promoting influencing opportunities to customers,
explaining what it is, what it will entail and how the outcomes will benefit
them.
d. We will use existing data analysis to identify and understand key themes. This

will play a crucial role to help target listening activities and by doing so get a
clear understanding of the customer experience .
e. We will monitor and review the impact on residents and the organisation This
may include cost and savings; the number of changes to strategic policies and
process implemented and related benefits; improvements in service delivery;
VFM and social value.
f. We will adopt a closed loop feedback approach. This will ensure that
residents are provided with a clear understanding of how we have used their
feedback to make changes and the impact it has had. We will also ensure that
the same information is routinely shared with employees to help embed
resident influence in day to day activities.
g. We will ensure that our tenants and leaseholders are supported to
participate and engage in both regional and national opportunities to have
their voice heard.

7. How will we deliver?

An action plan will be developed which will set out the steps to be taken to
implement this strategy.
A Resident Influence Panel will be established that will initially oversee the
implementation of the action plan. Going forward the panel will act to ensure that
residents’ experiences are influencing service design and delivery.
To ensure that resident influence is heard at every level we will provide
opportunities for tenants and leaseholders to be represented within the Council
governance structure.
To ensure that as many residents as possible engage with us we will provide a wide
range of accessible ways to feedback and influence both formally and informally.
This will include the greater use of digital platforms to ensure that we hear a wide
range of experiences.

Page 148

We will ensure that appropriate and sufficient resources for resident influencing
activities are made available and this will be reviewed on an annual basis.
We will put a focus on capacity building to remove any barriers and empower,
encourage and enable more residents to participate.
We will engage with voluntary groups and organisations that operate across
Gateshead to identify volunteer opportunities for tenants and leaseholders who may
wish to engage with us.
We recognise that the successful implementation of this strategy will depend on
embedding the role of resident influence in all employee roles and activities. We will
achieve this through a range of actions including job profiles, recruitment, induction and
training.

We will work with residents to develop a closed loop feedback approach.
Whilst our approach will aim to ensure that we meet the regulatory standards, we
will look to go beyond by keeping track of emerging trends and best practice.

8. Measuring Impact
We will develop a range of measures to evaluate the impact of our Resident
Influence strategy. These will initially include:


Tenant feedback on their experience. We will proactively seek this out via a
range of channels.



Performance indicators that measure customer satisfaction with key services
that matter the most to tenants and leaseholders.



An ongoing self-assessment against the Tenant Involvement and Empowerment
standard.



We will aim is to seek TPAS accreditation in 12 – 18 months from the date this
strategy is agreed. This will provide an independent evidence-based assurance
that we are meeting the requirements of the regulatory standard and our
strategic objectives.

9. Review
We will work with residents to review and update this strategy on an annual basis to
ensure that it continues to deliver the stated aims and objectives and reflects
emerging trends and best practice.

Page 149

This page is intentionally left blank

Resident Influence Framework
Introduction
At Gateshead we believe that working closely with our residents is the most effective way to
improve services. Our Resident Influence Strategy sets out our commitment to provide
tenants and leaseholders with a range of opportunities to engage and influence the way we
design and deliver services. The Resident Influence Framework describes how we deliver on
our commitment.
We know that residents have diverse communication preferences, and we will therefore
target and tailor our approach to engagement to ensure feedback reflects our wider
customer base. This will mean making much greater use of digital engagement blended with
more traditional forms of engagement.
The Strategic Housing Board
This is a formal advisory committee of the Council and considers and makes
recommendations on a wide range of proposals relating to housing across all tenures in
Gateshead. The SHB consists of 21 members including three tenant/leaseholder
representatives who are appointed on a skills basis, annually.
Resident Influence Panel
The Resident Influence Panel (RI Panel) is the main customer group that oversees and
supports delivery of our commitment to design services based on real customer
experiences. The RI Panel includes tenants, leaseholders and officers who work together
using customer insight and feedback to inform and commission engagement activity.
It meets on a monthly basis although this may vary depending on the tasks being
undertaken. They are held as a mixture of in-person and online meetings.
A tenant/leaseholder representative of the Strategic Housing Board (SHB) is invited to every
meeting to ensure a link is maintained between the SHB and the RI Panel.
Insight and feedback is provided to the RI Panel fom a range of sources including:


Resident surveys





Performance data
Complaints; key themes and trends
Social Media comments and feedback



Day to day informal conversations between officers and residents.

The RI Panel also consider Legislative and Regulatory requirements to identify areas of
engagement and scrutiny.

Page 151

The RI panel is not a consultative group but will identify areas to engage and scrutinise using
a task and finish style approach.
The range of engagement tools that are used include:


Resident and employee focus groups – these provide the opportunity to discuss
issues in an informal setting delivered online where appropriate.




Online Surveys – short single-issue surveys to understand residents’ views.
Customer journey mapping – to create a visual story of how customers interact
with a service and to identify where service failure has occurred and why.
Mystery Shopping – to reality check the processes and procedures used in the
delivery of a service.



The RI Panel recruit participants from the Resident Voice Pool and the wider customer
base using a variety of communication channels and promotional tools.
Whilst the RI Panel is the main formal resident group that will lead on delivery of the
Resident Influence Strategy it is also recognised that there is a need to have some
specialist formal engagement that focuses on key areas.
Multi-Storey Safety Group
The focus of the Multi-Storey Safety Group (MSG) is to ensure Gateshead Council
delivers multi-storey housing that is safe to live in and provides relevant and up to date
information to residents in accordance with the Building Safety Act.
The MSG will act as a steering group providing oversight as to how we deliver on the
resident engagement requirements of the Building Safety Act. The MSG will not be a
substitute for wider informal engagement with residents in each block.
The MSG will comprise of both tenants, leaseholders, and officers and we will aim to
have broad representation from as many multi-storey blocks as possible. The group
works on a task and finish style approach with meeting frequency reflecting work tasks.
The Building Safety Manager will attend meetings with representation from the Multi
Storey Team, Home Ownership team and other officers as required. A designated officer
from the Involvement team will provide support to the group as required.
Progress updates will be provided to the Resident Influence Panel. Any issues identified
by the group that sit outside of the BSG remit will be referred to the Resident Influence
Panel.

Page 152

Equality Diversity and Inclusion group
Residents, Officers, and partners work together to ensure that the services we provide
are fair, accessible, and designed around the needs of all our customers.
The group aims to ensure we understand and then respond to the diverse needs of
tenants. Their work considers the requirements placed on Gateshead Council by the
Tenant Involvement and Empowerment Regulatory Standard, the Equality Act 2010 and
the Public Sector Equality Duty.
The group supports the work of the Council’s Employee Equality Network where
resident engagement is required.
More broadly the group looks at how we can work to remove issues of stigma that
residents may face in their communities and seek opportunities to engage nationally
around important equality issues.
Updates will be provided to the Resident Influence Panel and any issues identified by the
group that sit outside of their remit will be referred to the Resident Influence Panel.
Resident Voice Pool
This offers the opportunity for tenants and leaseholders to engage with us on their own
terms. This is not a formal group; residents simply register with us and choose how and
when they engage. Residents who sign up will be provided with the opportunity to
receive:





Latest news and updates
Notification of consultations
o Task and finish focus groups.
o An invite to complete an online survey
Live streamed meetings of the Resident Influence Panel



Online training

By joining the RVP residents get the opportunity to work on a specific project
relating to their homes, communities, and housing services for a short period of
time, whilst potentially learning new skills.
In The Community
We will support and deliver a range of activities and opportunities for residents to
engage in their local communities.

Page 153

We offer a comprehensive programme of Estate Walkabouts that give residents the
opportunity to meet up with Neighbourhood Housing Officers, report any issues, and
suggest improvements to their estates.
Each estate hosts two walkabouts a year. These are on pre-arranged dates and
times. The year's first inspections are in April and May and the second inspections
are in September and October.
In addition we will host “pop up” engagement at Community events throughout the
year to find out residents views about homes, communities and services.
Annual Review
We will discuss progress over the previous 12 months with tenants and leaseholders
at an Annual Review event. This will provide the opportunity to thank residents for
their time and commitment to working with us to improve services for Gateshead
tenants and leaseholders. We will showcase examples of where engagement has
influenced service design and delivery and discuss priorities for the coming year. An
update will also be published in our Annual report.

Page 154

Marriage and Civil
Partnership

Sexual Orientation

Disability

Gender
reassignment

Sex

Race

Page 155

Age

Resident Engagement

Pregnancy and
Maternity

Description of potential mitigation

Religion or Belief

Title of proposal:

Equality impact: (✓ all that apply. The
assessment should also consider impact on
council employees and carers where
applicable)

Description of impact:
Age When considering the impact of
Age, need to consider the following:
•
•

•

Older people may need support
to get to and from face to face
meetings.
Younger people may not have
capacity to attend meetings
during the day due to college,
work or family commitments.
Older people may need more
support to access meetings
online or via Microsoft Teams.

x
We offer transport support (taxis or
reimbursement of bus fares) for people who
need it.
Look to offer meetings, focus groups, online
events etc. at different times. Check with
attendees the most appropriate time and try
to accommodate this.
We offer 121 support to help customers join
Teams meetings and have offered basic ICT

training to older people in Sheltered
Schemes to develop digital skills.
Race
When considering the impact of Race,
we need to consider the following:
•
•

Page 156

•

x
Establish requirements and offer
interpreters if needed.

Language barriers
Confidence in speaking in
attending meetings for first
time, could be seen as
intimidating
Consider cultural issues on
attending meetings

Allow people more time to speak in
meetings.
Make stronger links with local BME support
groups to raise awareness of opportunities
for residents to engage with us.
Consider when we offer food and transport
for meetings, any cultural implications ie.
Halal, not able to share taxi with opposite
sex passenger

Gender reassignment / Sexual
Orientation
When considering the impact on the
above. Need to consider:
•

Currently low levels of declared
engaged residents from LGBT
community.

x

x
Proactively engage with local LGBT
community. Northern Pride, local LGBT
support groups – Pride Media Centre etc to
encourage more take-up

Work with the EDI group to do some
targeted work around this to establish what
barriers may exist.
Disability
x

Page 157

When considering the impact on the
above. Need to consider:
•
•
•
•

•

Use of ICT.
Confidence in speaking in online
meetings.
Ability to attend meetings
without transport support.
Requirement of information in
large print and other formats
for people with specific needs
ie, Deaf, blind.
Physical access in venues

Awareness that due to disabilities not
everyone will be able to access meetings
online. We must send clear messages that
residents can still join meetings in other
ways – telephone link up etc.
Offer transport for those who require it
including accessible taxis.
Use customer’s preferred method of contact
i.e. email, large print etc. Are adequate
support facilities available on Microsoft
Teams ie, subtitles.
Need to consider venues being used for
meetings/events and are accessible to all.

Religion or Belief
When considering the impact on the
above. Need to consider:
• Holding meetings/events on
unsuitable dates ie, religious
festivals

x

Page 158

Health impact: (eg physical, mental health, wellbeing, substance misuse)
•
•
•

Engaging with peers and being active can lead to an improvement in mental health
Confidence of attendees can grow when attending meetings/events by increasing their skills
and knowledge.
Increased skills and knowledge of attendees by learning more about housing and external
services, ICT skills are transferrable outside of the meetings and can help people engage and
interact more with friends, family and hobbies resulting in improved mental health.

• Avoid arranging meetings/events on
key diversity dates

Socio Economic impact: (eg neighbourhood, ward, area of deprivation, household group, income,
wealth)
•
•

Page 159

•

Enabling people to engage online and take part in matters that affect them where they may
not otherwise have been able to allows us to gain feedback from more residents across the
borough to find out what matters most to them.
Technology – not everyone has access to ICT equipment or wi-fi, so we need to continue to
tailor communication methods as customers advise us ie, post. Consider provision of reconditioned iPads to those who need them.
By collecting profile information it helps us to identify who is engaging with us and to
establish if there are any gaps across the socio-economic groups.

Environmental impact: (does the proposal impact on climate change and the Council’s
commitment to be carbon neutral by 2030?)
Aim to reduce carbon footprint of the council in line with our Climate Strategy by sending meeting
papers digitally by default, where this is appropriate and to reduce carbon emissions by holding
meetings digitally where this is appropriate and in line with customer needs. We encourage use of
public transport or sharing taxis rather than personal car use to attend meetings if in person.
Cumulative impact: (consider impact based on successive budgetary decisions relating to the
proposal or is the proposal part of wider budgetary considerations that may collectively have an
impact on service users, and is potentially at odds with the Thrive agenda)
The resident influence strategy should have a positive impact on council decision making and policy
development by establishing a mechanism and framework for consultation and engagement of
tenants on housing related issues. This should have a positive impact on all tenants as the policy
development and decision making process is influenced by the resident voice.

Summary of consultation/data/research undertaken to inform the assessment:
(eg feedback and engagement with service users, trade unions, employees, partners, public, benchmarking, case studies)
TPAS undertook a review of customer engagement in 2021 to establish our existing methods and how they could be improved to suit current needs.
Recommendations were made and some have already been implemented ie, Resident Influence Panel, Strategic Housing Board. As a result a new
strategy and framework have been produced to demonstrate our continued commitment towards customer engagement and will be used to focus
our ongoing work with customers.

Page 160
Signed: (completing officer) Helen Watson

Date: 18/02/2022
Service Director: (approved) Mr Kevin Scarlett

Date:21/02/2022

Agenda Item 10
COUNCIL MEETING
24 March 2022
TREASURY POLICY STATEMENT AND TREASURY
STRATEGY 2022/23 TO 2026/27
Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.

The purpose of this report is to seek approval of the Treasury Policy
Statement and Treasury Strategy for 2022/23 to 2025/26.

2.

The Council agrees a five-year Treasury Management Policy and Treasury
Strategy which is reviewed at the start of each financial year to provide a
framework for the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, to exercise his
delegated powers.

3.

The Treasury Policy and Treasury Strategy (attached at Appendices 2 and 3)
have been prepared considering the Local Government Act 2003, Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government’s (MHCLG) Guidance on Local
Government Investments, CIPFA’s Prudential Code of Capital and CIPFA’s
Code of Practice on Treasury Management (2017).

4.

The Audit and Standards Committee reviewed the Treasury Policy Statement
and Treasury Strategy on 7 March 2022 and raised no comments for
submission to Council.

5.

The Cabinet has considered the facts and issues arising from the report
including alternative options and took all relevant advice before formulating
their recommendation.

RECOMMENDATION
6.

It is recommended that Council approves the Treasury Policy Statement and
the Treasury Strategy as attached at Appendices 2 and 3.

Page 161

This page is intentionally left blank

REPORT TO CABINET
22 March 2022
TITLE OF REPORT:

Treasury Policy Statement and Treasury Strategy 2022/23 to
2026/27

REPORT OF:

Darren Collins – Strategic Director, Resources and Digital

Purpose of the Report
1.

Cabinet is asked to recommend that Council approve the attached Treasury Policy
Statement and Treasury Strategy for 2022/23 to 2026/27.
Background

2.

To provide a framework for the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital to exercise
his delegated powers, the Council agrees a five-year Treasury Management Policy
and Treasury Strategy which is reviewed at the start of each financial year.

3.

The attached Treasury Policy and Treasury Strategy have been prepared
considering the Local Government Act 2003, Ministry of Housing, Communities and
Local Government ‘s (MHCLG) Guidance on Local Government Investments,
CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital and CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury
Management (2017).

4.

The Audit and Standards Committee reviewed the Treasury Policy Statement and
Treasury Strategy on 7 March 2022 and raised no comments for submission to
Cabinet.
Proposals

5.

Cabinet is asked to recommend that Council approve the Treasury Policy and
Treasury Strategy attached at Appendix 2 and Appendix 3, to ensure that the Council
fully complies with the requirements of good financial practice in Treasury
Management.
Recommendation

6.

Cabinet is asked to agree the Treasury Policy Statement attached at Appendix 2 of
this report and the Treasury Strategy as attached at Appendix 3 and recommend
them for approval to Council.
For the following reason:
To ensure that the Council fully complies with the requirements of good financial
practice in Treasury Management.

CONTACT: John Chirnside, ext. 2713

Page 163
1

Appendix 1
Policy Context
1.

The proposals in this report are consistent with Council priorities and in particular
they ensure that effective use is made of the Council’s resources to ensure a
sustainable financial position. The Council has approached the budget consultation
for 2022/23 within a framework for achieving the Council’s strategic approach
‘Making Gateshead a Place Where Everyone Thrives’. The Council recognises there
are huge financial pressures on not just council resources, but those of partners,
local businesses and residents. To deliver on the strategic approach over the next
five years, the Council will need to be resolute in its determination to make
Gateshead a place where everyone thrives. This means the Council’s decisionmaking will be policy and priority led and driven.
Background

2.

The Prudential Code plays a key role in capital finance in local authorities. Local
authorities determine their own programmes for capital investment that are central to
the delivery of quality public services. The Prudential C ode was developed by CIPFA,
the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy, as a professional code of
practice to support local authorities in taking their decisions. Local authorities are
required by regulation to have regard to the Prudential Code when carrying out their
duties in England and Wales under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003.

3.

In December 2021 CIPFA issued a revised Treasury Management Code of Practice
and a revised Prudential Code (the Code) which represents best practice. The
Council fully complies with the Code and this contributes towards achieving good
practice.

4.

Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003 specifies the powers of a local authority to
borrow for any purpose relevant to its functions under any enactment or for the
purposes of the prudent management of its financial affairs. Borrowing is linked to
the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital which sets out a range of prudential and
treasury indicators that must be calculated to ensure borrowing is affordable, prudent
and sustainable. The Prudential Code refers to the need for a clear and integrated
treasury strategy.

5.

In addition, under Section 15 of the Local Government Act 2003, authorities are
required to have regard to the MHCLG’s guidance on Local Government
Investments. This document stipulates the requirement for an annual investment
strategy to be integrated into the Council’s Treasury Strategy.

6.

MHCLG introduced revised investment guidance which was effective for financial
years commencing on or after 1 st April 2018. The revised guidance focuses on nonfinancial asset investments, for example investment in commercial property.

7.

Under Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution the Strategic Director, Resources and
Digital will produce a Treasury Policy Statement annually, setting out the general
policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management function.

2

Page 164

Treasury Policy
8.

The Council regards the successful identification, monitoring and control of risk to be
the prime criteria by which the effectiveness of its treasury management activities will
be measured. Accordingly, the analysis and reporting of treasury management
activities will focus on the risk implications for the Council.

9.

The Council acknowledges that effective treasury management will provide support
towards the achievement of its business and service objectives. It is therefore
committed to the principles of achieving value for money in treasury management,
and to employing suitable comprehensive performance measurement techniques,
within the context of effective risk management.

10.

CIPFA’s Treasury Management Code requires the setting out of responsibilities and
duties of councillors and officers to allow a framework for reporting and decision
making on all aspects of treasury management. To achieve this CIPFA has
recommended the adoption of 13 treasury management practices (TMPs).

11.

These principles are intended to provide a working document that forms a detailed
framework for treasury management activities. The policy fully encompasses CIPFA’s
Code of Practice. In addition, the policy fully takes account of the requirements of the
Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities and the guidance issued by the
MHCLG supporting Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003 in respect of local
authority investments. The Treasury Policy is attached at Appendix 2.
Treasury Strategy

12.

The Treasury Strategy for 2022/23 to 2026/27 is attached at Appendix 3. This
covers the specific activities proposed for 2022/23 to 2026/27 in relation to both
borrowing and investments and ensures a wide range of advice is taken to maintain
and preserve all principal sums, whilst obtaining a reasonable rate of return, and that
the most appropriate borrowing is undertaken. The primary objective of the
investment strategy is to maintain the security of investments at all times.

13.

The term “investments” used in the definition of treasury management activities also
covers non-financial assets which the Council may hold primarily for financial returns.
The control of risk and optimising returns on these more commercial investments is
consistent with the Council’s risk appetite.

14.

Under the requirements of the Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code of
Practice the Council have adopted prudential indicators (detailed in Appendix 4).
Details of investment types, minimum credit ratings, circumstances of use and
maximum investment period are shown in Appendix 5.

15.

The Council have reviewed the maximum maturity periods and amounts which can
be invested with counterparties outlined in Appendix 6. In ensuring that these limits
meet our requirements an assessment of risk has been undertaken and advice
obtained from Link Asset Services.

16.

The Council has produced the Treasury Strategy to comply with the requirements of
the Code, the Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities (2021) and
Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003. The Council considers that compliance
with the above ensures that best practice is followed.

Page 165
3

Consultation
17.

Consultation on the production of the Treasury Policy Statement, including the
Treasury Strategy for 2022/23 to 2026/27, has taken place with the Council’s
treasury advisers (Link Asset Services). The outcome of the consultation process,
along with guidance issued by CIPFA and the MHCLG, has informed the format and
content of the policy and strategy statements.

18.

The Leader of the Council has been consulted on the contents of this report.
Alternative Options

19.

There are no alternative options, as the Treasury Policy and Strategy reports
recommended for approval are required in order to comply with CIPFA’s Code of
Practice on Treasury Management (2021), the Local Government Act 2003 and
MHCLG Guidance on Local Government Investments.
Implications of recommended options

20.

Resources:
a) Financial Implications - The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, confirms
that the financial implications are set out in this report. There are no additional
financial implications associated with the report itself.
b) Human Resources Implications - There are no human resources implications
arising from this report.
c) Property Implications – There are no property implications arising from this
report.

21.

Risk Management Implications
The Treasury Policy and Treasury Strategy which informs activity in this area were
prepared with the primary aim of minimising risk to ensure that the Council’s principal
sums are safeguarded. Maximising income is considered secondary to this main aim.

22.

Equality and Diversity Implications
There are no equality and diversity implications arising from this report.

23.

Crime and Disorder Implications
There are no crime and disorder implications arising from this report.

24.

Climate Emergency and Sustainability Implications
There are no climate emergency or sustainability implications arising from this report.

4

Page 166

25.

Human Rights Implications
There are no human rights implications arising from this report.

26.

Ward Implications
There are no direct area and ward implications arising from this report.

27.

Background Information:
The following documents have been used in preparation of the report:
 Local Government Act 2003
 MHCLG Guidance on Local Government Investments
 CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital (2021)
 CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management (2021)

Page 167
5

Appendix 2
Treasury Policy 2022/23 to 2026/27
1.

Approved Activities of the Treasury Management Operation

1.1

In December 2021 CIPFA published a revised Code of Practice on Treasury
Management in the Public Services (the Code), which represents best practice.
Treasury management activities are defined by CIPFA as:
“The management of the organisation’s borrowing, investments and cash
flows, its banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective
control of the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum
performance consistent with those risks.”

1.2

The term “investments” used in the definition of treasury management activities
includes all financial assets of the organisation, as well as other non-financial assets
which the Council may hold primarily for financial returns. The control of risk and
optimising returns on these more commercial investments is also consistent with the
Council’s risk appetite.

2.

Formulation of the Treasury Strategy

2.1

The formulation of a Treasury Strategy involves determining the appropriate
borrowing and investment decisions with the prime objective of safeguarding the
Council’s assets and secondary objectives of obtaining a reasonable rate of return
on investments and minimising the costs of borrowing. Accordingly, the analysis and
reporting of treasury management activities will focus on the risk implications for the
Council and ensure robust due diligence procedures cover all treasury and nontreasury investments.

2.2

The Treasury Strategy encompasses the requirements of CIPFA’s Treasury
Management Code of Practice, Prudential Code for Capital and the MHCLG
Guidance on Local Government Investments.

2.3

The revised Treasury Management Code and revised Prudential Code were
published by CIPFA on 20 December 2021. The Council are complying with all
requirements contained in the revised codes, any additional reporting obligations
arising from the revised codes will be implemented in the 2023/24 Treasury Policy
Statement and Treasury Strategy reports as set out in the Codes.

2.4

The Strategy for 2022/23 to 2026/27 is attached at Appendix 3.

3.

Prudential and Treasury Indicators

3.1

Under Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003 the Council may borrow money
6

Page 168

(a) for any purpose relevant to its functions under any enactment, or
(b) for the purposes of the prudent management of its financial affairs.
3.2

Under the requirements of the Prudential Code and Treasury Management Code of
Practice the Council have adopted prudential indicators (detailed in Appendix 3,
section 1.4).

4.

Annual Investment Strategy

4.1

The MHCLG has issued guidance to supplement the investment regulations
contained within the Local Government Act 2003. It is also referred to under Section
15 (1) of the 2003 Local Government Act which requires authorities to “have regard
(a) to such guidance as the Secretary of State may issue and (b) to such other
guidance as the Secretary of State may by regulations specify”. The guidance
encourages authorities to invest prudently but without burdening them with the
detailed prescriptive regulation of the previous regime.

4.2

Central to the guidance and the Code is the need to produce an Annual Investment
Strategy. This is included as Section 6 of the Treasury Strategy in Appendix 3.

4.3

The Annual Investment Strategy document will include:
 The Council’s risk appetite in respect of security, portfolio liquidity and return;
 The definition of ‘high’ and ‘non-high’ credit quality to determine what are
specified investments and non-specified investments;
 Which specified and non-specified instruments the Council will use, dealing in
more detail with non-specified investments given the greater potential risk;
 The categories of counterparties that may be used during the course of the year
e.g. foreign banks, nationalised/part nationalised banks, building societies;
 The types of investments that may be used during the course of the year;
 The limit to the total amount that may be held in each investment type;
 The Council’s policy on the use of credit ratings, credit rating agencies and other
credit risk analysis techniques to determine creditworthy counterparties for its
approved lending list and how the Council will deal with changes in ratings, rating
watches and rating outlooks;
 Limits for individual counterparties, groups and countries;
 Guidelines for making decisions on investments and borrowing; and
 The Council’s policy on commercial investments held for return.

4.4

As part of the annual review of counterparty limits changes to the existing market
conditions and level of council reserves held have been identified. The level of
investment per counterparty has therefore been increased in some instances, the
new limits are shown in Appendix 3 Sections 6.15 and 6.21 respectively.

5.

Policy on Interest Rates Exposure

5.1

The use of any financial instruments, such as derivatives, to mitigate interest rate
risks will be considered on an individual basis and the Strategic Director, Resources
and Digital, will obtain approval from the Council prior to entering into any
arrangement of this nature.

6.

Policy on Delegation, Review Requirements and Reporting Arrangements

6.1

It is the Council’s responsibility under the Code to approve a Treasury Policy
statement.

Page 169
7

6.2

The Council delegates the review of the policy and monitoring of the performance of
the treasury management function to Cabinet, the scrutiny of treasury management
strategy and policies to the Audit and Standards Committee, and the execution and
administration of treasury management decisions to the Strategic Director,
Resources and Digital, who will act in accordance with the organisations policy
statement and TMPs and CIPFA’s Standard of Professional Practice on Treasury
Management. Any proposals to approve, adopt or amend policy require the consent
of the Council and are matters for the Council to determine.

6.3

Treasury Strategy (Appendix 3, Section 1.3) outlines the Council’s arrangements for
reporting on Treasury Management. Any additional reporting arrangements resulting
from changes to the Treasury Management Code in December 2021 will be
introduced in financial year 2023/24.

6.4

As from 1st April 2019, CIPFA required all local authorities to prepare an additional
report, a Capital Strategy report, which is intended to provide the following: a) a high-level overview of how capital expenditure, capital financing and treasury
management activity contribute to the provision of services;
b) an overview of how the associated risk is managed; and
c) the implications for future financial sustainability.

6.5

The aim of this report is to ensure that all elected members of the Council fully
understand the overall strategy, governance procedures and risk appetite entailed by
this Strategy.

6.6

The Capital Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27 was approved by Cabinet on 16th
November 2021.

8

Page 170

Appendix 3
Treasury Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27
1.

Introduction

1.1

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2017 (the Code) emphasises
a number of key areas including the following:
a)
b)
c)

d)
e)

f)
g)

h)
i)

j)
k)
l)

m)
n)

o)

1.2

All authorities must formally adopt the Code.
The strategy report will affirm that the effective management and control of risk
are prime objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities.
The Council’s appetite for risk, including the appetite for any use of financial
instruments in the prudent management of those risks, must be clearly
identified within the strategy report and will affirm that priority is given to security
and portfolio liquidity when investing treasury management funds and explain
how that will be carried out.
Responsibility for risk management and control lies within the organisation and
cannot be delegated to any outside organisation.
Credit ratings should only be used as a starting point when considering risk.
Use should also be made of market data and information, the quality financial
press, information on government support for banks and the credit ratings of
that government support.
Councils need a sound diversification policy with high credit quality
counterparties and should consider setting country, sector and group limits.
Borrowing in advance of need is only to be permissible when there is a clear
business case for doing so and only for the current capital programme or to
finance future debt maturities.
The main annual treasury management reports must be approved by full
Council.
There needs to be a mid-year review of Treasury Management Strategy and
performance. This is intended to highlight any areas of concern that have
arisen since the original strategy was approved.
Each council must delegate the role of scrutiny of Treasury Management
Strategy and policies to a specific named body.
Treasury Management performance and policy setting should be subjected to
prior scrutiny.
Councillors should be provided with access to relevant training as those
charged with governance are also personally responsible for ensuring they
have the necessary skills and training.
Responsibility for these activities must be clearly defined within the
organisation.
Officers involved in treasury management must be explicitly required to follow
treasury management policies and procedures when making investment and
borrowing decisions on behalf of the Council (this will form part of the Treasury
Management Practices).
“Investments” covers the financial and non-financial assets which the
organisation holds primarily for financial returns. This will include investments
which are not managed as part of the normal treasury management
delegations.

This Strategy has been prepared in accordance with the Code.

Page 171
9

1.3

The Council will adopt the following reporting arrangements in accordance with the
requirements of the revised Code:

Area of Responsibility

Council/
Committee/ Officer
Council approval with
review delegated to
Cabinet/ Audit and
Standards
Committee
Council with review
delegated to Cabinet/
Audit and Standards
Committee
Council approval with
review delegated to
Cabinet / Audit and
Standards
Committee
Cabinet

Frequency

Scrutiny of treasury
management Policy, Strategy
and procedures

Audit and Standards
Committee

Annually before the start of
the year

Treasury Management
Monitoring Reports

Strategic Director,
Bi-Monthly/Weekly
Resources and Digital

Treasury Management Practices

Strategic Director,
Resources and
Digital

Treasury Management Policy &
Strategy / Annual Investment
Strategy

Annual Report on borrowing and
investment activity

Scrutiny of treasury
management performance via
mid-year report

In year changes to agreed
Treasury Management Policy &
Strategy / Annual Investment
Strategy / Prudential and
Treasury Indicators

1.4

Annually before the start of
the year or where a material
change is proposed

Annually by 30 September
after the end of the year

Mid-Year

By exception

Monthly

Given the link to the revenue budget and capital programme, the following indicators
were approved by the Council on 24 February 2022 as part of the Budget and
Council Tax Level 2022/23 report. For completeness, the approved indicators are
attached at Appendix 4:












Actual and estimates of financing costs to net revenue stream;
Estimates of capital expenditure;
Actual capital expenditure;
Estimate of Capital Financing Requirement;
Actual Capital Financing Requirement;
Authorised limit;
Operational boundary;
Actual external debt;
Gross debt and Capital Financing Requirement;
Upper and lower limit of maturity structure of borrowing fixed and variable; and
Upper limit on principal sums invested for periods of over 365 days.

10

Page 172

1.5

In addition to the above indicators, local indicators showing the level of reserves
which are backed by cash in the bank and internal borrowing as a percentage of the
capital financing requirement are included in this report. Also, where there is a
significant difference between the net and the gross borrowing position the risk and
benefits associated with this strategy will be clearly stated in the annual strategy.
This is highlighted within the main borrowing strategy outlined in Section 4.6 below.

1.6

The Strategy covers:
a) Prospects for interest rates;
b) Treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the
Council, including prudential and treasury indicators;
c) The borrowing strategy;
d) Sensitivity forecast;
e) External and internal borrowing;
f) Debt rescheduling;
g) Policy on borrowing in advance of need;
h) The investment strategy; and
i) The policy on the use of external service providers.

2.

Prospects for Interest Rates
Interest Rates

2.1

The coronavirus outbreak has caused huge economic damage to the UK and
economies around the world, leading to the Bank of England taking emergency
action and cutting the Bank Rate. It was initially cut in March 2020 to 0.10%,
remaining at that level until 4 December 2021 when it was increased to 0.25% and
then further increased on 3 February 2022 to 0.5%. The Governor of the Bank of
England has also decided not to reinvest any of the government bonds it bought
under the recent quantitative easing programmes. As shown in the table below
increases in the Bank Rate are forecast as the Bank of England need to balance
controlling inflation with the expected gradual economic recovery over a prolonged
period.

2.2

The table shown below outlines the Council’s view of anticipated movements in
interest rates, based on guidance received from the Council’s treasury management
advisers Link Asset Services as at 8th February 2022.
March
2022
Bank Rate
0.75%
5 yr PWLB
2.20%
10 yr PWLB 2.30%
25 yr PWLB 2.40%
50 yr PWLB 2.20%

June
2022
1.00%
2.30%
2.40%
2.50%
2.30%

Sept
2022
1.00%
2.30%
2.40%
2.50%
2.30%

Dec
2022
1.25%
2.30%
2.40%
2.60%
2.40%

March
2023
1.25%
2.30%
2.40%
2.60%
2.40%

March
2024
1.25%
2.3.0%
2.40%
2.60%
2.40%

March
2025
1.25%
2.30%
2.40%
2.60%
2.40%

Long Term Interest Rates
2.3

Investment returns are likely to remain exceptionally low during 2022/23 with little
increase in the following two years.

3

Treasury Limits for 2022/23 to 2026/27 including Prudential Indicators

Page 173

11

3.1

It is a statutory requirement of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for the
Council to produce a balanced budget. In particular, Section 31(a), as amended by
the Localism Act 2011, requires a local authority to calculate its budget requirement
for each financial year to include the revenue costs that flow from capital financing
decisions. This means that increases in capital expenditure must be limited to a
level whereby increases in charges to revenue from increases in interest charges
and increases in running costs from new capital projects are limited to a level, which
is affordable within the projected income of the Council for the foreseeable future.
This is reported within the Council’s Medium-Term Financial Strategy.

3.2

It is a statutory duty under Section 3 of Part 1 of the Local Government Act 2003,
and supporting regulations, for the Council to determine and keep under review how
much it can afford to borrow. The amount so determined is termed the Affordable
Borrowing Limit. The Authorised Limit represents the legislative limit specified in the
Act.

3.3

The Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities is a professional code
that sets out a framework for self-regulation of capital spending, in effect allowing
councils to invest in capital projects without any limit as long as they are affordable,
prudent and sustainable. The Code requires that treasury management decisions be
taken in accordance with good professional practice and in full understanding of the
risks involved and how these risks will be managed to levels that are acceptable to
the Council. The Council will take into account its arrangements for the repayment of
debt and consideration of any impact, on the authority’s overall fiscal sustainability.

3.4

The Council must have regard to the Prudential Code when setting the Authorised
Limit, which essentially requires the Council to ensure that total capital investment
remains within sustainable limits and, in particular, that the impact upon its future
council tax and housing rent levels is affordable.

3.5

To facilitate the decision-making process and support capital investment decisions
the Prudential Code and the Treasury Management Code require the Council to
agree and monitor a minimum number of prudential indicators which were approved
by Council on 24 February 2022 as attached at Appendix 5.

3.6

The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, will ensure systems are in place to
monitor the treasury limits and will report to Council instances where limits are
breached, with the exception of short-term breaches of the Operational Boundary.
The Operational Boundary is set so that if breached it acts as an early warning of the
potential to exceed the higher Authorised Limit and as such temporary breaches due
to debt restructuring and temporary borrowing are acceptable, providing they are not
sustained.

4

Borrowing Strategy

4.1

The Local Government Act 2003 does not prescribe approved sources of finance,
only that borrowing may not, without the consent of HM Treasury, be in other than
Sterling.

4.2

The main options available for the borrowing strategy for 2022/23 are PWLB loans,
market loans, capital market loans and the Municipal Bond Agency. The interest rate
applicable to either PWLB or markets loans can be fixed or variable.

12

Page 174

4.3

Variable rate short term borrowing is expected to be cheaper than long term fixed
borrowing and therefore may be considered throughout the financial year. Due to the
expectation that interest rates will rise, the risk of the potential increase in interest
rates will be balanced against any potential short-term savings.

4.4

There are different types of market loans available, including forward starting, at
variable and fixed interest rates. It is not usual practice to agree forward starting
loans, but their use may be considered to avoid the ‘cost of carry’ – the difference
between borrowing costs and investment returns. These loans generally would have
to be offered at rates below the current or future PWLB forecast rates to make them
an attractive option and considered as a means of mitigating future interest rate
movements if the opportunity arose, i.e. where the Council can agree an interest rate
ahead of when it would actually be required to draw down the funds.

4.5

To mitigate this interest rate risk a limit is placed on the total level of borrowing that
can be taken as variable interest rate loans. To provide scope to utilise new market
products should they become available as well as minimise the cost of borrowing and
increase the diversification of the debt portfolio it is proposed that the limit on variable
rate loans should be 40% of total borrowing in 2022/23.

4.6

The main strategy is therefore:


Current (February 2022) long term PWLB rates (50 years) are around 2.11%. It is
forecast that there will be little upward movement in PWLB rates over the next
two financial years, being 2.30% Q1, 2.30% Q2, 2.40% Q3 and 2.40% Q4.
Should interest rates fall below these targets borrowing should be considered,
with preference given to terms which ensure a balanced profile of debt maturity,
this may include Local Infrastructure Rate borrowing. The average interest rates
forecast across this financial year for various borrowing periods are as follows: 10 years – 2.40%
25 years – 2.55%
50 years – 2.35%



Whilst monitoring borrowing interest rates if there appears to be an upward trend
then it may be considered prudent to lock into rates which exceed those outlined
in paragraph 4.6 above, to minimise interest rate risk.



The use of short-term borrowing (6 months to 18 months) will also be considered
with the aim of minimising borrowing costs. This short-term borrowing will be
replaced with longer term loans when rates are preferable.



External borrowing rates currently far exceed the return that is available for
investments, meaning savings can be achieved by borrowing internally from
reserves in the short term. The current policy of internal borrowing will continue
to be followed as a short-term funding option serving to minimise overall cost.



Consideration will be given to borrowing market loans which are at least 20 basis
points below the PWLB target rate.

Sensitivity of the forecast
4.7

The Council, in conjunction with Link Asset Services, will continually monitor both the
prevailing interest rates and the market forecasts, adopting the following responses

Page 175

13

to any changes. The main sensitivities of the forecast are likely to be the two
scenarios below:

4.8



if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in borrowing rates,
then borrowing will be postponed.



if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in borrowing
rates than that currently forecast, perhaps arising from an acceleration in the rate
of increase in central rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world economic
activity, or a sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be
re-appraised. Most likely, fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst interest rates are
lower than they are projected to be in the next few years.

Against this background, caution will be adopted in the management of the 2022/23
treasury operations. The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, will monitor the
interest rate market and adopt a pragmatic approach to any changing circumstances
having delegated powers to invest and manage the funds and monies of the Council.
External and Internal Borrowing

4.9

As at 31 January 2022 the Council had net debt of £511.888m; this includes total
borrowing of £660.572m and investments of £148.684m.

4.10

Investment returns are expected to improve in 2022/23. However, while markets are
pricing in a series of anticipated Bank Rate increases, actual economic
circumstances may fall short of these expectations.

4.11

Borrowing interest rates fell to historically very low levels as a result of the covid
pandemic and the quantitative easing operations of the Bank of England and remain
at relatively low levels. The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down spare
cash balances has served the Council well over recent years. The Council will
assess its risk appetite in conjunction with budgetary pressures to reduce total
interest costs.
Although short-term interest rates are cheapest, longer-term
borrowing could also be undertaken for the purpose of certainty.

4.12

There remains a cost of carry, (the difference between higher borrowing costs and
lower investment returns) to any new long-term borrowing that causes a temporary
increase in cash balances as this position will most likely incur a revenue cost.
Borrowing in advance of need

4.13

The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs purely in order to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in
advance will be considered carefully to ensure that it is in line with the projected
capital financing requirement and prudential indicators and that the Council can
demonstrate value for money and ensure the security of the funds.

4.14

In determining whether borrowing will be undertaken in advance of need the Council
will;
 ensure that there is a clear link between the capital programme and maturity
profile of the existing debt portfolio which supports the need to take funding in
advance of need;
 ensure the ongoing revenue liabilities created, and the implications for the future
plans and budgets have been considered;
14

Page 176




evaluate the economic and market factors that might influence the manner and
timing of any decision to borrow; and
consider the alternative forms of funding.

5.

Debt Rescheduling

5.1

Any rescheduling opportunities will be considered in line with procedures approved
under the Council’s Treasury Management Practice Statements and will include a full
cost/benefit analysis of any proposed variations. Any positions taken via
rescheduling will be in accordance with the strategy position outlined in Section 4
above and will also take into account the prudential and treasury limits.

5.2

The reasons for any proposed rescheduling will include:
 the generation of cash savings at minimum risk;
 help to fulfil the treasury strategy; and
 in order to amend the maturity profile and/or the balance of volatility in the
Council’s borrowing portfolio.

5.3

The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital, in line with delegated powers outlined
in the approved Treasury Management Practice Statement, will approve all
rescheduling.

5.4

The Council has examined the potential for undertaking early repayment of external
PWLB or LOBO debt in order to reduce the difference between its gross and net debt
positions. The significant difference between early redemption rates and interest
rates payable on new debt means that large premiums are likely to be incurred by
such action. This situation will be monitored in case the differential is narrowed by
changes in current borrowing rates.

5.5

Consideration will also be given to the potential for making savings by running down
investment balances by repaying debt prematurely as short-term rates on
investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on currently held debt. However,
this will need careful consideration in the light of premiums that may be incurred by
such a course of action and other financial considerations.

5.6

All rescheduling will be reported to Council in the mid-year and annual reports.

6.

Investment Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27
Introduction

6.1

The Council has regard to the Department for Levelling up, Housing and
Communities (DLUHC) Guidance on Local Government Investments and CIPFA’s
Code of Practice. The Council must produce a strategy on an annual basis which
covers the subsequent five years.

6.2

The CIPFA definition of “investments” covers all the financial assets of the
organisation, as well as other non-financial assets which the organisation holds
primarily for financial returns, such as investment property portfolios. This may

Page 177

15

therefore include investments which are not managed as part of normal treasury
management or under treasury management delegations.
6.3

This annual strategy states which investments the Council may use for the prudent
management of its treasury balances during the financial year under the categories
of specified investments and non-specified investments.



Specified investments are those with a high-level credit quality and subject to
a maturity limit of one year.
Non-specified investments are those with less high credit quality, may be for
periods in excess of one year and/or are more complex instruments which
require greater consideration by members and officers before being
authorised for use.

6.4

Both specified and non-specified investment types currently utilised by the Council
are detailed in Appendix 6, along with approved limits. These limits reflect the
Council’s investment requirements whilst assessing risk and obtaining advice from
Link Asset Services.

6.5

In addition to these, numerous other investment options are available for use and
these may be considered suitable for use in the future. Should this be the case then
the option will be evaluated in line with the procedures contained within the approved
Treasury Management Practice Statement.
Investment Objectives

6.6

All investments will be in Sterling and all investment decisions are taken on data
available on the day of investment.

6.7

The Council’s primary investment objective is the security of the capital investment.
The Council will also manage the investments to meet cash flow demands and to
achieve a reasonable return commensurate with the proper levels of security and
liquidity. The risk appetite of the Council is low in order to give priority to security of
its investments.

6.8

The borrowing of monies purely to invest is unlawful and the Council will not engage
in such activity.
Creditworthiness Policy

6.9

The Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Link Asset Services.
The service uses a sophisticated modelling approach with credit ratings from the
three main rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s. This service
uses a scoring system to ensure that it does not give undue consideration to just one
agency’s ratings. It does not rely solely on the current credit ratings of counterparties
but also uses the following information as overlays which are combined in a weighted
scoring system:




Credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
Credit Default Swap spreads, financial agreements that compensate the buyer
in the event of a default, which give an early warning of likely changes in credit
ratings; and
Sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy
countries.
16

Page 178

6.10

The end product of this modelling system indicates the relative creditworthiness of
counterparties. The Council is satisfied that this service gives the required level of
security for its investments. It is also a service which the Council would not be able
to replicate using in-house resources.
The minimum credit rating criteria the Council use will be a Short-Term rating (Fitch
or equivalents) of F1 and a long-term rating of A. In circumstances where ratings
from all three agencies are not available, two acceptable ratings will be deemed as
sufficient.
Where three ratings are published and all three do not meet our minimum criteria the
counterparty will not be used until such a time as all three ratings meet the minimum
criteria or the lowest rating is withdrawn.

6.11

The credit ratings will be monitored as follows:





All credit ratings are reviewed weekly. The Council has access to Fitch,
Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s credit ratings and is alerted to changes
through its use of the Link Asset Services creditworthiness service. Ongoing
monitoring of ratings also takes place in response to ad-hoc e-mail alerts from
Link Asset Services.
If a counterparty’s or deposit scheme’s rating is downgraded with the result
that it no longer meets the Council’s minimum criteria, the further use of that
counterparty/deposit scheme as a new deposit will be withdrawn immediately.
If a counterparty is upgraded so that it fulfils the Council’s criteria, its inclusion
will be considered for approval by the Strategic Director, Resources and
Digital.

6.12

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. In addition, the
Council will also use market data and information on government support for banks
and the credit ratings of government support.

6.13

The Council has determined the minimum long term and short-term ratings it deems
to be “high” for each category of investment. These “high” ratings allow investments
of 365 days or less to be classified as specified investments. The Council’s
approved limits for this “high” credit rating for deposit takers is as follows:

6.14

High Rated

Fitch

Moody’s

Short Term
(ability to repay short term debt)
Long Term
(ability to repay long term debt)

F1

P1

Standard &
Poor’
s
A1

A

A2

A

In addition to the above specified investments, the Council has also fully considered
the increased risk of non-specified investments and has set appropriate limits for
non-high rated deposit takers. These are as follows:
Non- High Rated

Moody’s

Fitch

Page 179

17

Standard
&Poor
’s

Short term

F1

P1

A1

Long term

A-

A3

A-

The selection of counterparties with an acceptable level of creditworthiness will be
achieved by selecting institutions down to a minimum durational band within Link
Asset Services weekly credit list of worldwide potential counterparties. The
maximum maturity periods and amounts to be placed in different types of investment
instruments are detailed in Appendix 6.
6.15

As part of the annual review of counterparty limits changes to the existing market
conditions and level of council reserves held have been identified. The level of
investment per counterparty has therefore been increased by £5m for High and &
Non-Higher rated counterparties respectively. The existing % limit per counterparty
and credit rating requirements have been retained to ensure risk is minimised and
security of the councils investments is maintained. UK Government nationalised/part
nationalised banks will have a maximum limit of 40% or £20m of total investment, all
other counterparties will not exceed a maximum limit equal to 20% of total
investments or £20m. Unless there are major changes in the level of investment
balances throughout the year this limit will be reviewed prior to the commencement
of each financial year.

6.16

Where more than one counterparty from a group is included on the counterparty list
the group in total will be controlled by the above limits with the maximum limit being
that of the parent company. Within the group each counterparty/subsidiary will have
individual limits based on their creditworthiness although the total placed with the
subsidiaries will not exceed the limit of the parent company. Subsidiaries that do not
satisfy the minimum credit criteria will not be included.

6.17

A number of counterparties are also approved by the Strategic Director, Resources
and Digital for direct dealing. These counterparties are included on the approved list
and dealing will be within agreed limits. Direct dealing with individual counterparties
must be approved by the Strategic Director, Resources and Digital prior to
investments being placed.
UK Banks - Ring Fencing

6.18

The largest UK banks were required by UK law to separate core retail banking
services from their investment and international banking activities by 1 January 2019.
This is known as “ring-fencing”.

6.19

Ring-fencing is a regulatory initiative created in response to the global financial crisis
which improves the resilience of banks by changing their structure. In general,
simpler, lower risk activities will be offered by a ring-fenced Bank (RFB), whilst more
complex and riskier activities will sit within a non-ring-fenced bank (NRFB).
Foreign Banks

6.20

The Council will continue to use UK banks irrespective of the UK sovereign rating,
however non-UK banks domiciled in countries with a minimum sovereign rating of
AA+ will be considered for inclusion on the approved list, they must also meet the
high rated lending criteria and have operations based in the UK.

18

Page 180

6.21

As part of the annual review of investments balances limits on individual countries
have been increased by £5m. The existing % limit per counterparty and credit rating
requirements have been retained to ensure risk is minimised and security of the
councils investments is maintained. Limits will be prescribed by the Link Asset
Services creditworthiness list and limited to 365 days or less. Each country will be
limited to the maximum investment limit of £20m or 20% of the Council’s total
investments and individual counterparties will not exceed a maximum limit equal to
20% of total investments or £15m. A list of those countries with a minimum sovereign
rating of AA+ is shown in Appendix 6.
Local Authorities

6.22

The Council invests with other Local Authorities on an ad hoc basis; each investment
is considered on an individual basis and agreed by the Strategic Director, Resources
and Digital, prior to funds being placed. Limits are detailed at Appendix 7.
Investment balances / Liquidity of investments

6.23

Creditworthiness of counterparties is considered prior to depositing funds. The
maximum term for investments is 3 years. Longer term deposits will continue where
the counterparty is deemed to be a low credit risk to ensure a good rate of return is
maintained in the current market conditions. Deposits beyond 365 days will only be
considered when there is minimal risk involved. With deposits of this nature there is
an increased risk in terms of liquidity and interest rate fluctuations. To mitigate these
risks a limit of £15m (20% of total investments whichever is the higher) has been set
and a prudential indicator has been calculated (See Appendix 4). Such sums will
only be placed with counterparties who have the highest available credit rating or
other local authorities.

6.24

Deposits for periods longer than 365 days are classed as non-specified
investments and this will increase the total limit of overall deposits in this
classification to 25%.
Non-Treasury Investments

6.25

The acquisition of share capital or loan capital in any body corporate is defined as
capital expenditure under the Local Government Act 2003. Such investments will
have to be funded out of capital or revenue resources and will be classified as ‘nonspecified investments’.

6.26

A loan or grant by the Council to another body for capital expenditure by that body is
also deemed by regulation to be capital expenditure by the Council. It is therefore
important for the Council to clearly identify if the loan was capital expenditure or if it
is an investment made primarily to generate a financial yield. The latter will be
assessed using the Council’s Investment Framework.

6.27

The Council will ensure that all the organisation’s investments are covered in either
the Capital Strategy or Investment Strategy, and will set out, where relevant, the
organisation’s risk appetite and specific policies and arrangements for non-treasury
investments. It will be recognised that the risk appetite for these activities may differ
from that for treasury management.
Commercial Investments

Page 181

19

6.28

6.29

To date the Council have not entered into any non-treasury investments which are
purely to generate a commercial return, neither are there any plans to consider
entering into non-treasury investments solely or primarily to obtain a revenue return.
However, if an opportunity to do so arose the long-term financial impact and the risks
inherent to the scheme would be assessed as part of the due diligence process.
Where the size of the investment or the risk of the investment required external
advice, this will be obtained. Any potential investment entered for a commercial
return will require prior Cabinet approval.
The Council does not invest for solely commercial reasons or to generate income to
support the revenue budget. Any capital investment entered into to deliver service
objectives and/or the placemaking role of the local authority is monitored and
reported in line with the Capital Strategy. Capital investments are assessed in terms
of their contribution to deliver the following objectives:
 Health and Housing
 Economy
 Poverty and Equality
 Climate Change
 Transport
Further information can be obtained from the Council’s Capital Strategy at the
following link: Capital Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27

6.30

The Council maintains a schedule setting out a summary of existing material
investments, subsidiaries, joint ventures and liabilities including financial guarantees
and the organisation’s risk exposure, which is attached at Appendix 8.
Internal Investment Strategy

6.31

The Strategic Director, Resources and Digital will monitor the interest rate market
and react appropriately to any changing circumstances.

6.32

The Council takes the view that bank rate is forecast to remain the same over the
next few years. Bank rate forecasts for financial year ends are 2021/22 1.00%,
2022/23 1.25%, 2023/24 1.25% and 2024/25 1.25%.

6.33

The overall balance of risks to economic growth in the UK are probably weighted to
the downside. This will be from the Bank of England reducing its economic forecast,
saying the UK economic growth would slow to subdued rates. High inflationary
pressure on the economy will continue, with inflation rates in excess of bank targets
and expected to remain high for a prolonged period.

6.34

The balance of risks to increases or decreases in Bank Rate and shorter term PWLB
rates are also weighted to the downside.
Investment Risk Benchmark

6.35

The use of LIBOR/LIBID rates as a benchmark ceased on 31 December 2021. The
Council is now using an investment benchmark to assess the investment
performance of its investment portfolio against the Sterling Overnight Investment
Rate (SONIA) 3-month rate. The Council is also a member of the Link Asset
Services investment benchmarking Group who meet semi-annually. As a member,
quarterly reports on comparative performance with other members of the group and
the wider Link Asset Services client base are received. The benchmarking return for
20

Page 182

the group is a reasonable target for the Council, which allows the relative risk
appetite to be considered as part of the benchmark.
End of year investment report
6.36

By the end of September each year Council will receive a report from Cabinet on its
investment activity as part of its annual treasury report.
Policy on use of external service providers

6.37

The Council currently uses Link Asset Services as its external treasury management
advisers.

6.38

It is recognised that responsibility for treasury management decisions remains with
the Council at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our
external service providers.

6.39

It is also recognised that there is value in employing external providers of treasury
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources.
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by
which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented and
subjected to regular review.
Scheme of Delegation

6.40

As required by the Guidance Notes for Local Authorities the Treasury Management
Scheme of Delegation is detailed in Appendix 3, paragraph 1.3.
Role of the Section 151 Officer

6.41

As required by the Guidance Notes for Local Authorities the role of the Section 151
Officer in relation to treasury management is detailed below:
 Recommending the Code of Practice to be applied, treasury management
policy/practices for approval, reviewing the same regularly, and monitoring
compliance;
 Submitting regular treasury management policy reports;
 Submitting budgets and budget variations;
 Receiving and reviewing management information reports;
 Reviewing the performance of the treasury management function;
 Ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills, and the
effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management function;
 Ensuring the adequacy of internal audit, and liaising with external audit; and
 Arranging for the appointment of external service providers;
 Preparation of a capital strategy to include capital expenditure, capital financing,
non-financial investments and treasury management;
 Ensuring that due diligence has been carried out on all treasury and non-financial
investments and is in accordance with the risk appetite of the authority;
 Ensure that the authority has appropriate legal powers to undertake expenditure
on non-financial assets and their financing;
 Ensuring the proportionality of all investments so that the authority does not
undertake a level of investing which exposes the authority to an excessive level
of risk compared to its financial resources;
Page 183
21

 Ensuring that an adequate governance process is in place for the approval,
monitoring and ongoing risk management of all non-financial investments and
long-term liabilities;
 Provision to members of a schedule of all non-treasury investments including
material investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures, loans and financial
guarantees;
 Ensuring that members are adequately informed and understand the risk
exposures taken on by an authority; and
 Ensuring that the authority has adequate expertise, either in house or externally
provided, to carry out the above.

22

Page 184

Appendix 4
Prudential Indicators –Treasury Management
Authorised Limit for External Debt
2022/23
£000
Borrowing

895,000

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

965,000

1,004,000

2025/26
£000

2026/27
£000

1,010,000

1,011,000

The Authorised Limit for External Debt sets the maximum level of external borrowing that
the Council can incur. It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could be
afforded in the short-term, but is not sustainable. It is the Council's expected maximum
borrowing need with headroom for unexpected cashflow. The limit also provides scope for
the Council to borrow in advance of need.

Operational Boundary for External Debt

Borrowing

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

2025/26
£000

2026/27
£000

880,000

950,000

989,000

995,000

996,000

The Operational Boundary for External Debt is based on the probable external debt during
the course of the year. It is not a limit and actual borrowing could vary around this boundary
for short times during the year. It acts as an early warning indicator to ensure the authorised
limit is not breached. Similar, to the authorised limit it also provides scope for the Council to
borrow in advance of need.

Page 185

23

Capital Financing Requirement, Operational Boundary and
Authorised Limit

1,200

965.000

1,000

895.000

880.000
826.606

800

£m

950.000

1004.000

1010.000

1011.000

989.000

995.000

996.000
943.163

934.687

892.526

939.456

600

400

200

780.358

853.278

895.439

905.068

908.775

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

2026/27

0
Total Debt (Comb)

Total CFR

Operational Boundary

Authorised Limit

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) shows the Council’s capital borrowing requirement.
Any gap between the CFR and the total debt highlights the potential to borrow further if the
cashflow and treasury management position dictate.

Useable Reserves, Internal Borrowing & Investments

180

30.786

160
140
31.035

£'s million

120

31.553

10.115

48.303

19.167

100
80
127.115

60
40

107.445
77.641

77.411

89.727

89.024

20
0

Useable Reserves GF

Financial year ending Useable Reserves HRA
Combined Total Investments
Combined Internal Borrowing

The internal borrowing position represents the level to which reserves have temporarily
been used to support funding of the capital programme.

24

Page 186

Internal Borrowing as a % of Capital Financing Requirement
14%

General Fund

12.12%

12%

10%

Housing Revenue Account

9.02%

7.57%

8%

6%

5.55%

4.99%

4.17%

3.67%

4%

2%

5.55%
3.41%

4.14%
3.38%

4.14%
3.36%

2025/26

2026/27

1.90%

0%

2020/21

2021/22

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

Internal borrowing as a percentage of the Council’s underlying borrowing requirement
reflects the Council’s exposure to interest rate movements and the element of borrowing
that is being undertaken at variable rates (i.e. rates equivalent to the lost interest on
investment income).

Estimated Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream
50.00%

49.90%

45.00%

40.00%

39.92%

42.39%

40.40%

38.89%

35.00%

36.38%

34.24%

30.00%

25.00%
20.00%
15.00%

18.59%

17.37%

19.06%

20.27%

21.61%

22.42%

GF
HRA

14.69%

10.00%
5.00%
0.00%

2020/21
Actual

2021/22
BASE

2022/23

2023/24

2024/25

2025/26

2026/27

Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream – financing costs must be met before any
services have been delivered. Higher financing costs leaves less available to provide
services.

Page 187

25

Treasury Indicators

Upper and Lower Limits for the Maturity Structure of Fixed Rate
Borrowings
Upper
Limit
20%
19%
26%
26%
22%
43%
46%
48%
17%

Under 12 months
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and within 20 years
20 years and within 30 years
30 years and within 40 years
40 years and within 50 years
50 years and above

Lower
Limit
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

Upper and Lower Limits for the Maturity Structure of Variable Rate
Borrowings
Upper
Limit
25%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%
20%

Under 12 months
12 months and within 24 months
24 months and within 5 years
5 years and within 10 years
10 years and within 20 years
20 years and within 30 years
30 years and within 40 years
40 years and within 50 years
50 years and above

Lower
Limit
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

Upper Limit on Amounts Invested Beyond 365 Days

Investments

2021/22
£000

2022/23
£000

2023/24
£000

2024/25
£000

2025/26
£000

15,000

15,000

15,000

15,000

15,000

26

Page 188

Appendix 5
Specified Investments (All Sterling Denominated)

Page 189

Investment type

Share/
Loan
Capital

Security /
Minimum Credit
Rating

Capital
Expenditure

Circumstance
of use

Maximum period

No

Repayable/
Redeemable
within 12
months
Yes

Term deposits with the UK
Government or with UK local
authorities (i.e. local authorities
as defined under Section 23 of
the 2003 Act) with maturities up
to 365 days.

High security
although LA’s not
credit rated.
See appendix 3
Creditworthiness
Policy

No

In-house

365 days

Term deposits with credit-rated
deposit takers (banks and
building societies), including
callable deposits with maturities
up to 365 days.

No

Yes

Secure
Varied minimum
credit rating
See appendix 3
Creditworthiness
Policy

No

In-house

365 days

27

Page 190

Short Term Money Market
Funds
The majority of these funds are
instant access and therefore do
not have a maturity date.

No

Yes

Secure
Varied minimum
credit rating
See appendix 3
Creditworthiness
Policy

No

In-house

Standard Money Market Funds
and Ultra Short Duration Funds
3-day notice cash plus fund
These funds require three-day
notice for withdrawals and
therefore do not have a maturity
date.

No

Yes

Secure
Varied minimum
credit rating
See appendix 3
Creditworthiness
Policy

No

In-house

28

The investment
period is subject to
liquidity and cash
flow requirements. It
is assumed that
funds are placed
overnight and will be
returned and
reinvested the next
working day
(although no actual
movement of cash
may take place).
The investment
period is subject to
liquidity and cash
flow requirements.
Notice required is
three days, however
it is the intention to
leave these funds for
terms longer than
other money market
funds to achieve
greater returns.

Non-Specified Investments (All Sterling Denominated)
(A) Why use it
(B) Associated risks

Rated deposit
takers (banks
and building
societies)
which do not
meet the
Council’s
“high” credit
rating

(A) To improve ability to
No
place smaller amounts
(B) Greater risk than “high”
credit rating
counterparties but
advance warning by
rating agency of potential
problems.
The Council has fully
considered this
investment category and
set appropriate
investment and maturity
limits in order to
minimise risk.
A) To improve the ability to No
“lock in” at times of high
interest rates to secure a
higher return over a
longer period should
rates be forecast to fall.
B) Lower liquidity and
greater risk of adverse
interest rate fluctuations.
The Council has fully
considered this
investment category and
set appropriate
investment and maturity
limits in order to
minimise risk.

Page 191

Investment
type

Term
deposits with
UK
Government,
UK Local
Authorities or
credit rated
banks and
building
societies,
with
maturities
over 1 year

Share/
Loan
Capital

Repayable/
Redeemable
within 12
months
Yes

Security /
Minimum
credit
rating
Secure
Varied
minimum
Credit
rating
Minimum:
Long term
AShort term
F1

Capital
Expenditure

Circumstance
of use

Max % of
Maximum
overall
maturity of
investments investment

No

In-house

Total not
high rated
deposits as
a proportion
of total
investments
25%

No

Secure
Varied
minimum
credit
rating

No

In-house

Total
3 years
investment
per
Counterparty
20%

29

6 months
(but set on
an individual
counterparty
basis)

Certificate of
Deposits
issued by
banks and
building
Societies

Page 192

A) Provides additional
counterparties, as
many banks do not
want to take fixed term
cash deposits.
B) Credit risk could
change but if adverse
there is an option to
sell onto a secondary
market.
The Council has fully
considered this
investment category and
set appropriate
investment and maturity
limits in order to minimise
risk.

No

Secure
Varied
minimum
Credit
rating
Minimum:
Fitch
Long term
AShort term
F1

Yes

30

No

In-House

20%

12 months
(but set on
an individual
counterparty
basis)

Appendix 6
Maximum Maturity Periods and Amounts

Max
Amount*

Max
Period

Minimum Fitch rating of F1 short
term and A long term. Moody’s
minimum rating of P1 short term
backed by A2 long term and S&P
minimum rating of A1 short term
and A long term.

£20m

3 years

Must meet the minimum high rated
criteria above and have a minimum
sovereign rating of AA+

£20m
country limit

365 Days

Organisation

Criteria

High Rated
(Specified Investments
– High rated and up to
365 days see Appendix
4)
Foreign Banks

(£15m
individual
counter party
limit)
Non-High Rated

Minimum Fitch rating of F1 short
term and A- long term. Moody’s
minimum rating of P1 short term
backed by A3 long term and S&P
minimum rating of A1 short term
and A- long term.

UK Local Authorities

(i.e. local authorities as defined
under Section 23 of the 2003 Act)
Each investment is considered on
an individual basis

Short-Term Money
Market Funds (Same
day settlement)

AAA MMF fund rating or equivalent
with assets >£1bn

Standard Money
Market Funds and
Ultra-Short Duration
Funds (Trade plus 3day settlement)

AAA fund rating or equivalent,
backed up with lowest volatility
rating (S1) or equivalent with
assets > £0.75bn

£15m

6 months

£10m

3 years

£10m

Overnight

£10m
(excludes
any
compound
interest)

3 days

* Restricted to a maximum of either 40% if government backed or 20% of total investments
if non-government backed counterparty.

Page 193
31

Appendix 7
Foreign Banks
This list is based on those countries which have non-UK sovereign ratings of AA+ or
higher at 21/01/2022.
AAA










Australia
Canada
Denmark
Germany
Netherlands
Singapore
Sweden
Switzerland
U.S.A.

AA+


Finland

Page 194

32

Appendix 8

Non-Treasury Management Investments

Investment

Latest Balance Notes
31 January 2022

Long term loans to Keelman Homes

Page 195

£ 16,668,454.07 Loan Balance at 31/01/2022

SCAPE System Build Ltd

£

Newcastle International Airport

£ 8,410,238.23 13.33% shareholding in Newcastle Airport

Loan to Citizens Advice Bureau

£

Loans to Trading Company

£ 2,246,677.76 Loan Balance at 31/01/2022

Newcastle International Airport
Long Term credit notes

£ 10,330,541.41 Loan notes - interest paid bi-annual
principal repayment due 2032

Soft Loans

£

219,259.90 North Music Trust - Soft Loan

Loan to NE Credit Union

£

102,994.86 Loan Balance at 31/01/2022

Loans to Gateshead Energy Company

£ 3,000,000.00 Loan Balance at 31/01/2022

Loan to NGI

£

784,000.00 17% Shareholding in SCAPE

512,141.70 Loan Balance at 31/01/2022

196,872.88 Loan Balance at 31/01/2022

33

This page is intentionally left blank

